ACCELERATING

OUR CORE,
SECURING

LONG TERM SUCCESS
BOBD IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 &%)

AR DBEEREEBRFRALA
VITASOY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LTD.

Stock Code MR85 : 0345

ORIGINAL |




QUALITY

PEOPLE

i)

nasoya




T ——
P —_—

ZHio

E g
wiia ¥
INNOVATION pl

Vitasey <

INFRASTRUCTURE




Brands and Markets
NS

'ﬁi%ﬂ]':

i
i
i

\
|

e

f=

North America
163 M

Canada
L]

o Mexico Dominican
Republic
L]

Guatemala
L]

== ECL Salvador

Ld
Panama

e Honduras

Peru
L]

°
Puerto Rico

South
Ireland UK
L]

Holland

X ® e Germany
Belgium e ¢ | yxembourg

L]
France

Global Sales Network ...
éf*ﬁﬁ%%% I%% Cambodic _ Saipan

® Switzerland

o taly

Hong Kong
and Macau
HREKRRM

Mainland China

B A 3t

e Lebanon

& SHNI¥a PINS

Trinldad
® Venezuela Ghana  Nigeri ) )
Surirlaine . |g.er|a Mala.ysia Brursi M|cro.ne5|a
Cayenne, ;. .
aFrench IrJgapore
Colony
PNG
D :
N2,
) »
Singapore Angola
%ﬁj_)ui& Mau.ntlus
e Chile
ftase
Vitasev = e

Australia and
New Zealand

BN X2 ¥ B

T —
ol i ﬁ'fh-gj ﬁ“vrr;g_ Vhebyy
T R B

B = HE

- -y %y
et e T L..."-I'_'-‘H.'“ (o= L




Contents

H &

Directors and Corporate Information
Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Corporate Responsibility Report

Awards and Recognitions

Corporate Governance Report

Directors and Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements

Five Year Summary

02
04
07
11
24
34
40
66
72
87
89
90
91
93
94
96
97
200

EEREEER
MBHE
ERE®|E
SETHRARRS
TESEHRE

B RRE
EEERBRE
EERSEEEAER
EXEHRE
BAZBERE
mEBEE®mK
REZERERER
REEERER
EERER
FEERRER
FERTRER
B RS ER AR MY
IFUBRE



02

Directors and Corporate Information
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Directors and Corporate Information
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Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Investor Relations Contact

Tel:  (852) 2468 9644
Fax:  (852) 2465 1008
Email: ir@vitasoy.com

Website Addresses

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
— www.vitasoy.com (English & Chinese)
— www.vitavitasoy.com (Chinese only)

Vitaland Services Limited
—www.vitaland.com.hk (English & Chinese)

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
—www.hkgourmet.com.hk (English & Chinese)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and
Beverage Company Limited

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited

— www.vitasoy-chn.com (Chinese only)

Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.
— www.vitasoy.com.au (English only)

Vitasoy USA Inc.
— www.vitasoy-usa.com (English only)

Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited
—www.unicurd.com.sg (English only)

Key Dates

Closure of Register of Members for the purpose of entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:
1st September, 2014 (Monday) to
4th September, 2014 (Thursday)

Annual General Meeting:
at 3:00 p.m., 4th September, 2014 (Thursday),
Salons 1, 2 & 3, Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong,
Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Closure of Register of Members for the purpose of entitlement
to the Final Dividend:
11th September, 2014 (Thursday) to
16th September, 2014 (Tuesday)

Final Dividend Payable:
29th September, 2014 (Monday)
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Financial Highlights
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Year Ended 31st March #E = A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-F —-F—= %
T HKS$ million HK$ million Change
= — . S
Results 45 BT A BEEET  EH
(Restated)
(E31)
Turnover e 4,494 4,051 11
Gross Profit EH 2,175 1,925 13
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest RETFIBUA -
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, BB ~ FTISF
Depreciation and Amortisation) e N HE AR AT 653 618 6
Profit Attributable to Equity RAFIREREE A
Shareholders of the Company FE(E 5 7 307 301 2
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) — &RXEARZEF (GEl) 29.8 29.4 1
Total Dividends per BREBRERE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) GEx(I) 20.2 19.8 2
Year Ended 31st March &2 = A=+—HIEFE HK$ million B¥EET
Turnover & %8 Gross Profit £F
5,000 — 2,500 — —
4,000 — — 2,000 —
3,000 — — 1,500 — —
2,000 — — 1,000 — —
1,000 — 33333238 33338888 e — 500 — —
sssee
i1
— m""s sm 00000000 00000000 00000000 _ 0 __ 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 00000000 _
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010  2011* 2012* 2013* 2014*
* Starting from FY2010/2011, certain expenses were reclassified to reflect more ~ * AT /T —REERL ETERCENS
appropriately the nature of the expenses. BUEEEMREBAME -
EBITDA Profit Attributable to Equity
RETFEWA ~ REKA - FIEH - ITE Shareholders of the Company
R KB A RA AR AR AR
700 — 350 — —
600 — — 300 — 5
s00 483 - 250 : -
300 — HEE i — 150 R 8
e i & i : :
200 - gaieees $8888888 g8 - 100 — ¢ S —
100 — - 50 -
- . 0 -
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Note: In order to comply with Revised Hong Kong Accounting Standard 19, Employee  Miat : &R 2 (BB EHEA) £ 195 HjEE?EﬂiE’:\:
benefits, that is effective for accounting period beginning on 1st January, 2013, F-= ¢/§ A —H ﬁ?ﬁZ;@;*%Fﬁﬁ*i?ﬁ! %E#ﬁ%ﬁ
the Group adopted new accounting policies for defined benefit plans. Figures *EE/Z":? @iﬁg@g_ﬂ " _/i¥f7 57}&5(
for the years FY2011/2012 and FY2012/2013 have been adjusted and it is not Z X
practicable to restate earlier years for comparison purposes. igz%j—_—%ﬁzﬂg HESE LB FRA T 512 2 A2
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Financial Highlights
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As at 31st March A= A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—OE —EF—= %
. . e \ s HK$ million HK$ million Change
Financial Position Bf#&iRA R BREAT BEEET  BHLED
(Restated)
(E31)
Total Assets MEE 3,242 2,946 10
Net Cash/(Borrowings) Balance Re/ (BE) 8 195 (29) N/ATEA
Total Equity Attributable to Equity RATIRERE A
Shareholders of the Company JEIG R 4R 5R 1,750 1,623 8

Year Ended 31st March, 2014 2 —ZF—WF=A=+—HILFE

Sales Analysis by Categories ®
HEBED N (RERER)

48% Soy/Plant milk S, TE¥ :::: 4% Distilled Water Z£ 887K

9% Tofu EJ& ”.. 4% Dairy Milk 21}

22% Tea &% 3% Juice Drinks ST 81 &h

6% Lunch Box and Snacks
4% Others HAth FEZa kB

Sales Analysis by Locations

SHEREDN (RibE)

42% Hong Kong and Macau
A

34% Mainland China # B it

11% Australia and New Zealand
SN N PR

11% North America 1t ZEM

2% Singapore FTHN
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In the year under review, we forged ahead in our business with strong
execution focusing on key products and core brands. We introduced nutritional
products to appeal to consumer needs. We have invested more to build
brands, innovation capability and manufacturing capacity. These will ensure our
business to grow and meet the strong demand under the current global trend

for sustainable and healthy lifestyles.

ERIEFENRN - HME
AHEBEFE HMELZEEE® -
HERELER - 5LLK
FEERNERAENBD -

Accelerating Brand Leadership

For the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Group’s total
net sales revenue increased 11% to HK$4,494 million,
versus HK$4,051 million in FY2012/2013. Growth was
broad based across all operating markets and core
products.

In Hong Kong, we maintained our market leadership
in Soy and Tea segments while achieving a respectable
profit growth. We saw strong growth in Mainland China
stemming from consistent execution of our “Go Deep
Go Wide"” strategy. In Australia and New Zealand, we
have enlarged our share in the Soy category. We have
turned around in North America while our brands led
the national tofu category. In Singapore, we became
the market leader in modern channels, ahead of their
archrival.

Despite the rising cost in raw materials, the Group was
successful in sustaining its gross margin at 48%, same
as last year, through price adjustments and enhanced
manufacturing efficiency. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders increased only 2% year-on-year to HK$307
million resulting from the increase in income tax
associated with higher earnings and one-off tax incentive
obtained in Australia and Singapore last year not being
repeated in this year.

The financial position of the Group is healthy and the
Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of
HK17.0 cents per ordinary share at the Annual General
Meeting on 4th September, 2014. Together with the
interim dividend of HK3.2 cents per ordinary share, this
brings total dividend for FY2013/2014 to HK20.2 cents
per ordinary share (FY2012/2013 total dividend: HK19.8
cents per ordinary share).
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Commitment to Quality and Innovation

Consumers are changing their habits, preferences and
consumption patterns with intensified focus on health
and wellness. We are committed to keeping pace with
the needs of our consumers and creating value added
products for them. Innovation remains our primary
driver of growth. Building on our tradition in providing
affordable nutrition to the masses, we are poised to
benefit from increasing consumer demand for natural
ingredients and plant-based nutrition. We will adhere to
our uncompromising philosophy in quality standard with
food safety being the paramount in our mind.

Building a Strong Team

Over the years, it is the passion, resilience and talent of our
staff that have made our progress possible. During the year
under review, we conducted an Employee Engagement
Survey in Hong Kong and Mainland China with enthusiastic
response rates from our staff. Our colleagues have a high
regard for the Company and culture.

To nurture and grow our colleagues, enabling them to
lead the Company into the future, we have embarked on
a Talent Management and Succession Planning Program
since 2009. We had a total of eight new Management
Trainees from Hong Kong and Mainland China joining
the Company last year for a comprehensive job
attachment across different departments to equip them
for future supervisory positions. We also launched the
first Technical Trainee Program in Hong Kong in 2013 to
develop an internal pool of technical specialists in food
and beverage manufacturing operations.

Growing Business Sustainably

We are committed to sustainability. It is our policy to
purchase certified organic or non-genetically modified
(non-GM) soybeans in every market where we operate.
We currently have contract farming operations in
Mainland China to supply us quality non-GM and organic
soybeans. We will continue to identify appropriate new
sources of supply and look for means to support farmers’
livelihoods by building long-term relationship that assure
demand, promote knowledge sharing and encourage
appropriate investment for a sustainable supply.

In addition, we seek to reduce the environmental impact
of our operations with a focus on conserving and using
renewable resources as well as finding innovative ways
to recycle or reuse energy from our operations. We will
continue to upgrade our machinery to improve the line
efficiency and launch energy saving programs, such as
heat recycling and recovery system, to help reduce the
consumptions and to conserve resources in our plants.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

We also actively engage in the communities in which we
operate and help promote healthy lifestyle. Throughout
the year, we have participated in over 110 community
events such as famine camps in Hong Kong and
Malaysia, and donated VITASOY products to charitable
organisations including food banks to help alleviate
hunger and poverty worldwide.

The Year Ahead

It is our determination to continue to grow the Group’s
profitability and build shareholder value over the long
term. The outlook for the global macroeconomic growth
remains mixed. Commodity price increases will continue to
bring challenges to our cost structure. Meanwhile, there
is a strong and growing environmental consciousness
around the world on water consumption, waste disposal
and energy usage. More consumers are strong advocates
of health needs and their voices are easily heard via
different channels such as the social media.

The combination of these shifts requires us to continually
assess our operations. Nevertheless, the demand for
good-for-you products presents us with category growth
opportunities. Our brands are trusted in every market
where we operate. With an unwavering commitment
to our fundamentals of QUALITY, INNOVATION,
INFRASTRUCTURE and PEOPLE, we are confident that we
can be more responsive in mastering the complexities of
our operating environment and outperform the market.

Notes of Appreciation

Our people are our strength and | would like to thank
everyone at Vitasoy for their dedication and hard
work during the year. March 2014 marked the 20th
anniversary of our listing on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On behalf of the Board of
Directors, we wish to thank our shareholders for their
trust in our Company.

Mr. lain F. Bruce, our Independent Non-executive Director,
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and will not stand for re-election. Mr. Bruce has
brought a wealth of business and financial experience
and expertise to the Board and notably, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee which he chaired
during his time on the Board. On behalf of the Board, |
wish to thank Mr. Bruce for his invaluable contribution of
insights and guidance to the Board and its Committees
over the past twelve years.

We welcome Mr. Roberto Guidetti who joined the Board
as Executive Director on 1st April, 2014. | would also like
to thank the Board of Directors for their wise counsel,
and our customers and business partners for their
unfailing support in the past year.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
30th June, 2014
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
EETBHEERE

The Company accelerated its growth of 11% in FY2013/2014, cycling 9%
increase in the previous year, despite a slower macroeconomic growth and
rising commodity and labour costs. A broad-based growth across our core
brands and geographies has driven another year of consistent financial

performance.

N_E—= /TN HRFE
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During the year, we focused our investment and
innovation in core categories of Soy/Plant Milk, Tofu and
Tea. Our core portfolio offering continued to perform
strongly in the ever growing consumer space embracing
“Taste, Nutrition and Sustainability”. Geographically,
our Mainland China business continued its gradual
acceleration. We restored profitability in our North
American operation and sustained performance and
leadership positions in our other markets.

Financial Highlights
Net Sales Revenue

The Group’s net sales revenue grew 11% to HK$4,494
million (FY2012/2013: HK$4,051 million). During the
year, we focused on improving topline performance via
stronger core category focus and enhanced execution in
our core channels across all our markets, with additional
newly designed VITASOY brand restage programs in
Mainland China and Australia.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the year increased 13% to HK$2,175
million (FY2012/2013: HK$1,925 million), driven by the
overall sales growth and improved category mix. Despite
the rise in the cost of labour and raw materials, we
sustained our gross margin at 48%, through the use of
selective pricing strategy and improved manufacturing
efficiency.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
SETTHAAR RS

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 15% to HK$1,756
million (FY2012/2013 (restated): HK$1,532 million),
driven by higher investment in brand building programs,
higher operating and transportation costs associated
with sales growth.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses were
HK$1,127 million, up 14%, mainly attributed to the
VITASOY core brand re-launch and sales infrastructure
expansion in Mainland China and increased promotional
activities in other markets.

Administrative expenses increased 18% to HK$369
million, because of staff expenses (including salary
adjustments, headcount increase, benefits and
allowances and social insurance provision), coupled
with higher repair and maintenance expenses and
depreciation charges.

Other operating expenses amounted to HK$260 million,
up 11% compared with last year.

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income,
Finance Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation)

EBITDA for the year was HK$653 million (FY2012/2013
(restated): HK$618 million), up 6%. Despite higher
marketing and operating expenses, we maintained
EBITDA margin at last year's level of 15%.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
of the Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2014, profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$307
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 2%
(FY2012/2013 (restated): HK$301 million). This was a
result of improved operating profit, partly offset by the
increase in income tax associated with higher earnings
and one-off tax incentive obtained in Australia and
Singapore last year not being repeated in this year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
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Financial Position

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had a net cash
balance of HK$195 million (31st March, 2013: net
borrowings balance of HK$29 million) and available
banking facilities amounted to HK$700 million (31st
March, 2013: HK$815 million).

The Group’s borrowings (including obligations under
finance leases) amounted to HK$126 million (31st March,
2013: HK$252 million). We have reduced our loan level
by 50% versus a year ago.

Accordingly, the gearing ratio (total borrowings/
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company) has further reduced to 7% (31st March, 2013
(restated): 16%) as we continued to pay down the bank
loans using our internally generated cash.

Capital expenditure incurred in the year was HK$258
million (FY2012/2013: HK$134 million), mainly for
several new and major projects (including installation
of higher speed machines to increase manufacturing
efficiency in both Hong Kong and Mainland China and
expansion of sales infrastructure in Mainland China).

Assets with a carrying value of HK$106 million
(FY2012/2013: HK$138 million) were pledged under
certain loans and lease arrangements.

Financial Risk Management

Our overall financial management focuses on controlling
and managing risks, with transactions being directly
related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For
synergy, efficiency and control, we operate a central cash
and treasury management system for all our subsidiaries.
Borrowings are normally taken out in local currencies by
operating subsidiaries to fund and partially hedge their
investments.

The financial risks faced by the Group are mainly
connected with the fluctuation of interest rates and
exchange rates. At the close of FY2013/2014, we had no
exposure under foreign exchange contracts or financial
derivatives.
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Review of Operation
Hong Kong and Macau

Consistent growth driven by focusing on
core categories and in store execution.

ES PRI
BB RIEM

EIRBOmBEREEREE
HEFEBIFEER

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEF —ET-=F —2-F —E-=F
HKS$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
BERET BEBET B EE HAREEER BN
(restated)
(231)
Revenue from external REIEES
customers Z WA 1,899 1,797 6 42 44
Profit from operations ST 348 318 9 59 59

Hong Kong grew sales by 4% in the context of a
declining non-alcoholic beverage industry.

We reinforced our distant leadership position in soy and
ready-to-drink tea. In the Soy category, CALCI-PLUS
enjoyed the strongest sales growth among our brands
while SAN SUI achieved the leadership position in the
fresh soy drink segment.

In the Tea category, we continued to grow and broaden
our presence to include PET (Polyethylene terephthalate)
bottles on top of traditional paper packs.

Our subsidiaries, Vitaland Services Limited and Hong
Kong Gourmet Limited (”Vitaland group”), grew by
10% with an impressive increase in operating profit, as a
result of dedicated efforts to drive new school accounts
and school renewals, improved product mix, and better
planning in labour and raw materials.
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Mainland China

Acceleration via innovation, execution and
expansion.

Bl A ity
BIBRIFT BT RIEIRIEZRIRE

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T=F —E-F —T-=F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
BEEER BEBEETT BALLEE EAKEERB AL
Revenue from external REIHEER
customers ZWA 1,505 1,174 28 34 29
Profit from operations s Al 145 122 19 24 23

Our business continued its year-on-year acceleration
despite a challenging environment of slowing economic
growth, rising operating costs especially in raw materials
and labour.

We unified VITASQOY regional programs into a national
one, re-launched the brand behind new packaging
graphics harmonising with Hong Kong’s VITASOY brand
equities, and launched a new communication campaign
emphasising the product’s unique functional benefits.
We executed this strongly and consistently.

We activated our VITA Tea platform with renewed
execution and expansion effort of our flagship VITA
Lemon Tea. The product received unprecedented
customer and consumer acceptance, adding a new
revenue stream to the business and strong growth
beyond its previous Guangdong borders.

We accelerated the horizontal expansion of our offering
in Southern, Eastern and Central China, through the
continued execution of our “Go Deep Go Wide"”
strategy, expanding our presence to Jiangsu, Anhui,
Hebei, Wuhan and Fujian.

Gross margin was protected through selective and timely
pricing strategy and the increase in sales volume which
improved manufacturing and cost efficiency at the plant
level.
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Australia and New Zealand

Solid growth behind VITASOY restage,

BN # P e
BEEZR M ERERE

offset by weakened Australian dollar. R /ﬁ:”xm TAZ (B FT AL ©
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImEF —T—=%F —E-F —ZT—=F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
BEEETT BEBET BALE HAREERERBE T
Revenue from external REINEEP

customers Pl N 492 516 -5 1 13
Profit from operations R A 87 88 -1 15 17

The plant milk category showed a strong growth behind
an increasing consumer interest in functional health
propositions and product innovation. In this context,
we recorded a solid growth in sales revenue of 7% and
operating profit of 9% in local currency.

We restaged our core VITASOY range with new
packaging and new integrated TV campaign leveraging
our Australian grown whole bean proposition, which
helped us to achieve the No.1 position in Soymilk
market. We also launched a new “Organic” variant of
CAFE FOR BARISTAS in the premium café market.

Our VITASOY Oatmilk range has solidified the gains from
its innovation in the year before and has been leading
the market share in the category.

The shift to LD&D Milk Pty. Ltd., our local joint venture
partner, for direct distribution in New Zealand has
improved both sales and profitability.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
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North America

Sustained top line growth whilst restoring

b =M
FEFGIHERR & [AIFEES

profitability. & o
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NEF —ZT—=F —Z-NEF —ZT—=F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
BEEER BEEET BOLED HAEEERES L
Revenue from external REINEEP
customers Pl N 513 482 6 1 12
Profit from operation R A 7 0 Restored 1 0
profitability
HERR

Our North American operation delivered yet another
strong year of solid sales growth across all business
channels. We continued to expand our leading market
share position in both the American Tofu and Asian Pasta
categories while maintaining our strong position in the
imported Asian beverage market.

As the total Tofu category in the US has shown modest
sales value growth, our national leading NASOYA Tofu
brand has accelerated its growth via new listings in
key national retail channels and strengthened its share
leadership.

NASOYA launched a new packaging design, and
also introduced new Korean Tofu, TOFUPLUS Black
Soybean and PASTA ZERO Low Calorie Noodles into the
mainstream and Asian channels.

As per our determination, we successfully restored
profitability to our operation. The gain in operating profit
was driven not only by the increase in net sales, but also
by improved manufacturing and logistic efficiency, which
has helped normalise the production and provided a base
to sustain profitability in the future.

HEMEREERRAR —B-=/ —NFFH

IEEMEBRAFEFAIES - IAH

ERBYOBSREHEER - WPIEE
BAZE DR RN R RIEEE G
SINER - RIR MR EPIEE O SR ERRY
mIZHRE AL o

HAMEEERERNEENHEERSZ
mAEE BRMEAFEEERE2EM
NASOYAZ [EmhE - EERAZTENTE
REBEEHER  MRBRPK - BE
B TSR EE AL -

NASOYA IR T M NI MNsEREH
L ERBER WS ABRXEZE -
TOFUPLUS 5 2 & & PASTA ZERO {K 24
%@1|%%%ﬁ%% °

BEMAEDRD - R SEBEB S
o EBMBRTERANHEFER
K58 TABRLEERYRAENE

EOLEEMELRER  RERE
BN BE B E M o

£
vl
hrz]
El
9’_'_
=+

Fr

17



18

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
SETTHAAR RS

Singapore

Maintained leadership and increased
profitability.

F N
IFREM U RIESEFEED

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —ZT—=F —E-ImEF —E-=F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contributions %
BEEER BEBEET BALLEE EAKEER BN
Revenue from external REINEER
customers A 85 83 2 2 2
Profit from operation R A 8 7 14 1 1

Our Singapore operation (“Unicurd Food Co. (Private)
Limited”) recorded a steady growth in net sales and
double digit growth in operating profit amidst a stagnant
retail environment in Singapore.

We continued to expand our market share and sustained
market leading position in the Tofu category with strong
execution, launch of new products such as Black Tofu,
complementing solid performance of our core SKUs such
as Egg Tofu, Silken Tofu and Tofu Puff.

On the channel front, we focused on channel and trade
promotion, improvement in shelf merchandising and
proactive consumer sampling activities.

Operating profit grew by 14%, mainly due to a profitable
product and channel mix, and higher manufacturing
efficiency.
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Outlook of Operations

Looking forward, we will stay focused on our vision and
keep expanding and innovating our offering of tasty,
nutritious and sustainable branded equities and products
to cater to our consumer and customer needs. We are
determined to sustain a broad based growth across
markets and channels through stronger strategic focus on
our core categories. We are also committed to improving
our vertical growth via execution and horizontal growth
via expansion, and generating new revenue streams via
innovation. While competition continues to intensify and
economic conditions remain uncertain, we are confident
that consumers and retailers will have increasing interest
in our offerings. Our geographical footprint as well as
the integration of Eastern and Western market insight in
consumer needs as well as competence in product and
manufacturing will provide us with solid platform and
ample room for future growth. The global macro trend
(in population, climate, health and wellness) uniquely
positions us for a most rewarding and exciting journey.
We will not only pursue for growth but also continuous
improvement in taste, nutrition and sustainability for our
consumers worldwide.

Hong Kong and Macau

We are determined to keep strengthening our leadership
positions on our core brands across channels and
packaging formats.

For both Soy and Tea, FY2014/2015 will see new
meaningful innovations brought to market. Specifically,
we have launched a whole new PET packaging for our
flagship VITASOY Soymilk, and a brand new VITA Milk
Tea to expand our Tea offerings.

Mainland China

We will stay the course on our Mainland China business
model. While we accelerate our business growth, we will
ensure our operation’s capabilities to secure a sustainable
performance. We will continue to focus on our core
Soy and Tea categories and drive growth via execution,
expansion and innovation.
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Australia and New Zealand

The Australian operating environment is getting more
competitive yet offering accelerated growth and tailwinds
in the Plant Milk category. This offers an outstanding
opportunity for further development and we are
determined to innovate and compete in key segments.
Whilst continuing to expand our plant milk offerings,
we remain focused on driving superior nutrition of soy
and our differentiated proposition in our ORGANIC, SOY
MILKY and BARISTA products via growing our brand
equity with the new communications campaigns and
stronger in store execution.

North America

As the US economy is showing signs of recovery, we will
intensify our efforts to develop and launch new product
offerings and consumer marketing campaigns to capture
new opportunities.

We aim at driving sales and profitability through the
launch of new value-added tofu items in the mainstream
market and explore additional premium products to our
NASOYA pasta line with a focus on convenience.

We are also determined to drive our Soy Liquid Core via
innovation in the Asian Channel.

Importantly, we are committed to sustaining and
further improving profitability via further optimisation
of manufacturing efficiency and reduction of operating
costs through capital investment and cost management.

Singapore

We will continue to scale up and add important
innovation to start expanding the VITASOY franchise and
accelerate growth despite projected slower economic
conditions, high operating costs and tight labour supply.

We will capitalise on facility enhancement and
continue our efforts in plant efficiency and managing
manufacturing costs to drive profitable growth.
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Conclusion

While FY2014/2015 will see increased competition in
volatile economic conditions, we are confident that our
growth will continue to benefit from the “tailwinds” of
healthy trend and demand for nutritious products and
our renewed strategic focus on differentiated brand
equity in core categories.

We will continue to progress forward with our clear
strategy and business model, coupled with our
geographical footprint including big markets (such as
Mainland China and the USA) that represent the bulk
of our global market space. Next year more than ever,
our real success driver is our Vitasoy people. It is their
commitment to leaving a better legacy, the passion to
win, the humble ethics of hard work and competence
that will keep driving our results. We would like to thank
all of our colleagues for their efforts in contributing
to another year of progress for the Company. We also
wish to thank our Executive Chairman and our Board of
Directors for their invaluable and continuous strategic
guidance and full support.

Roberto GUIDETTI
Group Chief Executive Officer
30th June, 2014
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TEEEHE

1. People and Development
Engaging our People

It is our goal to continuously enhance our organisational
capabilities by attracting, developing, retaining,
rewarding, and engaging talent to support our
sustainable development.

We adopt an equal employment opportunities policy
to ensure that all job applicants and employees are
treated fairly through the recruitment and performance
evaluation processes. Our Board has adopted a Board
Diversity Policy on 27th June, 2013, with great emphasis
on the principles of equal opportunities and fairness in
the appointment of new Board member.

In 2013, we conducted an Employee Engagement Survey
across our Hong Kong and Mainland China operations.
Over 95% of our full time employees participated in
the Survey and provided us with valuable feedback for
enhancing workplace operations and productivity. The
survey revealed that our employees have high regard
of the Company image, and recognise our efforts in
cultivating a positive corporate culture and harmonious
employee relations.

Based on the survey results, we will reinforce our
corporate values and culture. We will also further
encourage two-way communications between
management and employees through regular Town Hall
Meetings and informal sharing sessions.

As at 31st March, 2014, our Group's total number of full
time employees increased by 11.9% to 4,119. Majority
of the headcount increase came from Mainland China as
we continued to expand the business there.

Learning for Excellence

Last year, we provided nearly 1,000 training and
development programs with over 9,000 attendances.
Topics ranged from management skills, personal
effectiveness, sales techniques, customer service,
quality improvement, food hygiene, workplace safety to
technical skills.
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We provided continuous professional development
training programs to our Directors and senior
management to keep them abreast of the latest
regulatory update, corporate government practices,
macro-economic and consumer trends. Orientation and
conferences were also held to facilitate alignment and
knowledge sharing.

Developing Talents

In 2013, our “Management Trainee Programs” in Hong
Kong and Mainland China continued to strengthen
our talent pipeline by hiring high potential university
graduates. A total of eight new Management Trainees
have started comprehensive job attachments across
different departments. As with previous cohorts, we
provided on-the-job coaching, training courses on
knowledge and skills, a mentor and buddy support
scheme and cross-border exposure to these Management
Trainees, aiming to equip them for future development
into supervisory positions.

We launched the first Technical Trainee Program in Hong
Kong during the year to develop our internal pool of
technical specialists in manufacturing operations.

Promoting Occupational Safety and Health

As a responsible employer, we maintained high standards
of occupational safety and health across our operations
globally. The Occupational Safety and Health Committee
formed by senior management and technical experts
from operational departments have assumed the overall
responsibility for ensuring the compliance of all work
safety and health policies, procedures, guidelines and
training, as well as conducting risk assessments on-site,
developing and implementing preventive and corrective
measures, and proactively optimising work conditions
and methods, in order to minimise potential hazards and
accidents.
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2. Environment

We aim at reducing the use of critical global reserves
such as water and fuel and minimising greenhouse gas
emissions to help maintain a stable climate which is
important to sustainable agriculture.

Currently, our plants in Mainland China, Australia and
North America have their boiler system running on
Compressed Natural Gas, which releases lower levels of
pollutants per unit of energy used and also reduces the
usage of traditional fuel oil.

In the year under review, we implemented a series
of sustainability programs with a focus on energy
conservation and operational efficiency. On the
plant level, we launched production fulfillment
and manufacturing cost indices to ensure the plant
productivity and efficiency are up to production targets
and standards. These productivity improvement initiatives
have resulted in average net line efficiency at our
plants reaching 90% and smarter usage of sustainable
resources. Our manufacturing cost structure was also
optimised to match volume growth. We launched energy
saving and recovery programs to reduce the use of
energy and to conserve resources in our manufacturing
process.

Hong Kong

We reused retired computers and programed them
into self-service ticketing machines for our subsidiary
Vitaland Services Limited to provide more efficient tuck
shop services to students. The project beat the other
seven local organisations and won the “Best Quality Tool
Application Award” and “My Favorite Team Award” in
“Quality Improvement & Experience Sharing Convention
2013" hosted by Vitasoy in December 2013.

Vitaland Group, has appointed a licensed food waste
recycling operator to collect lunch boxes and food
waste for recycling purposes. Food leftovers are sorted,
processed and transported directly to the local fisheries
and farms as fish and poultry feed.
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Mainland China

To conserve energy resources, we upgraded our boiler
system in Shenzhen and Shanghai plants.

At the Foshan plant, we built a recovery system to
reduce waste discharge by reusing cleaning agents after
a recycling treatment.

North America

Our North American operation recycled steam
condensate water to the boiler and reduced water usage
and waste water discharge.

We reused the heat energy released from the dried
Okara to pre-heat the air from outdoor to the dryer
machine to save energy.

3. Promoting Health and Wellbeing

At Vitasoy, we are committed to promoting quality of life
through a wide range of plant-based products to meet
the needs of our consumers who are concerned about
taste, nutrition and sustainability.

A Healthy Product Family

In 2013, we launched new products that are fortified
with nutrients or have other health benefits (such as low
sugar or no sugar, low fat or no fat, etc.) in different
markets.

Examples include CALCI-PLUS Plant Sterol Soy Drinks
in Hong Kong, VITASOY Oatmeal Mixed Grains Drink
and Red Dates Mixed Grains Drink in Mainland China,
VITASOY Original Oatmilk in Australia and New Zealand,
NAYO whipped sandwich spread, which is cholesterol
free with added Vitamin B12 and Omega 3 ALA in the
United States, and Omega 3 Tau Kwa in Singapore.

In Hong Kong, our low sugar products such as VITASOY
PURE Low Sugar Black Soya Bean Extract and VITA No
Sugar Chrysanthemum Tea are popular choices for our
consumers across different age groups.
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Sharing the Love

During the year, we promoted awareness of a healthy
lifestyle and a balanced diet through our self-initiated
campaigns, such as a heart health campaign in Australia
and a breakfast campaign in Mainland China.

We donated more than 410,000 packs of Vitasoy
products in the year to over 110 charitable organisations
worldwide, including food bank in the United States and
World Vision’s 30 Hour Famine camps in Hong Kong and
Malaysia.

In Hong Kong, we sponsored CALCI-PLUS Plant Sterol
Soy Drinks, which helps reduce cholesterol, to 40 local
healthcare centres, reaching 10,000 local citizens in total.

Vitaland Group in Hong Kong held talks to more than
2,000 students, teachers and parents at schools. It also
featured “Green Mondays” which include healthy and
tasty vegetarian selections in the lunch menu to promote
smart diet choices for young generation.
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Our staff in Hong Kong joined the Oxfam Trailwalker to
raise funds to help alleviate hunger and poverty around
the world. We also participated in the 2013 Million Tree
(Forest) Project and Network to support tree conservation
and plantation programs.

In Mainland China, we ran a large-scale outdoor yoga
activity to promote awareness on a healthy lifestyle.

Our Singapore operation worked with local authorities
to promote public health by giving advice to the general
public on balanced food consumption.

We also worked with local governments and non-
profit organisations to deliver health talks and activities
in different markets including Hong Kong, Macau,
Singapore, Malaysia, Papua New Guinea, Brunei,
Guatemala and the United Kingdom.
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Awards and Recognitions

BRI

Major Awards of Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited from 1st April, 2013 to
the Date of this Annual Report
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“Capital Outstanding Green

Excellence Awards 2013"

by CAPITAL and CAPITAL WEEKLY.
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N

The “Caring Company”
Logo from Hong Kong
Council of Social Services for
the 10th consecutive year.
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@
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“Caring Company” in the
Consumer Caring Scheme 2013
organised by GS1 Hong Kong.
EEEmEERERTR
2013 [BEOBE] -

Vitasoy International

Holdings Limited
MBI EIPR E E
BIRAE

“Prime Awards for
Eco-Business 2014"
by METROBOX.
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Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
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AMNET
OUTSTANDING ENTERPRISE AWARD
2013

“Qutstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility 2013 Award
from Quamnet.
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“Corporate Social
Responsibility Awards
2014" by CAPITAL and
CAPITAL WEEKLY.
CERERS) K (AER
TE) — [h¥g
BERE2014] -

“Best Investor Relations

Company (Hong Kong)” at the

“4th Asian Excellence Recognition
Awards 2014" organised by
Corporate Governance Asia.
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Human
Resources

ABDER

“Manpower Developer
Award” by the Employees
Retraining Board.

EEEEREIBESA The Champion in Team Relay
= = AR AZaR T /7w
[AA (] (Business Associates) Men’s Section

and Jardine Ambassadors Rose
Bowl of “Walk Up Jardine House"”
organised by Jardine Group.
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“Best Quality Tool Application Award”
and "My Favorite Team Award” in
"Quality Improvement & Experience
Sharing Convention 2013".

R EEREERRINE 2013 &#

%‘O%g Kong [mEERETRBAR L IRRER 2013 Food and Beverage
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List” by Ching Daily News.
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_ Mainland

Shanghai Plant was honoured the “Model .
" Enterprise in National Export Food Quality China
| R Safety” by General Administration of Quality ':F' W iﬂl

Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of

mﬂll.l"***‘h{ the People’s Republic of China.

— ﬁ t ! LEREERRE REERBINEAS
LB % [ERHH O RREERRETR
3] TS -

1 L

i m—

HEMDEREEARAR ZB-Z/ -NEFRH 3 5



Awards and Recognitions
TR

VITASQOY Light Yoga Event was

awarded " Creative Selling Award” in

Food Project 2013 by ND Media.
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The 14th Wellcome’s
“Top10 Favourite
Brands” Award 2013.
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The “Food Star “
chosen by Shenzhen “The Best Low-carbon
Evening News. Green Brand Award 2013" by
CEIGRY - [B 14 Shenzhen Evening News.
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“The Most Innovative “New Drink that
The “Food Star ” Brand 2013"” by Most Worth to
chosgn by Shenzhen Shenzhen Evening News. Taste 2013” b
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VITA
Chrysanthemum

Tea
" The TOUCH Brands
ﬁﬂ!% ?E%’g Award 2013 by EAST
TOUCH Magazine.
2013 F CRIAT!
TOUCH) frhf 8218 o

NASOYA
Tofu

NASOYA &

"Reader’s Digest Trusted
Brands 2014" Gold Award
in the Juice Category.
20144 [EE RS
NSk

NASOYA Organic Cubed Super-Firm
Tofu was awarded “Clean Choice
Awards — Super Time Savers” by
Clean Eating Magazine in the USA.
NASOYA A #/ MNBAFIE 2 fR Sk Sk
Clean Eating Magazine # [ Clean
Choice Awards — Super Time Savers | ©
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UNICURD Black Silken Tofu and
UNICURD Black Tau Kwa received

the Innovation Award and the Merit
Best Award respectively from the
Singapore Institute of Food Science and
Technology for the first launch of such
products in the country.
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Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is firmly committed to compliance of statutory and
regulatory corporate governance standards and
adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board of Directors (the
“Board"”) of the Company will review the corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure
alignment of interests and expectations from our
shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended
31st March, 2014, complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for code
provision A.6.7 as explained below.

Code provision A.6.7 Independent non-executive
directors and non-executive
directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of
shareholders.

One Independent Non-executive Director was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 5th September, 2013 due to sickness.

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is
vested in the Board. The Board has established various
committees to manage and oversee the specified affairs
of the Company. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power of the Company to the Executive
Directors and Senior Management of the Company.

The Board is committed to strive to achieve high
standards of Corporate Governance practices as well
as the Company’s mission to creating value for our
shareholders. The Board is responsible for developing
the strategic directions for the Company and continuous
monitoring of the performance of the general
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management of the Company. Therefore strategic
planning has become a very crucial part of the Board's
function and a lot of focus and attention has been
devoted to such a plan. Strategic planning horizons
are generally three years. The Board has adopted its
latest Three Year Strategic Plan for the fiscal years up to
2016/2017 in January of 2014. The Board would take
a proactive role in reviewing and updating the Strategic
Plans periodically in response to changes in the macro
economic and business environment.

Strategic
Planning

HELNEE B

2013/2014

A defined schedule of matters reserved for Board
decision has been adopted by the Board.

Matters reserved for the Board Decision

Key areas:

Corporate Governance Practices and Significant
Financial Transactions

Codes/policies of Corporate Governance Practices;
Material business merger, acquisition and divestment;
Significant investments including large capital projects;

Set up of significant new subsidiary and joint venture
companies;

Approval for notifiable and connected transactions
under the Listing Rules;

Provision of guarantee or indemnity to a bank or
financial institution;

Provision of significant guarantee or indemnity to a
third party; and

Pledge of company assets other than for the purpose of
securing banking facilities.
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Matters reserved for the Board Decision

ARESEFHREZER

Key areas:

Long-term Strategic Plan and Annual Budget
Approval of Financial Reports
Appointment and Removal of External Auditor

Appointment of director, company secretary, senior
management and determination of their remuneration
and long term incentives

Board Composition

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
Mr. lain F. BRUCE

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO

The category, position and brief biographical information
of each Director, together with the relationship amongst
each other, are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition,
a list containing the names of the Directors and their
roles and functions is published on the websites of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.
Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors represent one-
half of the Board which well exceeds the Listing Rules
requirement for one-third.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
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The Company has received, from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the
Company for the period from 1st April, 2013 to 30th
September, 2014.

Changes in Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Information
during the year ended 31st March, 2014 and up to the
date of this Annual Report are set out below:

Changes in Major Appointments and Other

Directorships

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI

e  ceased to be a member of the Banking Advisory
Committee;

e  ceased to be a director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad;
and

e ceased to be a director of The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited.

Mr. lain F. BRUCE
* isan independent non-executive director of Paul Y

Engineering Group Limited. Its company name has
been changed to Louis Xl Holdings Limited.

Changes in Directors’ Fees EEnmevEs

There was a 5% increase in basic directors’ fees for
fiscal year of 2013/2014.

Appointment of Group Chief Executive Officer as

Chief Executive and Executive Director

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive
Officer of the Company was appointed the “Chief
Executive” (as defined under the Listing Rules) on
1st August, 2013 upon the retirement of Mr. Laurence
P. EISENTRAGER. Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI has
subsequently been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 1st April, 2014.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 27th
June, 2013 setting out the objectives and the factors to
be considered for achieving the diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Board appointment has been, and
will continue to be, made based on merit as well as
complementing and expanding the skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board as a whole, taking into
account experience, professional qualification, cultural,
age, gender and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant. The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee will make recommendations to the Board
the measurable objectives for achieving the diversity and
report any progress made on achieving such measurable
objectives. The Board Diversity Policy has been published
on the Company’s website.

Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

The roles of the Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer of the Company have been clearly
defined. Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO serves as the Executive
Chairman and is responsible for providing leadership
in the Board to set strategies to achieve the Group’s
goals. With the support from the Executive Director
and the Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly informed
of issues arising at Board meetings and provided with
adequate and accurate information in a timely manner.
The Executive Chairman promotes a culture of openness
and encourages Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs so as to contribute
to the Board’s functions and encourages Directors with
different views to voice their opinions. The Board, under
the leadership of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, has adopted
a formal corporate governance policy, with adherence
to various best practices and procedures. We have also
established various communication platforms to maintain
an on-going dialogue with our shareholders and the
other stakeholders so as to allow them to engage actively
with the Company.
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Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI joined the Group as the Group
Chief Executive Officer on 1st April, 2013 and has fully
assumed the roles and responsibilities of the former
Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August, 2013
and has been appointed an Executive Director of the
Company on 1st April, 2014. Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI is
responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
development and general management of all the
Group's operations. The Group Chief Executive Officer is
primarily accountable to keep the Board apprised of the
Company’s business and financial performance, position
and prospects by providing Directors with a monthly
management update.

Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in fiscal year of 2013/2014
to discuss and approve the overall business strategies;
to review and monitor the financial and operating
performance of the Group and its business units
respectively; and to consider and approve the strategic
plan, annual budget, the financial reports and corporate
governance related policies and practices for the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company. There are
established procedures for Directors to seek independent
professional advice for them to discharge their duties
and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company’s
expenses.

During the year, Directors have made active participation

in the Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and
the Annual General Meeting.
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Attendance records of the Directors at the Board
Meetings, Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Meetings, Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
Meetings and Annual General Meeting during the fiscal
year of 2013/2014 are as follows:

R-B—=/"F—NPRFE &

ERNEFEEH

& BRMEEER

kR Eee
BEERUALR

RIAFRE ZHFERLERIANT -

Meetings Attended/Held

HERY, EERE
Remuneration Audit and
and Corporate Annual
Nomination Governance General
Name Board Committee Committee Meeting
BERR
FHK TEER
e Exg REZEY ZEE® RBRRBFXE®
Independent Non-executive BIYFHITES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI TEEHT 5/5 5/50 3/3 171
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mELTEE 3/5 3/5 3/30 0/1
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND %4 5/5 5/5 3/3 I7Al
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG FREgL 5/5 5/5 33 171
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BEELL 5/5 4/5 N/A TNiE 7
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERRUL 5/5 5/5 N/A i A 171
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREBXE
(Executive Chairman) (B7TERE) 5/5@ 5/56) 3/3@ 171
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER REERE
(retired on 1st August, 2013) (R=—2—=F
NA—REME) 171 7@ 1719 N/A NEMA
Group Chief Executive Officer SEETHREAR
and Chief Executive RITBAR
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI FEfE =L A
(appointed on 1st April, 2013 (DRIR=—T—=F
and 1st August, 2013 MA—B R
respectively) —T—=F
NA—BEZT) 4/4@ 171@ 2/20 171@
Group Chief Financial Officer EEEENEAE
Ms. Kitty Kit-yi FUNG BRELL 559 N/A R 3/3@ 110
Group Internal Audit Director SERHEREE
Mr. Eric Wai-hon KAN EEEEE
(resigned on 13th May, 2014) (R=Z—m%F _
AA+=HET) N/A TNE A N/A i A 220 N/A NEHA
External Auditors S BT
KPMG = Ty s N/A 7N A N/A 7N A 3/3¢@ 11@
Notes: MosE -
(@)  Chairman of the Board (a) EEEGERE
(b) Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination (b) HFEMREZEESER
Committee
(0 Chairman of the Audit and Corporate Governance (0 BERRLEELRZESIRE
Committee
(d)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting (dy MEBEFKEEME
(e)  Attendance by invitation (e) MEBUE
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The Company acknowledges the Annual General
Meeting is one of the important forums to engage
our shareholders. All the Directors, except for one
Independent Non-executive Directors, had attended
the 2013 Annual General Meeting. In the 2013 Annual
General Meeting, Executive Chairman, the Chairman
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee,
a member of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee and the External Auditors attended the
meeting and answered shareholders’ questions.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman
also met with the Non-executive Directors without the
presence of Executive Directors and Senior Management.

Appointment, Re-election and
Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Company or by shareholders in a
general meeting. Shareholders may propose a candidate
for election as Director in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the Director Nomination
Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders are
published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next
General Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Articles of Association, all the Non-executive (including
Independent Non-executive) Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of not more than three
years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Articles of Association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least every three
years and one-third (or the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
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Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

Induction programs are arranged for the newly
appointed Directors on the general business of the
Company. On appointment, new Directors will also be
given an induction program kit advising them of their
responsibilities and duties as Directors under various
regulatory requirements and the Board procedures,
including the Terms of Reference of the Board
Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide on
Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors” issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Directors as guidelines on the general
principles of duties of directors. The Company Secretary
has conducted an induction training for Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI, the new Executive Director, immediately
subsequent to his directorship appointment.

Induction Program Kit for Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Key matters covered:

Corporate Information;

Useful Guides for Director;

Terms of Reference of Board Committees;

Compliance Manuals/Corporate Governance related
Policies/Practices;

Recommended Continuous Professional Development
Program; and

Annual Confirmation Forms.

The Company also arranges continuous professional
development program to Directors at the expense of the
Company. The Company Secretary regularly provides to
Directors information about the enrollment of external
training courses and seminars as well as legal alerts
and articles which are relevant for Directors to keep up-
to-date on any legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance requirements and with professional practices
in a dynamic business world. The program would help
refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in relation to
their performance of the roles, functions and duties of
directors of a listed company.
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During the year, the Company Secretary has organised
an annual inhouse training program to Directors covering
various topical issues, ranging from new business trend/
environment, corporate governance practices and the
new legal requirements.

In-house “Directors Training Program” —

September 2013
Topics covered:

Impact of Social Media on our daily life and advertising
strateqgy;

Social Media and its legal implications;
Hong Kong Competition Law; and

the PRC Competition Law.
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Following the previous year Shanghai plant visit, the
Company has organised for Directors another plant and
market visit in the United States. The visit has helped
Directors to have a deeper understanding about our
business operation and competitive environment in the
North American market.
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Ayer, Massachusetts, manufacturing plant visit;
New York market visit;

Boston market visit; and

Meeting with local management to review and discuss
about the current business performance and strategy.
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The Board also acknowledges the importance of
continuous professional development (“CPD") to Senior
Management in this highly competitive consumer
product market. Senior Management is encouraged to
participate in various CPD courses at the expense of the
Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided
to the Company Secretary their training records for the
fiscal year of 2013/2014 which have been reviewed
by the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.
Each Director and Senior Management of the Company
received more than 28 hours of CPD training during the
year.
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Directors’ Training Records EE 2155
Analysis of training attended by Directors in EER-E—= “E2-NHBEE
FY2013/2014 by topic 2mzENaH (RER)
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Senior Management’s Training Records SEEEAS 2IEIIG %
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company. Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Annual Financial Statements for FY2013/2014
are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the
Company have been thoroughly discussed and approved
at the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code"”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. A similar code has
also been adopted by the Group for the specified group
of employees who may possess or have access to price
sensitive information. Specific enquiries were made of
all Directors and the specified group of employees, and
all Directors and the specified group of employees have
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out
in the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors
that they have provided sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company during the fiscal year of
2013/2014. Directors have also disclosed to the Company
their interests as director and other office in other public
companies and organisation in a timely manner, and
have updated the Company on any subsequent changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the
Executive Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and the
Executive Chairman is an essential requirement of good
corporate governance and has already adopted the
Recommended Best Practice for regular Board Evaluation
under the CG Code starting from the fiscal year of
2011/2012.
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The objective of the Board evaluation is to review
the Board effectiveness and to identify areas for
improvements. The Executive Chairman has also been
evaluated on whether he has adequately and effectively
performed his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities as the
Chairman of the Board. Such evaluation is done once a
year.

A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman was conducted for the fiscal year of
2013/2014. During the evaluation process, questionnaire
was used for collecting opinions from all the Directors.
Completed evaluation forms were sent to the Company
Secretary on a confidential basis. The Company Secretary
has then prepared an analysis of the overall evaluation
results for review in the Board meeting.

Key focus areas for Board Evaluation for

FY2013/2014:
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Strategic plan and performance;
Management interaction;

Board succession plan; and
Continuous professional development.

All Directors have actively participated in the whole
evaluation process. The evaluation results demonstrated
that the Board has performed particularly well in
the areas of strategic plan and performance and
management interaction. The Executive Chairman has
adequately and effectively performed his roles and
fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the
Board. No major areas of concerns were revealed in the
evaluation. However, valuable recommendations had
been proposed by individual Director for continuous
improvement.
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Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and
Nomination Committee, an Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee and an Executive Committee
with specific terms of reference.

Board of
Directors

Exg

EEZEE

EFEgRTCRUFMEERZES
BERNERE /mi,\ gMHITREE
ERRFEZBERE

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

FMRREERES

(all Non-executive Directors,
a majority are Independent
Non-executive Directors)

(ZERFEBTES - EF K

Audit Corporate
Governance Committee
ERREEERZER

(all Independent
Non-executive Directors)

(EMHABZBALEHNTES)

Executive Committee

HiTERES

(Executive Directors & Group
Senior Directors)

(BITESREESREE)

WORERBIFHITES)

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Composition

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (Chairman)
Mr. lain F. BRUCE

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO

Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible to consider and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and Senior Management of
the Group, including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses;
bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes,
including share option and other plans. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director
and Board diversity. The Committee would identify and
determine the measurable objective/s for achieving board
diversity and monitor any progress made in achieving such
measurable objective/s. The Committee also recommends
to the Board on appointment or reappointment of
and succession planning for Director and Group Chief
Executive Officer.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee met
five times in fiscal year of 2013/2014. Each member’s
attendance record during the year is shown on page 46
of this Annual Report.

Reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration
policies, remuneration of Senior Management including
the Executive Directors and key executives of the Group
by reference to the individuals’ job responsibilities and
performances, industry benchmarks and prevailing
market conditions;

Approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of
share options, having given due consideration to both
the Group’s financial performance and the individuals’
performances during the year in accordance with the
performance-based compensation policy recommended
by an independent consultant;

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval
the letters of appointment of the Executive Chairman
and one Non-executive Director;

Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification
and experience of the Directors) of the Board;

Nominated an Acting Chairman for approval by the
Board;
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Summary of work done during and for the fiscal

HEARA-E—=/"Z-OHK

year of 2013/2014

Identified and selected potential candidates to become
Board members;

Discussed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map
and made recommendation to the Board for approval;

Identified the measurable objective/s for achieving
Board diversity;

Reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/
her duties;

Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
Independent Non-executive Directors;

Made recommendation to the Board for the approval of
Directors’ Fees; and

Reviewed and made recommendation to the Board for
the appointment of the Group Chief Executive Officer
as an Executive Director.

Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee

Composition

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman)

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

Terms of reference of the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.
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The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the External Auditors and their audit fees;
meeting with the External Auditors to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit; reviewing the interim financial
report and annual financial statements before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final
audit, and any other matters the External Auditors may
wish to discuss, and reviewing the External Auditors’
management letter and management’s response;
reviewing the internal audit programmes and to ensure
co-ordination between the Internal and External
Auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function
is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Group; conducting an annual review of the
adequacy of staffing of the financial reporting functions;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters; ensuring proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of
those matters and for appropriate follow up action; and
acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the External Auditors.

The Board discharges the corporate governance
responsibilities through delegation to the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee the responsibilities
of developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
Directors and employees; and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee met
three times in fiscal year of 2013/2014. Each member’s
attendance record during the year is shown on page 46
of this Annual Report.
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Summary of work done during and for the fiscal

year of 2013/2014

Reviewed the 2013/2014 interim financial report and
annual financial statements with management and
External Auditors, and recommended their adoption by
the Board;

Reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s
internal control systems and the periodic audit reports
prepared by the Internal Auditor and approved the
2013/2014 audit plan;

Met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior
to the commencement of the audit work;

Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of
the External Auditors;

Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and
non-audit services provided by the External Auditors,
together with their respective fees;

Reviewed External Auditors’ management letter and
management’s response;

Reviewed the continuing connected transactions;

Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the
evaluation of internal controls, including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions, and their training programs
and budget; internal control systems and compliance
with the CG Code;

Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

Reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and its
practices;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors;

Reviewed the status of compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
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Corporate Governance Report
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Summary of work done during and for the fiscal

year of 2013/2014

Held private session with External Auditors in the
absence of Executive Directors and Senior Management;
and

Identified and selected the Group Internal Audit Director.

The Board has a Whistleblowing Policy to provide
employees with a more consistent reporting channel
and guidance to report any serious misconduct or
malpractice internally. The Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee has been delegated with the
overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the
year, no incident of serious fraud or misconduct was
reported from employees that had a material effect on
the Company’s financial position and overall operations.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance
Policy to provide a basic framework for developing the
Company’s policies and practices to ensure alignment
of interests and expectations from our shareholders, the
investing public and other stakeholders. The Corporate
Governance Policy has been published on the Company’s
website.

The Board has also adopted a Disclosure Compliance
Policy to set out the principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
reviews regularly the corporate governance structure and
practices within the Company and monitors compliance
fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Executive Committee
Composition

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Executive Chairman)

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI (Executive Director)

Ms. Kitty Kit-yi FUNG (Group Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI (Group Senior Director,
Human Resources)

The Executive Committee operates as a general
management committee under the direct authority of
the Board to deal with certain operational matters of the
Group.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees as well as
good communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and Senior Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
is subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary
reports to both the Executive Chairman and the
Group Chief Executive Officer. The Company Secretary
is accountable to the Board for matters relating to
Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and
facilitating the professional development programme
and induction programme of Directors. All members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the
Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook
over 25 hours of CPD training to keep abreast of latest
legislative and regulatory changes and to refresh her
skills and knowledge.

System of Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective internal control system of the
Group. The Group's system of internal control includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority, is
designed to help the achievement of business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's
objectives.

Directors, through the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.
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Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department carries out annual
risk assessment on auditable areas in accordance with
a Risk-based Internal Audit Rolling Plan reviewed and
pre-approved by the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee. In addition to its scheduled reviews, the
Group Internal Audit Department also conducts other
ad hoc reviews whenever deemed necessary. The results
of significant internal audit reviews (and as applicable,
agreed rectification plans) are reported to the Company’s
senior executives and Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee periodically. The Group Internal Audit
Department also follows up the rectification actions to
ensure that satisfactory controls are maintained.

External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last Annual General
Meeting. An amount of HK$4.7 million (2012/2013:
HK$4.5 million) was charged for fiscal year of 2013/2014
for statutory audits for the Company and subsidiaries.
The amount for the other non-audit services provided by
KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries during the year
was HK$1.4 million (2012/2013: HK$0.2 million). The
non-audit services mainly comprised tax advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect
to the 2013/2014 financial statements are set out in the
section of”Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 87
and 88.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Companies Ordinance”) effective from 3rd March,
2014, shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders are entitled to send
a request to the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Such request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting
and may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
A request may be sent to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office in hard copy form or
in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also be
authenticated by the person or persons making it.
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Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders or at least 50
shareholders can request the Company in writing to
circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting
or other business to be dealt with at that meeting. A
request may be sent to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office in hard copy form or in
electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the
statement to be circulated. It must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it and be received by the
Company at least 7 days before such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the Company
within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other
period as may be determined and announced by the
Directors from time to time) and in no event ending no
later than seven days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are also posted on the
Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association. A copy of the
latest consolidated version of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
It is proposed that a revised Articles of Association
incorporating all the changes brought by the impact
of the amended Companies Ordinance effective from
3rd March, 2014; and the other changes for updating
and modernising the Articles of Association, will be
put forward for approval by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 4th September, 2014.
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Communications with Shareholders
and Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are
indispensable for ensuring good corporate governance
and, in this regard, timely communication with our
shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders
Communication Policy to ensure that shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to the Company’s information. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is posted on the Company’s
website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com)
to keep our shareholders and the investing public
posted of our share price information, latest business
developments, final and interim results announcements,
financial reports, public announcements, corporate
governance policies and practices and other relevant
shareholder information.

The Company’'s Annual General Meeting is one of
the important platforms to communicate with its
shareholders. During the 2013 Annual General Meeting,
the Chairman of the Board briefed shareholders the
business review and the outlook of the Group and
answered questions raised by shareholders. The chairman
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and
a member for the chairman of the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee were also present to answer
questions raised by shareholders. The Company’s External
Auditors attended the 2013 Annual General Meeting
to address questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditors’ independence.
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Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors
were proposed by the Chairman at the Annual General
Meeting and were voted on by poll. The detailed
procedures of conducting a poll were explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the Annual General
Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar
with such procedures. An independent scrutineer was
appointed to count the votes and the poll results were
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on the same day following the Annual General
Meeting.

We manage investor relations systematically as a key
part of our operations. We maintain regular bilateral,
open and regular communications with existing and
potential investors to ensure that the investment
community has a balanced and updated view of the
performance of the Company and relevant business
development. As such, the Company developed and
adopted a formal Investor Relations Policy as the
guidelines for conducting investor relations activities.
We have established a dedicated contact ir@vitasoy.com
for shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the
media for a two-way communications with the related
stakeholders. We keep our investors abreast on the
Group’s latest developments and strategies through
direct communications including result announcement
events, group and individual face-to-face meetings,
telephone conferences and email correspondences with
shareholders and investors. All bilateral meetings are
attended by at least two designated representatives of
the Company, while always taking reference of applicable
regulatory requirements and internal guidelines
concerning fair disclosure of information without offering
advantage to any particular investor or financial analyst.
We will also leverage media platform to update our latest
corporate development. In addition, we are proactive in
responding to general enquiries raised by the investing
public, individual and institutional investors and analysts.
In order to keep updated with the latest market practices
on investor relations, the delegated persons engaged in
investor relations activities often attend industry seminars
or training sessions on various topics.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkEEEEAER

Board of Directors

Executive Chairman

EEE

HITERE

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 73, is the Executive
Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated from the University of lllinois
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and gained his
Master of Science degree in Food Science from Cornell University.
Mr. Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and life member of Cornell
University Council. Mr. Lo is a director of Ping Ping Investment
Company Limited. He is also a director of The Bank of East Asia,
Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was a member of The National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years. He is the brother of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO.

Independent Non-executive Directors
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Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab.
(Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD
(Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA),
Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITR
FClArb, JR Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order
of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion
d’Honneur), aged 75, was appointed a Director of the Company in
1994. Sir David is the chairman and chief executive of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is the chairman of The Chinese Banks’ Association,
Limited. He is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. Sir David is a director of Hong Kong Interbank
Clearing Limited. He is also a director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, San
Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, SCMP Group Limited, and
CaixaBank, S.A., all being companies listed either in Hong Kong
or overseas. He was a member of the Legislative Council of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 1985 to 2012.
He was a director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited,
COSCO Pacific Limited and AFFIN Holdings Berhad, companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.
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Directors and Senior Management
SELREBRRAER

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (CA, FCPA, FHKIoD, MHKSI), aged 73, was
appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. Mr. Bruce joined
KPMG in Hong Kong in 1964 and was elected to its partnership
in 1971. He was the senior partner of KPMG from 1991 until his
retirement in 1996 and served as chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific
from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr. Bruce has been a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
with over 49 years of international experience in accounting
and consulting. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute. Mr. Bruce is the chairman of KCS Limited,
and is an independent non-executive director of Citibank (Hong
Kong) Limited and MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr.
Bruce serves as an independent non-executive director on the
boards of several publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Goodbaby International Holdings Limited, Louis XIlI Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Paul Y Engineering Group Limited),
Sands China Ltd., Tencent Holdings Limited and Wing On
Company International Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Noble Group Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
China Medical Technologies, Inc., a company whose shares were
listed on NASDAQ, up to 3rd July, 2012. Save as disclosed, he has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.
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Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 75, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master degree in
Law from the University of Aarhus and studied at the Nordic
Institute for Maritime Law, the University of Oslo. Mr. Erlund
was admitted to the Danish Bar in 1968 and was admitted
to the Supreme Court in 1976. Mr. Erlund is now a partner in
Copenhagen Chambers focusing on Danish and international
arbitration. He was a partner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard,
a law firm in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of
the Danish Bar and Law Association, president of the Danish
Maritime Law Association and chairman of the Maritime and
Transport Committee of the International Bar Association. Mr.
Erlund was the chairman of the board of directors of The East
Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk Skovselskab A/S, deputy
chairman of ERRIA A/S and a member of the board of directors
of PSA International Pte. Ltd., all being companies listed overseas.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG, aged 68, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2010. Mr. Cheung is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Cheung was a partner at KPMG, a leading international
accounting firm in Hong Kong, until his retirement in March
2001. He has extensive experience in the fields of assurance
and corporate finance, particularly in manufacturing, trading,
wholesale, distribution and retails in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive director
of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, Dah Chong
Hong Holdings Limited and The Bank of East Asia, Limited, all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is
also an independent non-executive director of unlisted Bank of
East Asia (China) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited. Save as disclosed, Mr. Cheung has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years.

Non-executive Directors
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Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, aged 75, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1992. Ms. Lo graduated from Oberlin College
in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Music.
Ms. Lo is a member of the Docent Committee and Bishop White
Committee of the Royal Ontario Museum in Toronto, Canada.
She does not hold/has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies currently and in the last three years. She is the
sister of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO.
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Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 66, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Oberlin College, Ohio in the United States and undertook
graduate studies in Urban and Regional Planning at the University
of Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980 and was
the President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001. Ms. Lo was the
president of the Soyfoods Association of North America which
represents 60 soyfoods companies covering the US and Canada.
She does not hold/has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies currently and in the past three years. She is the
sister of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO.
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Executive Director

HITES

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 51, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April, 2014. Mr.
Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive Officer and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics at
the Bologna University in Bologna, Italy in 1987 and further
obtained a Master's Degree in Business Administration at Centro
Universitario di Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina,
[taly in 1988. Mr. Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development and general management of
all the Group's operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group as the
Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April, 2013 and has fully
assumed the roles and responsibilities of the former Group Chief
Executive Officer on 1st August, 2013. He has 24 years of proven
track record in general management, strategic/business planning,
marketing/commercial leadership, product innovation and new
business development. He has matured his professional expertise
in two of the largest global fast moving consumer goods
organisations and across local, regional and global roles in Europe
and Asia. He has spent the last 14 years in this field in Greater
China. Mr. Guidetti is a director of Ariston Thermo Group, a
private limited company incorporated in Italy. He does not hold/
has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Senior Directors

Ms. Kitty Kit-yi FUNG, aged 50, Group Chief Financial Officer.
Ms. Fung is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance and
investor relations of the Group. She joined the Group in 2010.
She has over twenty years of diversified experience working with
leading multinational companies across consumer products,
manufacturing, publishing, banking and retail industries in the
United States, Greater China and Asia Pacific regions. Besides
being a Certified Public Accountant, she is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a Certified Management Accountant.

Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI, aged 57, Group Senior Director,
Human Resources. Ms. Li is responsible for leading all global
human resources strategies and initiatives, including organisations
structure, corporate remuneration and reward programs,
employee engagement, talent development, and the overall
human resources policies. She continuously shaped the Group’s
best practices in strategic human resources management to
enhance the organisations capabilities. Prior to joining the Group
in 2000, she had human resources leadership experience gained
from multinational corporations and sizable local organisations.
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Directors and Senior Management
EELRREERAR

Mr. Frank Changbo SI, aged 44, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible
for the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing and project
policy and strategy as well as the management and support
of plant capital expenditure project and manufacturing
performance. He joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive
experience in different multi-national companies focus on quality,
manufacturing and project management.

Dr. Joanna Shwu-Pyng Tzeng CHEN, aged 55, Group
Senior Director, Research, Development and Quality. Dr. Chen
is responsible for developing, leading and executing research
and development and quality strategies to meet the business
needs of local and overseas markets. She plays a strategic role
in driving global product direction and innovation while assuring
compliance, safety, sustainability and quality excellence. Dr.
Chen joined the Group in 2010. She has diversified working
experiences with prominent multinational companies in the
United States, Greater China and Asia Pacific region. Her
expertise covers technical management and commercialisation
in areas across food ingredient, food product research and
development/manufacturing, regulatory compliance and quality
assurance.

Hong Kong and Macau

Mr. Charles Chung CHYI, aged 59, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong. Mr. Chyi is responsible for the general management
and development of the Group’s operations in Hong Kong,
Macau and various export markets. He joined the Group in 2008
and had held senior management positions with a couple of
prominent multinational companies previously in the food and
beverage industry focusing on Greater China.

Mainland China

Mr. Jack Jie YUAN, aged 44, Managing Director of Vitasoy
(China) Investments Company Limited. Mr. Yuan is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group’s
operations in Mainland China. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in
2004 as the General Manager of the Group’s Shenzhen and
Foshan joint venture operation. He has extensive experience in
the beverage industry and had previously worked with a number
of multinational companies in Mainland China.

Australia and New Zealand

Mr. Neil Robert HINTON, aged 43, General Manager of Vitasoy
Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr. Hinton is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operation
in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in 2011. He
has extensive experience in the fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) industry in the Asia/Oceania region having worked in
New Zealand, Australia and Mainland China. He has a strong
track record in sales and marketing as well as broad management
experience having held roles across many functions including
strategy and external relations.
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North America

Mr. Walter M. RIGLIAN, aged 60, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc.. Mr. Riglian is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operation
in North America. He joined the Group in 2005. He has extensive
experience in sales, marketing, and new product development.
Prior to joining Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Riglian held numerous senior
management positions with several renowned multi-national
companies in the grocery, dairy, produce and natural products
industries.

Singapore

Mr. Derrick Teck Huat PEK, aged 53, Chief Executive Officer of
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Ltd., the Group’s tofu manufacturing
company in Singapore. Mr. Pek is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operation in
Singapore. He joined the Group in 2012. He has over 20 years
experience in fast moving consumer goods industry, spanning
from food to personal care products category. He had gained
numerous years of sales and marketing experiences and held
senior positions in a few renowned multinational consumer
products companies in Singapore.

HEMEREERRAR —B-=/ —NFEFH

b M
Walter M. RIGLIAN %4 - 7<+5% * Vitasoy
USA Inc. Z BEFRITHUAEE, - Riglan T £ B &
ERREEASEZIEMNER - HRZTZ
AFMAREE  REE  MBHEERTE
LB E A B =485 o Riglan ZEAER A
Vitasoy USA Inc. 2R © BAEREZHEZEER
BRAMES - % BEMRKARBARER
BEEEEAL -

Fhn3%

BERELE D +=5  AARERITINEZ
FREERR fi—Rm (BA) BRARZ
TR - AL EEE RERAEBEN
M2 TS - WRZFB——FMARER - K
BnEHERTS  BRERRREAAERER
BRI EHEAR_TFZEEERE - WS
NG HED HEA ZF BRI ERITINKE S
KBBEHE QA REESRRLAL -

71



Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31st March, 2014.

Principal place of business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is
a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business at
No. 1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the
manufacture and sale of food and beverages. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year
is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as follows:
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2014 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 89 to 199.
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Transfer to reserves

Profits for the year, before dividends, of HK$340,756,000
(2013 (restated): HK$334,316,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK3.2 cents per ordinary share
(2013: HK3.2 cents per ordinary share) was paid on 31st
December, 2013. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK17.0 cents per ordinary
share (2013: HK16.6 cents per ordinary share) in respect
of the year ended 31st March, 2014.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$106,000 (2013: HK$100,000).

Fixed assets

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Company
and the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

Bank loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March,
2014 are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26(c) to the financial
statements. These movements include the automatic
inclusion of the amounts standing to the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve in share capital
as from 3rd March, 2014 in accordance with section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the non-par value
regime. In addition, shares were issued during the year on
exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the

Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date
of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. lain F. BRUCE and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling
LO retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election, save for Mr. lain F. BRUCE, who
indicated that he would not offer himself for re-election at
the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, appointed to the board on 1st
April, 2014, retires from the board in accordance with
Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and
offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same
terms for rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st
March, 2014 had the following interests in the shares of
the Company and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as
recorded in the register of directors’ interests and short
positions required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO:
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Directors’ interests and short positions

EENRG - HEROKE

in shares, underlying shares and B ZRERRRE @)
debentures (Continued)
(1) Interests in issued shares (1) REZBITRD2ER
Number of ordinary shares
ZRREE
* % of
Trusts and Total total
Personal Family similar number of issued
Name Note interests interests interests  shares held shares
fErER i *hERTRE
HA MEE BARER RikfER EEER RGBS #ErHIL
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 53,859,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 155,240,600 15.01%
ERERE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.58%
TEERT
Mr. Jan PS. ERLUND 100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
Jan P.S. ERLUND %4
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i), (iv) - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.73%
BRALT
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (i), (iv) 3,550,000 - 91,844,750 95,394,750 9.23%

BRIUL

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the
total number of shares of the Company in issue (i.e.
1,033,975,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st March, 2014.

Notes:

i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in
28,702,500 shares through interests of his wife.

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 shares
held by Swift Luck Development Limited which in turn
holds such shares in trust for Lo Myrna Trust.

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 4,960,300 shares
held by Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust and
14,206,150 shares held by Yvonne Lo Separate Property
Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such two
trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 72,678,300
shares held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited
which holds such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo
Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee
of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such shares.
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Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and
debentures (Continued)

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted
options under the Company’s share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by the Directors in trust for the
Company, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
other associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

Share option scheme

(1) Share Option Scheme approved on
4th September, 2002

On 4th September, 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under
which the Directors might, at their discretion, grant
options to employees and Directors of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company. The 2002 Share Option Scheme was valid
for 10 years ended 3rd September 2012. The purpose
of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The
principal terms of this scheme were as follows:

—  The exercise price of the options is the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme approved on

4th September, 2002 (Continued)

The options were exercisable for a period to be
notified by the Directors to each option holder, such
period not to exceed 10 years from the date of
grant.

There was no minimum period which an option
must be held before it could be exercised, but
the Directors were empowered to impose at their
discretion any such minimum period at the date of
offer.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the
date of approval and adoption of the scheme.

The maximum aggregate number of shares over
which options could be granted to any one
participant, when added to the number of shares
issued or issuable to that participant under the
share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the share option
scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option remained open
for acceptance by an eligible Director or employee
for a period of 28 days from the date of offer or
such longer or shorter period as the Directors might
in their discretion determine. An eligible Director or
employee had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the
option as a consideration.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in
a general meeting, the total number of shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to any one participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of
grant.
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EEEWE

Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme approved on
4th September, 2002 (Continued)

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by
shareholders of the Company at annual general meeting
on 28th August 2012. Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid, and subject to the
vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with the 2002
Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March, 2014, there were
21,324,000 outstanding options to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme.

(2) Share Option Scheme approved on
28th August, 2012

On 28th August, 2012, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the
Directors, executives and employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”) have made
or will make to the Group. It will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company with a view to motivating the Eligible
Participants to excel their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and attracting and retaining
or otherwise maintaining an ongoing relationship with
the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group. The
Board may at its discretion grant options to any Director,
executive or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme
were as follows:

—  The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

—  The period within which the options must be
exercised would be specified by the Company at the
time of grant. This period must expire no later than
10 years from the relevant date of grant.

—  There was no minimum period for which an option
must be held nor a performance target which must
be achieved before it could be exercised, but the
Board may determine at its sole discretion any such
terms on the grant of an option.
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EEEWE

Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme approved on
28th August, 2012 (Continued)

—  The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the
date of approval and adoption of the scheme.

—  The overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes for the time being of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares as
equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

—  An offer of the grant of an option remained open
for acceptance by an eligible participant for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer
or shorter period as the Directors might in their
discretion determine. An eligible participant had
to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option as a
consideration.

—  Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in
a general meeting, the total number of shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to any one eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

During the year, 8,556,000 options were granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme as at 31st March, 2014 was 93,695,950
shares, which represented 9.06% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue at 31st March, 2014.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWmE

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Directors, Chief Executive of the Company individually
and other employees of the Group in aggregate had the
following personal interests in options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company during the year and at the end of the year:

Number of

options  Number of

Price per  outstanding options

Period during share on atthe granted

Date of which options exercise  beginningof  during the

Participants grant areexercisable  of options the year year
TRBRE

L
BANZ  HAOEZ  FRREZ

BREstE

RAFERFHER B ARBES -
TRBEHEAEE 2 L EEERE -

TR _FREEASAIREARR LB
Pz R R & A 2 A AR T

Number of

options

forfeited on

termination of

employment
Number of of eligible ~ Number of * Market * Market
options participants or options value value
exercised lapsed  outstanding  pershareat per share on
duringthe  duringthe  attheend date of grant exercise
year year  oftheyear  ofoptions of options

RENEEER

SEEREM LR Rt *
Rz RUSAMe  HATEZ BREZEZ  BRERZ

S8E% BHAE BRETES ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ BRESR BREHE BREZE  BREHE  BREZE @ﬁﬁ% ﬁﬁﬁf%
HK HK HK
i B i
Directors
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 1142004 1412005 to & 31732014 1.904 1,700,000 - (1,700,000) - - 1.920 11.020
ERERE 1162005 1/62006 to & 31/5/2015 2315 1,472,000 = - - 1,472,000 2425 -
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to £ 4/6/2016 2900 976,000 = = - 976,000 2.850 -
181712007 18/7/2008 to £ 17/112017 3600 712,000 = = - 712,000 3630 -
21772008 21/7/2009 to & 20/7/2018 3820 936,000 - - - 936,000 3820 -
/72009 21/72010to E 207772019 4580 928,000 = = - 928,000 4510 -
7912010 7192011 to 2 6/9/2020 5942 2,120,000 = = - 2,120,000 5970 -
8/9/2011 8/912012 to £ 792021 6.358 2,320,000 = = - 2,320,000 5470 -
3182012 31/8/2013 to & 30/8/2022 6400 2,822,000 - - - 2,822,000 6.700 -
9972013 9972014 10 % 8/9/2023 9370 = 1,704,000 = - 1,704,000 9950 -
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER /72009 21/72010to E 207772019 4580 864,000 = (864,000) = = 4510 9248
PRERE 9/6/2010 9/6/2011 to £ 8/6/2020 6.022 2,272,000 = (1,704,000) (568,000) - 5870 9340
(retired on 31st July, 2013) 15/6/2011 15/6/2012 to £ 14/6/2021 6424 2,576,000 = (1,288,000) (1,288,000) - 6.180 9.960
W=E-=%tA=1-HEMA)
}) Chlef Executive Officer
ﬁlﬁ
(appomted on 1st April 2013)
(A=F—=%NF-HEZT)
Chief Executive *
TR
(appointed on 1st August,2013)
(M=%-=%/\R-BEZE)
Mr. Roberto GUDETTI /42013 2472015 10 2 1/4/2023 9.090 = 2,100,000 = = 2,100,000 8.750 =
REEEE 28062013 28/6/2014 to 2 27/6/2023 9370 - 1438000 - - 1438000 9.180 -
Eligible employees working 11412004 1/4/2005 to £ 3132014 1.904 78,000 - (78,000) - - 1920 11.069
under employment 1/6/2005 1/6/2006 to & 31/5/2015 2375 94,000 - - 94,000 2425 -
contracts 5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to £ 4/6/2016 2900 156,000 - (42 000) - 114,000 2850 9410
REEREHTH 181712007 18/7/2008 to £ 17/112017 3600 652,000 = (348,000) - 304,000 3630 10.805
REKER 217772008 217712009 to & 20/7/2018 3820 668,000 = (272,000 - 396,000 3820 11.113
20772009 2177120100 & 20/7/2019 4580 1,222,000 - (406,000) - 816,000 4510 9.893
9/6/2010 9/6/2011 to Z 8/6/2020 6.022 1,812,000 - (100,000) - 1,712,000 5870 9533
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 to £ 14/6/2021 6424 2,024,000 = (92 000) - 1,932,000 6.180 9.3%
20612012 220602013 to & 21/6/2022 6.274 3,768,000 = (98, 000) = 3,670,000 6.130 9.855
28612013 28/6/2014 to & 27/6/2023 9370 - 3,314,000 - 3,314,000 9.180 -
30,172,000 8,556,000 (6,992,000) (1,856,000 29,880,000

The options granted to the Directors and the Chief
Executive are registered under the names of the Directors/
Chief Executive who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were granted or exercised,
as applicable.

# as defined under the Listing Rules.

@ options granted to Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI will be fully
vested after two years from the date of grant.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Share option scheme (Continued)

All options except for options granted to Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI on 2nd April, 2013, are exercisable progressively
and the maximum percentage of the options which may
be exercised is determined in stages as follows:

BRErE

A TITEZEBREHE (R-F—=
FMA - BRTEBELE ZBRER
SN TyBE BN - B ER AT T AR A i
ZBEDH ERIDT

Percentage of
options granted

HERBREZGI L

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

I HEReET— A E R 25%
B B HR BT MR F sk B 1%
B BHAE R = BE E 1A
B BHAEETPB s E 1R

another = 25%
another = 25%
another 5 25%

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the value per option is provided in note 1(p)(iv)
and note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests
in the Company'’s issued shares at 31st March, 2014
amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors.

BRARLBERE Y @R B HEBR
EEEZER D RIS R REMIEE 1(0)
(iv) & 5E 24 -

FTERRREMALRARG
KA R 2 Em AR

RZE—MF=A=+—H  ARaE
BEAMETIMAERTEBZ 5% A £
ZARBEEITRMER - AFHERT
BREEXFRE S5k -

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
Trusts and Total * % of total
Personal Family  Corporate similar  number of issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests interests  shares held shares
*EE BT
fEitk Frss IR
FERR Bt BARER kiR DEER EEERE R 2B
Ms. Irene CHAN (i), (i) 23,514,700 750,000 - 72,678,300 96,943,000 9.38%
RERELLT
Mr. Kai-tun LO (ii) 18,508,950 - - 72,678,300 91,187,250 8.82%
ERBSRE
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (ii) 7,548,000 - - 72,678,300 80,226,300 7.76%
BERSLAE
Matthews International (iii) - - 72,269,000 - 72,269,000 6.99%
Capital Management LLC
Avrisaig Asia Consumer (iv) 60,600,000 - - - 60,600,000 5.86%
Fund Limited (" Arisaig”)
Avrisaig Partners (Mauritius) (v) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.86%
Limited (“Avrisaig Mauritius”)
Mr. Lindsay William Ernest (vi) = - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.86%

COOPER (“Cooper”)
COOPER 54 ([ Cooper] )

* This percentage has been compiled based on the
total number of shares of the Company in issue (i.e.
1,033,975,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st March, 2014.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Irene CHAN is interested in 750,000 shares held for
her daughter Alexandra CHAN who is under the age of
18.

(i)  Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Mr. Kai-tun LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by
The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds
such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation, a
charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee of the K.S. Lo
Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in
such shares.

(i)  These interests are held by Matthews International Capital
Management LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

(iv) These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of
beneficial owner.

(v)  These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity
of investment manager of Arisaig. These interests are
duplicated by the interests disclosed in Note (iv) above.

(vi)  These interests represent Cooper’s interests through his
indirect 33% interest in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests
are duplicated by the interests disclosed in Notes (iv) and (v)
above.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to
be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Remuneration for Senior Management SEEBEAEZME
The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are ~ #Z4BRIEID 2 SEEERAEZB 0T ¢
as follows:
Number of
individuals
AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 &% 1,500,001 7L 25 4,000,000 7T 5
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 7S 4,000,001 T2 6,500,000 7T 4

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained
during the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into
by the Company in the normal course of business during
the year ended 31st March, 2014 are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements. In respect of each related party
transaction disclosed in note 30, the Company confirms
that it has reviewed the transactions which are complied
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules
(if applicable). The transactions disclosed in the section
“Connected Transactions” below fall into the definitions
of continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules, also constitute related party transactions
under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Connected transaction

(1)  On 27th March, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary,
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP"),
entered into a services and distribution agreement
(the “Services and Distribution Agreement”) to
further renew the original and the subsequent
supplementary services and distribution agreements
("Supplementary Services and Distribution
Agreement”) with LD&D Milk Pty. Ltd. (“LION"), a
fellow subsidiary of National Foods Holding Limited
(“National Foods"”), a substantial shareholder holding
49% of the ordinary shares of VAP in issue. LION
would provide services to VAP in relation to soy food
and beverage products manufactured, imported
and/or distributed by VAP targeted for mainstream
market (“VAP Products”). As part of the services
provided, LION would be the exclusive distributor in
Australia of the VAP Products. In return, VAP would
pay a management fee equal to 5% of gross sales of
VAP Products distributed by LION in Australia.
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Connected transaction (Continued)

)

(Continued)

The management fee, payable monthly in arrears
by VAP to LION, is 5% of the gross sales of the
VAP Products distributed under the Services and
Distribution Agreement. The estimated aggregate
amounts of the management fee for the three
years ending 31st March, 2014, 2015 and 2016
are approximately AUD5.5 million (approximately
HK$44.6 million), AUD6.1 million (approximately
HK$49.4 million) and AUD6.6 million (approximately
HK$53.5 million) respectively. During the year,
HK$25,157,000 (2013: HK$27,122,000) was
charged by LION.

The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing
Rules, which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.
Announcement was made by the Company on
27th March, 2013 in this respect.

The Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, considered that the
transaction during the year ended 31st March, 2014:

(i) was entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company;

(i)  was conducted on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable than terms
available from independent third parties; and

(i) was conducted in accordance with the
Supplementary Services and Distribution
Agreement on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
set out above in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Report of the Directors

=

g

Connected transaction (Continued)

)

On 28th June, 2013, the Company entered into the
Distribution Agreement with LD&D Australia Pty.
Limited (“LD&D Australia”), an associate of National
Foods, which is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. LD&D Australia agreed to
supply to the Company the dairy and juice beverage
products for distribution in Hong Kong and Macau,
and to grant to the Company an exclusive right to
distribute the dairy and juice beverage products in
Hong Kong and Macau for a period of five years
from 1st July, 2013 to 30th June, 2018.

The estimated prices to be paid by the Company to
LD&D Australia for the five years ending 30th June,
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are approximately
AUD7.2 million (approximately HK$51.9 million),
AUD8.7 million (approximately HK$62.7 million),
AUD10.1 million (approximately HK$72.8 million),
AUD10.9 million (approximately HK$78.5 million)
and AUD11.8 million (approximately HK$85.0
million) respectively. During the year, total purchases
from LD&D Australia amounted to HK$8,607,000
(2013: HK$NIil).

The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing
Rules, which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.
Announcement was made by the Company on 28th
June, 2013 in this respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-
executive Directors, considered that the transaction
during the year ended 31st March, 2014:

(i)  was entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company;

(i) was conducted on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable than terms
available from independent third parties; and

(i) was conducted in accordance with the
Distribution Agreement on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Connected transaction (Continued)
(2) (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
set out above in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Employee retirement plans

Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Company
and the Group are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Five year summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 200 of the annual report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th June, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZREN RS

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 89 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March, 2014,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
PRV A R

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st March, 2014 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30th June, 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

reiRmEmk

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BETNF=A=t—HLEFREUANBREE)

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=%F
Note MI&E $'000 Tt $'000 FJT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Turnover —E 2] 3 4,493,885 4,051,248
Cost of sales SHEXA (2,319,071) (2,125,885)
Gross profit EF 2,174,814 1,925,363
Other revenue E Uz A 4 50,690 51,067
Marketing, selling HE - HEX
and distribution expenses DIHE A (1,127,326) (986,218)
Administrative expenses T EHA (368,705) (311,657)
Other operating expenses Hthge &R (259,804) (234,395)
Profit from operations | 469,669 444,160
Finance costs B AR 5(a) (13,068) (21,102)
Profit before taxation RR % A1 s F 5 456,601 423,058
Income tax Frisi 6(a) (115,845) (88,742)
Profit for the year RNEREER 340,756 334,316
Attributable to: FEqh -
Equity shareholders of AN AR
the Company BEA 9 306,693 301,104
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE 2 34,063 33,212
Profit for the year REERF 340,756 334,316
Earnings per share BREF 11
Basic ER 29.8 cents il 29.4 cents fllI
Diluted e 29.4 cents il 29.1 cents 1l

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 26(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EEN SRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BETNOF=-A=t—HLEFEANEREHE)

2014 2013
—E-OF —T-=f
Note Ffi&E $'000 Tt $'000 F7T
(Restated)
(&E%))
Profit for the year REEZRER 340,756 334,316
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEKE
for the year (after tax (BB RESH
and reclassification PERER)
adjustments) 10
Items that will not be HETEREFHIE
reclassified to profit or loss: ZiEm2ERB
Remeasurement of employee EERKEFAE
retirement benefit liabilities ZEHEE 3,473 8,078
Items that may be reclassified HEFREEFRSE
subsequently to profit or loss: ZE&#2HEAR
Exchange differences: EHER
net movement in b 5 F
the exchange reserve = (31,159) 8,772
Cash flow hedge: REREEH
net movement in T
the hedging reserve ZE) (1,600) (19)
Total comprehensive income REE 2 H K
for the year wE 311,470 351,147
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company RRERERE A 290,716 316,751
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 20,754 34,396
Total comprehensive income AEEZHKR
for the year zE 311,470 351,147

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meBEEAER

At 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZ—NE=A=1—HABKHH)

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 Tst April, 2012
—E-ME=A=+-H —E-—=f=A=+-H —E-——#=R=+-H
Note Kt zF $'000 Tt $'000 T §'000 Fxr $000Fr $'000Fixr  §000 FT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EE&iE 12(a)
— Property, plant and equipment  — %1% + B
6 1,526,574 1,491,519 1,524,520
- Investment properties - REME 6,192 6,719 7,246
- Interests in leasehold land - RELEHE
held for own use under HEEERZ
operating leases HEtER 33,922 34,878 35,244
1,566,688 533, 1,567,010
Deposits for the acquisition BEETEE
of fixed assets ZiE 12(h) 21,412 1,784 1,156
Intangible assets BRVAE 13 7,359 9,622 11,622
Goodwill Bl 14 39,076 39,700 39,206
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 25(b) 26,457 16,452 17,957
1,660,992 1,600,674 1,636,951
Current assets RBEE
Inventories #& 16 533,328 436,492 423,339
Trade and SR
other receivables H YR 17 725,801 683,397 668,528
Current tax recoverable JEMC I EA R IR 25(a) 654 1,974 430
Bank deposits RITER 18(a) 518 446 438
Cash and Bek
cash equivalents BeSEEE  18(a) 320,425 222,602 205,856
1,580,726 1,344 911 1,298,591
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and FERBRF R
other payables Hib R 20 1,062,406 766,054 771,918
Bank loans RITER 21 51,790 150,046 305,358
Obligations under finance leases  RYATE 2 B 22 1,176 1,557 3,784
Current tax payable ERRETE 25(a) 22,157 43,158 26,256
1,137,529 960,815 1,107,316
Net current assets FREBEE 443,197 384,096 191,275
Total assets less current BEERRD
liabilities af 2,104,189 1,984,770 1,828,226
HMPEREEERAT —T—=/—NFEFR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBiEAER

At 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REE—MFE=A=+—B(ABBEHE)

31st March, 2014

31st March, 2013

Tst April, 2012

—E-ME=A=+-H —E-—=%=RA=+-H —E-——_#=R=1+—-H
Note fifsf  $'000 T  $°000 Fx $'000 Frr $000Fmr $000Fr $000F
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E7)
Non-current liabilities E =R
Bank loans BITER 21 68,068 93,123 79,824
Obligations under finance leases  BYATE 2 &% 22 5,203 7,199 8,750
Employee retirement benefit B S RIKEH
liabilities BE 23(b) 9,836 10,307 16,412
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE 25(b) 63,770 56,296 56,744
146,877 166,925 161,730
NET ASSETS FEE 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR ikl
Share capital B 26(c) 655,299 256,746 255,437
Reserves [t 1,094,362 1,366,129 1,227,074
Total equity attributable KRFRE
to equity shareholders A8 AEME
of the Company BHAR 1,749,661 1,622,875 1,482,511
Non-controlling interests FERER 207,651 194,970 183,985
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

30th June, 2014

Winston Yau-lai LO
BRE

Director

5=

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

BEBER

At 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZ—NE=A=1—HABKHH)

31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 Tst April, 2012
. CR-EEZA=+-B “B-=FZA=t-B T _%-A=t-A
Note fifiF 000 Tt  $'000 F7%  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000F7x  $000FTC
(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (E5)
Non-current assets *RBEE
Fixed assets ETEE \ 12(b)
- Property, plant and equipment  — 1% - B Rk 438,737 443,069 452,812
- Investment properties - RENE 6,192 6,719 7,246
444,929 449,788 460,058
Interest in subsidiaries HELAES 15 629,938 561,115 504,795
Deposits for the acquisition of ~ BEETEEZ
fixed assets HEA 12(h) 390 852 610
1,075,257 1,011,755 965,463
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 58 16 182,551 151,635 150,774
Trade and other receivables IR REMERT 17 386,835 362,061 339,036
Current tax recoverable JEUCH AT B 25(a) 471 = =
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEMBE A A)FUA 19 146,498 173,412 295,867
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHEEEERE  180) 157,635 102,908 25211
873,990 790,016 810,888
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables ENRAREMEMR 20 397,673 333,686 345,374
Bank loans BITER - = 50,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERMEARFIE 19 47,482 39,426 64,850
Current tax payable [ET3R T B 25(a) - 22,525 16,114
445,155 395,637 476,338
Net current assets FREEE 428,835 394,379 334,550
Total assets less current BEERRE
liabilities af 1,504,092 1,406,134 1,300,013
Non-current liabilities FRBRE
Employee retirement benefit ESEREF
liabilities B 23(b) 6,510 7,628 13,150
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEAR 25(b) 50,090 49,537 49,893
56,600 57,165 63,043
NET ASSETS RHE _1.447.492 _ 1,348,969 _ 1,236,970
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR it
Share capital R 26(a) 655,299 256,746 255,437
Reserves e 792,193 1,092,223 981,533
TOTAL EQUITY RalR 447,492 1,348,969 236970

R-ZE-—MENA=THEESZSHELR

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

30th June, 2014

Winston Yau-lai LO

B

Roberto GUIDETTI

ERE PSR
Director Director
5= ==

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ratEmEEIR

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-NF=A=1—HItFEANBETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADAREREAER
Capital Share-ased Non-
Share Share  redemption Capita Surplus Other  Generl  Hedging  Exchange compensation  Retained controling Total
capital  premium reserve Teserve Tesenve Tesenve Teserve Teserve Tesenve Teserve profis Total  interests equity
08 UL
R&  ROEE BORE RARE  BRER  EMBE  REE  MRER  ENBE  RERE  REE st FPhEs  EaLE
(note 26(c))  (note 26(d)) (note 26(c)i) (note 261cli) (note 26(d)vi) (note 26(d)i)  (note 261l
(26000 (Fistaoi0hn) (R asi) (326l (Fstae(a) (Bt 2600) (FEE26(0))
NotelfiE  $000F7  $000F% $000FT  $000FT  S000Fr  So0Fr  So0Fm  fo0Fm  So0Fm  So0Fm  $0Fm  S000FT  S000Fm  $000F%
Balance at H-%-2f
st April, 2012 IA-BER BT 344266 1,101 63307 29 (3938 2261 19 69,254 701 75480 1494355 183985 1678340

Impact of change in £ithReY
accounting policy b 10 = = - = = = - = = - (s (1184 - (e

Restated balance at A-%-2%

st April, 2012 MA-REGILH 25431 344,266 1,101 63307 091 (39,383) 261 19 69,254 12,01 TH0636 1482511 183985 1,666,496
Changesinequityfor ~ AFEZEREE:

the year:

Proftforthe year (restated) A& 5F (E71) = = - - - - - - - - 0ie B2 334306

Other comprehensive Eb2@hE

income (restated) (E5)) 10 - - - - - - - 19 7,588 - 8,078 15,647 1,184 16,831

Total comprehensive tEhaLE

income (restted) (&51) - - - - - - - (19 758 - NG 6T UG LW
Tensfer from retained pofts - HRBEHERZE

o surplus fesenve BHRE - = = - 4315 = = - = = (4329) = = -
Transfer fiom capital resenve~ EEARREAE

to retained profits REEH 2600 = = = (4,087) - = = = = = 4087 = = =
Shares issved on exercie of  5iT{EERRE

shae optons HERE 266 1309 1399 = = = = = = = = = 15299 = 15299
Tensterfom sharebased TR

ompensationreseneto  TIERAEREE

sharepremimonexercie  EESAZ

ofshare options RiaE 26(0)) - 2315 - - - - - - - - - - -
Fouiy setled sharebased ~ HIRAARR

ransactions LUy - - - - - - - - - 4766 - 4766 = 4766
Fineldhidend approvedin B -FF

respect o the previous year KRS 26000 = = = = = = - - = - (154416)  (154416) - (154416)
Inerim dividend declred in -~ ERAEEZ

respect of the curent year RS 260)) = = = = = = - - = - e B - )
Dividends pad to WEEhER

noncontroling interests— EERS - - - - - (9,239 - - - - - 0239 (3410 (32650
Restated balance at i St

31st March, 2013 ZA=t-REIER 256,746 360,571 1,101 59,220 37 (48622) 261 - 76,842 15,152 862367 1622875 194970 1817845
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e~ dE N2 gy
AR ER

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T—MF=A=1+—HAILFE(ABEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRTAREREARE
Capital Share-based Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Surplus Other  General  Hedging  Exchange compensation  Retained controlling Total
Gapital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve feserve reserve feserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
Bk hhER
R&  RHER WERE BARE  BRRRE  AMEE  -BRE  WHRR  ENBR  RRRE  REEA At FERER  gENE
(note 26(d)()) (note 26(d))) (note 26()i) (note 26(d)i) (note 26()(vi)) (note 26(d)(iv) (note 26(d)(v))
(e 26(o)) (e 26(e) ) (5 26(o)i) (5 26()i) (e 26(o)vi) (i 26(e)iv) (BfEE26(c))
Note it S000Fx S000Fz $000F7% S000F% S00Fx S00Fm  S000Fm  S00Fr S000Fx  S000FT  So0Fr SowFr  S00Fm  S000 ¥
Restated balance H-%-zk
at 1st April, 2013 IR -RETIER 6,746 360571 1,101 59,220 B (4862) 2061 - 76,842 15,15 862367 1622875 194970 1817845

Changes inequityfor ~ AEEZEREE:

the year:

Profit or the year FER - - - - - - - - - - 663 N66B 08 34075
Other comprehensie income £ 2 10 - - - - - - - (1,600 (17,850 - 341 (15977)  (13309)  (29,280)

Totel comprehensive income ~ 2EHELEE - - - - - - - (1.600)  (17,850) - 3066 290716 0754 311470

Tanster fiom retained pofits ERBAHERZ

to surplus fesenve BRER - - - 6,858 - - - - - (68%) - - -
Tansterfiom capitlreseree.~ EEAEEERZ

to retaied profis REEH 2600 - - - (4,087) - - - - - - 4,087 - - -
Sharesissued on exerciseof  5i7{ERE

share options gk 2600)) 5114 26,244 - - - - - - - - - 31,958 - 31,958

Transfer fiom share-based ~~ H=F-MF=fA=AR
compensation reserveto  AT5E{T{FERE
sharepemm onexercie  MERAEREE
of share options hefore ~ EEEAZ

3rd March, 2014 g 26(0i) - 4,052 - - - - - - - (4,052) - - - -
Tensfer from share-based ~ R=E-TE=A=A

compensaton eseneto - 3T

share apital oneverciseof - MERREREE

share options after GEERZRE

31d March, 2014 26(ci il - - - - - - - - (871) - - - -
Fquiysetled sharebased ~ HRAAR

{ransactons LUFLY) - - - - - - - - - 8,309 - 8,309 - 8309
Tnston tono-parvale ~ R=F-TE=A=A

egimeon I March, 2014 BEEEEEHE 2600 01968 (90867 (1,101 - - - - - - - - - - -
Finel didend approvedin ~ $HEBR E-FFZ

respect of the previous year RS 2600 - - - - - - - - - - (i) (171,18) - (mis
Interim dividend declredin ~ ERAEEZ

respectof the currentjear~~ ERE 260)) - - - - - - - - - - (33009 (33009 - (309
Dividends paid o RiRER

noncontrolinginterests AR - - - - - - - - - - - - B Bm)
Balance at H-%-BF

315t March, 2014 ZR=t-ALH 655,299 - - 55,133 44,095 (48,622) 2261 (1,600) 58,992 18,538 965,565 1,749,661 27,651 1957312

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial #97Z= 1998 ~ MisF T ARBI iz 2 — =B o
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

v/T\ IE@/)ILE'IHE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-NF=A=1—HItFEANBETE)

2014 2013
—E-mF —Z-=F
Note ffi&E $'000 T 1 $'000 Tt $'000 F7t $'000 F7T

Operating activities REEE
Cash generated from operations REEEMERSE 18(b) 793,739 605,882
Tax paid E%%Z%RIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - BHBAFEH (65,697) (41,521)
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong — BEEBUIMETE (73,256) (32,384)
Net cash generated from RETE

operating activities RS FE 654,786 531,977
Investing activities REED
Payment for purchase of property, ~BEWE « BEX

plant and equipment B ] (230,751) (171,489)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BERR

plant and equipment FT{550E 1,498 2,397
Maturity of bank deposits B EREBERA=fA

maturing after three months but {8 —4F N ZIHA

within one year when placed ZRITFER (78) -
Interest received BUFE 2,508 1,965
Net cash used in investing RETEMARS

activities FH (226,823) (167,127)
Financing activities MEEH
Capital element of finance lease ENMERERS

rentals paid AR (1,383) (3,778)
Proceeds from new bank loans %ﬁi'ﬁfiﬂﬁ RFT1SIIA 149,110 200,147
Repayment of bank loans BERITEX (254,121) (344,968)
Interest element of finance lease BARARERSY

rentals paid S ERD (523) (808)
Interest paid BFE (12,545) (20,294)
Proceeds from shares issued MATERERERTRG

on exercise of share options FT{3 508 31,958 15,299
Dividends paid to equity RALDERERE A

shareholders of the Company KRR S (202,974) (187,213)
Dividends paid to IR ER

non-controlling interests R E (33,120) (8,239)
Net cash used in MEEBTA

financing activities B&3HE (323,598) (349,854)
Net increase in cash BeRBELEE

and cash equivalents BEEMFE 104,365 14,996
Cash and cash equivalents ROUA—BzRER

at 1st April Re%EER 222,602 205,856
Effect of foreign exchange Exgss¥E

rate changes (6,542) 1,750
Cash and cash R=RA=+—-H%

equivalents at 31st March BeRBEEEEE  18(a) 320,425 222,602

The notes on pages 97 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR RaR My RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARAIN LOBKFE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which
for this financial year and the comparative period continue to
be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap.32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

() Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and

amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,

the following developments are relevant to the Group's

financial statements:

e Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

e HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

e HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
o HKFRS 13, Fair Value measurement

e Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

e Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosure — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period with
the exception of the amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment
of assets — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets, which modify the disclosure requirements for impaired
non-financial assets. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014, but
as permitted by the amendments, the Group has adopted
the amendments early. The early adoption of amendments to
HKAS 36 does not have any material impact on the disclosures
of these consolidated financial statements as the Group’s does
not have any impaired non-financial assets. Impacts of the
adoption of other new or amended HKFRSs are discussed.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments requires entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns.

The adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities as at 1st April, 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The disclosures required in HKFRS 12 are
generally more extensive than those required by the respective
standards.

To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 15.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments.

To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note 12(f).
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact
on the fair value measurements of the Group's assets and
liabilities.

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments to the
accounting for defined benefit plans. Among them, revised
HKAS 19 eliminates the “corridor method” under which the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses relating to defined
benefit schemes could be deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the expected average remaining service lives of
employees. Under the revised standard, all actuarial gains
and losses are required to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. Revised HKAS 19 also changed the
basis for determining income from plan assets from expected
return to interest income calculated at the liability discount
rate, and requires immediate recognition of past service cost,
whether vested or not.

100

1 FESETEER (8)
() EFTHEERZZ28 (&)

(BEBMHHELE) F125 [REMGER
R E |

(BEPBHRESER) B12RKEEBRNB
DA AETHE  BMEQRRREAARLZ
REMEB RDECMEHERNEESREZ
BIREAA - (FBHBEHSEL) £125%
RECKBREERERSHENMREEE
RIEZ

EAEBERZBERAT  AEEESRMEE15
EHZERE

(BARMBHREER) F135 [ D ER

(BAYHHEER) B13FAE—DR
T EEE RS R ER CEFB M B R
A) 28BS - (FBHHBRE LR
FAhEEsRAcRIANIESRIAR
AECEZEERE -

i

=1
e
1

off =
_}

H
w

=
T

EAKBERZBRT  REEERH
1N2OELZERE - KA(EBMBRS
A F1I3RAIIAEHAKEEENBEL
REFEELEREATE -

NN

> i B

RIET 2 (BREER) F19%[EER
A

RIEFT 2 (BB ERD F199-5 AZ R
RERAMAE G TEZER] - Hp - &iE
2 BB G ER) £195%RBU8 [ &R
A RESEGEREE - ARAAERM
2 2 i E B R NME B 2 FBHIF ORISR IR TS
FHNLERR - RBEKET2ER] - A
BEEGANFNEM2H KRN ER - &
BRI 2 (BB ER) £19RITENEE
KETEIEEz e £% - BFRHOHRE
HRRBERREFEZNEWA - LHRE
IS ERBERBRAN (THELSCHE) o

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013/14



Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 Jrft&ﬁ )
() Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EFBERZ2EE (&)
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits (Continued) RIBTZ (BBEHER) L1955 [EER

M1CE)

As a result of the adoption of revised HKAS 19, the Group HRENEET Z2(EBGTER]) F19
has changed its accounting policy with respect to defined 5% - ﬁ’glEﬂi‘ﬂ&ﬁ\i?ﬁﬂd‘i'JZﬁILFﬂ‘”
benefit plans, for which the corridor method was previously 2 & &EEBEZ SEIHEK - ZEEFTEERZ
applied. The change in accounting policy has been applied ZZZEMER MR =T —_FMHH—H
retrospectively by restating the balances at 1st April, 2012 & T ——F =A==+ —HZ&HBRHEEZ
and 31st March, 2013, with consequential adjustments to T—=F=A=+—HULIFEZLEHEFE
comparatives for the year ended 31st March, 2013 as follows:  E5I| R {EHEFAREMNT

Effect of
adopting
As previously revised
reported HKAS 19 As restated
BRANRIEET
Z(EBEH
ZRI) E 195
DE 2] ZEE KE7|
The Group REE $'000 7T $'000 Tt $'000 7t
Consolidated income statement BE-ZT—=F%
for the year ended ZA=t+—HLFE
31st March, 2013: REERBE®REK
Defined benefit retirement TR R IR
plan expense FTEIEA 2,230 2,516 4,746
Income tax expense FEBiRxZ 89,158 (416) 88,742
Profit for the year N 336,416 (2,100) 334,316
Consolidated statement of BE-Z—=
comprehensive income =A=+—HLEE
for the year ended ZEe2mkE
31st March, 2013: ]k
Remeasurement of employee EERNKENAG
retirement benefit liabilities ZEHEE - 8,078 8,078

Other comprehensive income AREEHEAM
for the year EEKRES 8,753 8,078 16,831

Total comprehensive income REEEHE
for the year Was4asa 345,169 5,978 351,147
Consolidated balance sheet R-ZB—=F=ZH=+—H
as at 31st March, 2013: ZIREEESER
Employee retirement benefit EERKEBNEBE
liabilities 3,282 7,025 10,307
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIBEE 57,455 (1,159) 56,296
Total non-current liabilities SEmB B EEEE 161,059 5,866 166,925
Net assets/Total equity FEE,/ B 1,823,711 (5,866) 1,817,845
Retained profits B8 A 868,233 (5,866) 862,367
Consolidated balance sheet R-ZE——_FMB—H
as at 1st April, 2012: Z%Aﬁéﬁﬁi :
Employee retirement benefit RIARAEE
liabilities 2,228 14,184 16,412
Deferred tax liabilities BIETRIAAE 59,084 (2,340) 56,744
Total non-current liabilities EmENBERE 149,886 11,844 161,730
Net assets/Total equity FEE,/ TR 1,678,340 (11,844) 1,666,496
Retained profits RE =T 752,480 (11,844) 740,636
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ER AR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits (Continued)

1 ‘h_t&ﬁ )
() EHBEZEE (&)

RIETT 2 (BBETER) F195%[EER

RI(#E)
Effect of
adopting
As previously revised
reported HKAS 19 As restated
PRANRIERT
Z(BBaET
ZRI) E195%
DEZ23R 4 KES
The Company ARTH $'000 F7T $'000 F7T $'000 F7T
Statement of BE-Z—=
comprehensive income ZA=+—HLEFE
for the year ended ZEHE WK
31st March, 2013:
Total comprehensive income RNEE 2 EWER
for the year B=E 273,890 5,257 279,147
Balance sheet R-ZE—=%=HA=+—H
as at 31st March, 2013: ZEEREXR:
Employee retirement benefit EERKENEE
liabilities 2,039 5,589 7,628
Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIAE B 50,459 (922) 49,537
Total non-current liabilities FERBREER 52,498 4,667 57,165
Net assets/Total equity SFEE, iR 1,353,636 (4,667) 1,348,969
Retained profits REB AT 658,585 (4,667) 653,918
Balance sheet R-ZZE——-—FMmA—H
as at 1st April, 2012: ZEESEXR:
Employee retirement benefit EERKENEE
liabilities 1,265 11,885 13,150
Deferred tax liabilities BRI E 51,854 (1,961) 49,893
Total non-current liabilities FERBBEER 53,119 9,924 63,043
Net assets/Total equity SFEE iR 1,246,894 (9,924) 1,236,970
Retained profits IR & A 567,802 (9,924) 557,878
This change in accounting policy did not have a material 3515’231'@(%2%@1?3%#13 BNEFE

impact on earnings per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to other
standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been
amended to clarify that an opening balance sheet required
only when a retrospective application of an accounting policy,
a retrospective restatement or a reclassification has a material
effect on the information presented in the opening balance
sheet. The amendments also remove the requirement to
present related notes to the opening balance sheet when such
statement is presented.

Since the Group considers that the restatement resulting from
the adoption of revised HKAS 19 has a material impact on the
opening balance sheet, an additional balance sheet as at 1st
April, 2012 has been presented in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, financial
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on
these financial statements because the Group has not offset
financial instruments, nor has it entered into master netting
arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to the
disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n) depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

104

1 EESFTEER @)
(d) MIEBA AR IEIERER

MEBARRANREMEH 2 EE - EAEE
H2RRXER I EKESIARESHZ[0O
H RARNEHERITEERIMPEEZ
FoH o AIAREEZEGZER - EFEAE
BRETEENE  REELEEN (AAK
BREMALRE)

KB QR 2 R ERZIEHIEL R A HEE
AR B M BERGES BB REREE AR -
SERRRzHZESR RBMEERE
AREBARRZE 2R BHESE ZEFR
I A - R B B I TS IRR I 2 B
3o MEHEEE  SEARRZHEHZIRS
%EZ*@%EEETE%@IEWEWIﬁZﬁEﬁ

FEPRRCHE 5148 JF AN A H &% Sk R B 1R 2 Y
BARIE MASEYRBEREEDRTHS
ANBE A IMER - S ANEBEREBHZS
REEANATHABETELANER - 5L
EhEAHME  AEBEAERRAAER
FFEBERATEM B AR 2 F R BRI EE
Lo Bt 2 IR i s o

FERRERERAEERBER 2B BN
A BRRAREFEABEEDESFHE
5l o JEERRAE IR PTIE AR B R AE 2 AR
AREBMALEEEmEERERES - B
RAFEE 2 @a M EE R ERSEEER
IR mEmARARERAAZBZD
B o FERBRITBAZERNZFRB A
ZHMAKNEERZERE 2 EEREM
51{1(m)ﬁ(n)ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁEEEEEJZ%@EE
BfE -

A 82 )R S IR AR R I 2 AR
B AERR B AL - IR BBAERA S
%2 I8 B IE AR 25 6 A IR AR B A
WEY  ETAEHELRREE -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013/14



Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties held under operating leases are
accounted for as if they were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(i)). Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(t)iii).

(g) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(j)ii)):

- Freehold land and buildings;

—  Land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease (see note 1(i));

—  Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note 1(i));
and

—  Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

(i) Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

(i)  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

(iii)  Estimated useful lives of other plant and equipment are

as follows:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 15 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3 - 12 years
Motor vehicles 4 - 6 years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in
progress until such time when the assets are substantially
completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(j)ii)).
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Brand name
- Customer list

20 years
7 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

(i) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

—  Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note
1(f)); and

—  Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)
(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years, or where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f) and note

1(9).

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(j)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(f)). Impairment losses are recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(j)(ii).
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For financial assets carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material.

-  For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of the
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  investment properties;

- interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance
sheet.
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates

used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

112

1 FESETEER (8)
() EERE &)
(i) HEEZRE (F)

WA EMBRETR - AEHhstZBEEEZH
WESE - o BB ME - TwResA
ERETREE - TREFEAETRD
T e

-  FIERAMEEER

BEZARESESEAABRELERAE
FEREBEMER ZREE - RFHER
BER - &M RTATITR XA RIR
EREFREHRE - ZMRERBRHGE
Bt E¥REEEMNZEEZBARE
@ o WEREEMEEZRERAER LR
EBYNEMEEMELEZRERA - Blnt
BUYELRERAZKNEEMARS (AR
ELEN) BERAKEIEE -

- HERREEE

BEAHMBZASELEUIREBSR
HA] b5 580 Ble R Bl Es
TE CRASEABNER Y REBAR S L

DEFHRE DEEZRSELBM (K—
%EE&) ZEMEEZREE - ARZLDH
HIRZ B (3 —HE) REMEE 2K
EE - HEEREEDA [ HEZEREER
NRBEREHERAN (WA E) ERE
B (WELEEE) o

- REEEED
EEBUIINCEEMS @ KA UEE R E
SREFELEENES - RIERKREES

e - B R EEBE AL -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013/14
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b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset'’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

() Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)
(i), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

(n) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with
note 1(r)(i), payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of
any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligation (Continued)

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and
loss and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”,
“marketing, selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative
expenses” or “other operating expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed,
or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit and loss at
the earlier of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs
and when related restructuring costs or termination benefits
are recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period is
determined by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting
period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The discount
rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans
are recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their services in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plans that are attributable to contributions made
by the Group. The discount rate is the yield at the balance
sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligation.
The obligation is calculated by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in the share-based compensation reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based compensation reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(9) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHBBIN  AERESTE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(g) Income tax (Continued)

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible

and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

(a)
(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

(Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have changed, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group or the Company
under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group or the Company is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on re-measurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any
gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary item,
which is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the
effective portion of the foreign currency gains or losses on the
hedging instrument also are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any foreign currency gains or
losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included
in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects
profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative
unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss immediately.

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or picked up by customers or when goods
are shipped on board/arrived the designated port which are
taken to be the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of returns, rebates and discounts.

(ii) Service fees

Service fees are recognised when the related services are
provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
statement initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those non-derivative
monetary items used to hedge foreign currency risk which are
recognised in other comprehensive income (see note 1(s)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary
items that in substance form part of the net investment in an
operation outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax,
are reclassified to equity on consolidation.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost, as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

(w) Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of
overhaul, is expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAHAIN ABEEHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(x) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or a parent of
the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 14, 23 and 24 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment assessment, defined benefit retirement liabilities
and the fair value of share options granted. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of fixed assets and intangible
assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these
assets may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount. However, actual sales
volumes, selling prices and operating costs may be different
from assumptions which may require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the assets affected. Details of the
nature and carrying amounts of fixed assets and intangible
assets are disclosed in notes 12 and 13, respectively.
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(b) Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets (see note 12) are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and the estimated residual values, if
any, of the assets at least annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based
on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

() Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets (see note 13) are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of amortisation charge to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s experience with similar assets. The amortisation charge
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

(d) Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of the debtors to
make required payments. The Group estimates the future cash
flows based on the ageing of the trade receivables balance as
disclosed in note 17, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

(e) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption and
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write down
of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable
value of inventories decline below the carrying amount.
However, actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this
estimation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(f) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax benefits can be utilised, management’s judgements is
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management's assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 25 (b).

3 Turnover and segment reporting

(a) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are
organised by geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following five reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

—  The Hong Kong and Macau business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soymilk, tea, water, juice,
tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale of beverages in Macau and
overseas and the operating of tuck shops and catering
businesses;

—  The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soymilk, tea, juice, etc. in
Mainland China;

—  The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents

the manufacture and sale of soymilk and rice milk in
Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

—  The North America business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of tofu and pasta; and sale of
imported soymilk, imported juice, imported tea, etc. in
North America; and

—  The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soy related products in Singapore and sale of
soy related products in overseas.

All of the Group’s turnover is generated from the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of deferred tax assets,
current tax recoverable and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors and bills payable attributable
to the manufacture and sales activities of the individual
segments, bank loans and obligations under finance leases
managed directly by the segments and current liabilities
with the exception of employee retirement benefit liabilities,
current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other corporate
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group's
profit is further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. Income tax is not allocated to reporting
segments. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit
margin.

The accounting policies of the reporting segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 1.
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b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXFERDIHHE @)
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEPRE (&)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () 2HHEE BEREES (B)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as HE-_ZT—MFER-_T—=F=HA=+—H
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for IFFE  BEAMAEBTZRETHEEAS
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment 2t 2 BRAELE &k H BRI 2 ANERE A
performance for the years ended 31st March, 2014 and 2013 REHEBERAT ¢

is set out below:

Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China  Australia & New Zealand North America Singapore Total
FERAN FER BNRHER M iR ast
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“T-RF R Z®-ME -F--F “%-MF -F-=F “B-BF —F-ZF "F-BF -F-=F "B-PIEF -F-=F
§000Fx $000Fx $000F7 $000F7 $000Fx $000FxL $000F7 $000F7w $000F% $000FIL $000FT $000F7

(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (&51)
Revenue from external RESNEEE
customers ZBA 1,898,598 1,796,588 1,504,785 1,174,228 492,359 515,685 512,662 481,616 85,481 83,131 4,493,885 4,051,248
Inter-segment revenue DEBEBA 89,527 80,410 126,215 112,932 510 392 - 212 - - 216,252 193,946
Reportable segment AREDH
revenue ZBA 1,988,125 1,876,998 1,631,000 1,287,160 492,869 516,077 512,662 481,828 85,481 83,131 4,710,137 4,245,194
Reportable segment BREND
profit from operations SRR 347,664 317,895 144,665 122,426 86,735 87,914 1315 35 8,323 7,128 594,702 535,398
Interest income from bank ~ $B77E
deposits ZFIBHA 1375 609 408 545 686 788 9 = 1 2 2,479 1,944
Finance costs REMK (36) (208)  (5363)  (10548) (7,435  (10319) (234) (31 - - (13,088 (21,102)
Depreciation and EEZHE
amortisation for the year KB # (83,959) (75,626) (57,312) (55,352) (25,286) (27,488) (14,691) (12,882) (4,360) (4,323)  (185,608)  (175,671)
Other material HER
non-cash items: FREBER
- Equity settled share-based - WATR1 B3R
payment expenses EHZEBR (1335 (778) (404) (241) - = - = - = (1,739) (1,019)

Reportable segment BREDH
assets ZBE 1,764,284 1,756,571 1,128,957 896,372 402,452 490,799 240,154 208,057 102,717 100,989 3,638,564 3,452,788

Reportable segment BREHD
liabilities Z8fE 458,496 370,117 671,048 523,340 161,966 243,012 85,265 217,640 1,171 10,609 1,387,946 1,364,718

Additions to non-current A
segment assets during ~ ZFERE
the year PHEE 78,111 64,292 161,538 25,987 4,617 23,553 31,309 18,601 2,763 2,443 278,338 134,876
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

. poneys £ .
3 Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXFERIHTBWE @
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEBHRE (&
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) AHREIHWA - 85 - EEREEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities iR
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=fF
$'000 T 7T $'000 FJT
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue AMED I 2 WA 4,710,137 4,245,194
Elimination of inter-segment revenue o EBEU A Z i gH (216,252) (193,946)
Consolidated turnover IRAEEERE 4,493,885 4,051,248
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=fF
$'000 Tt $'000 F Iz
(Restated)
(&B51)
Profit e Al
Reportable segment profit from operations AMED I 2L E R 594,702 535,398
Finance costs B KA (13,068) (21,102)
Unallocated head office and RABL 2 BAR R
corporate expenses T¥EH (125,033) (91,238)
Consolidated profit before taxation AR AR R 456,601 423,058
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=fF
$°000 Tt $'000 Tt
Interest income 2 WA
Reportable segment interest income /,\a&li%’ﬁa‘BZ?’F'J,%'\HﬁU\ 2,479 1,944
Unallocated head office and RpBL 2 18
corporate interest income ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ&)\ 29 21
Consolidated interest income fra FLEWA 2,508 1,965
2014 2013
—T-IF ==
$'000 Tt $'000 FIT
Equity settled share-based LUR 6 BN R ER
payment expenses ZE&H
Reportable segment expenses BAREDH2ER 1,739 1,019
Unallocated head office and KRBz BAR R
corporate expenses TEER 6,570 3,747
Consolidated equity settled share-based AR BT SR ERE 2
payment expenses maER 8,309 4,766
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(BEAHAN OEEHE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

(b)
(i)

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) 55 (/;)
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=
$'000 Tt $'000 FJT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AMEDH 2 EE 3,638,564 3,452,788
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 B [ B MR 2 HH 3E (429,752) (529,788)
3,208,812 2,923,000
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE = 26,457 16,452
Current tax recoverable JE YR BR R 18 654 1,974
Unallocated head office and RABL 2 BRI R
corporate assets EEE 5,795 4,159
Consolidated total assets REBEE 3,241,718 2,945,585
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=%F
$'000 Tt $'000 F7T
(Restated)
(&5))
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities BmESE 2 AE 1,387,946 1,364,718
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 B[ B A 3 2 i 8E (225,576) (348,007)
1,162,370 1,016,711
Employee retirement benefit liabilities BERAKBNEE 9,836 10,307
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 63,770 56,296
Current tax payable FE 3R BRI IR 22,157 43,158
Unallocated head office and KRBz BRI R
corporate liabilities Tt¥aE 26,273 1,268
Consolidated total liabilities meEaE 1,284,406 1,127,740

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic
location of the Group’s fixed assets, deposits for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed assets and
deposits for the acquisition of fixed assets, and the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill.

(b) ZEBHRE (&)
(iii) HLEER

TREBVBERAASEETEE  BEYE
BENZE 2 E BEEENRBE ([F
EIERBDEE]) BB ZER - BT
FRBEEME  WABRETEERBEREE
BEZF T AMEUBENIREZEECLE
PRIEHETE - MBI EENBEM S AE
HEBHRE -

Specified
non-current assets
BEFRE
BE
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F
$°000 Tt $'000 F Iz
Hong Kong and Macau B RORFT 559,868 566,428
Mainland China PR 658,807 562,862
Australia and New Zealand BN R 3 229,130 281,850
North America b 115,779 99,239
Singapore ¥ N 70,951 73,843
1,074,667 1,017,794
1,634,535 1,584,222
The revenue from external customers and specified non- & & ( AEBMAEHM) EARAEE KRB H
current assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the FEZEZWARAEERFEFREEE
Group’s place of domicile, amounted to $1,735,002,000 (2013: % Al & 1,735,002,0007C ( = & —

$1,651,632,000) and $553,203,000 (2013: $559,291,000)
respectively.

(iv) Major customers

In 2014, the revenue from the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers amount to 6% (2013: 6%) and 19%
(2013: 21%) of the Group's total revenue respectively.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 27(a).
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1,651,632 ooom 1% 553,203,000 7T, (
——¢ 559,291,000 7T) °

(iv) TEEF

R-ZZE—NF  REAKBZFATFPRAK
BEPZWADRIMEAREBBBAZ6% (—F

—=F 1 6%) R19%(ZFT—=5F : 21%) °
REZERFPZEEEFRRAR 2 FIBE A
FE27(@a) °
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4 Other revenue 4 HAR A
2014 2013
—ZE-{mF —E—=F
$'000 Tt $'000 FJT
Interest income MBI A 2,508 1,965
Service fee income R & WA 18,687 42,270
Rental income Hae A 2,914 2,316
Reversal of long outstanding other REIREEHAM
payables FE A R[] 6,556 =
Scrap sales FEEIHE 2,764 396
Government grant S B 3,239 -
Sundry income BV PN 14,022 4,120
50,690 51,067
5 Profit before taxation 5 BRFEEDNZH
Profit before taxation is arrived at after BRELADRAS IR, (BT A) -
charging/(crediting):
2014 2013
—ZT-{EF —F—=
$'000 Tt $'000 FJT
(a) Finance costs: (a) RERA :
Interest on bank loans RITERZFIB 12,545 20,294
Finance charges on obligations BEREEKY
under finance leases B8R 523 808
13,068 21,102
2014 2013
—E-0F —F—=
$'000 T $'000 FJT
(Restated)
(&%)
(b) Staff costs: (b) BEIRHAK:
Contributions to defined contribution AT HFERIKETE
retirement plans Z R 36,961 33,252
Net expenses recognised in respect of: TIER 2B HRERFEE -
— retirement gratuites (note 23(c)(v)) - BIRE (BIFE23(0(V) 4,271 4,664
— long service payments - REIRB S 591 82
Retirement costs RREK AR 41,823 37,998
Equity-settled share-based payment AR BT ERE 2 B
expenses (note 24) (Pfi3E24) 8,309 4,766
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEH 938,904 853,034
989,036 895,798

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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5 BRBIADEA ()

Ns AL NN2

Profit before taxation is arrived at after BREILADERNC IR, (FTA) - (&)
charging/(crediting): (Continued)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

2014 2013
—E-mF —_F—=
$°000 Tt $'000 F Iz
(c) Other items: (¢ HfbEA :
Amortisation of interests in BIEKEEHEREE
leasehold land held for own use BRCHEE TR
under operating leases 2 BESE 882 860
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 2 2,110 2,144
Depreciation e
- Investment properties - REME 527 527
— Assets acquired under finance leases - UREHEBACEE 1,610 3,852
— Other assets - EfhEE 180,479 168,288
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment JE LT BR K e ELAth FE MR 2
losses on trade and other EEBRER, (BE)
receivables 20 (68)
Reversal of impairment losses on W - BELREEZ
property, plant and equipment B E R O] (24) (72)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN
— Audit services - BZR
— Provision for the current year - NEE 2 H#HE 4,651 4,492
— Under-provision in respect of -UEFEZEBETE
prior year 137 532
— Tax services - MRS 894 194
— Other services - H bR 533 10
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments REBEK
— Hire of properties - THAMmE 56,406 55,971
— Hire of factory machinery and - FA A TR &
equipment B 1,553 1,731
— Contingent rent - A HE 880 636
— Other assets - HthEE 132 21
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment B BEFEH 4,693 747
Net foreign exchange gain HINGEE Wt 2 B (653) (366)
Net loss on forward exchange FEEREHRIAZ
contracts not designated as RARINES 892
hedging instruments FEE - 12
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) FERA (KT 16(b)) 2,377,413 2,175,362
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. . .-:. [=— IS
6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HEBRBRZAMEH
income statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) REBEEBRHIEBENT -
statement represents:
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
$'000 Tt $'000 F7T
(Restated)
(E51)
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax AHABIE — FENEH
Provision for the year FANRE 46,134 44,158
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA 2 R (17) (139)
46,117 44,019
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong AHBIE — FEEUIIME
Provision for the year FARE 71,406 49,465
Under/(over)-provision in respect of NAEEZBETR
prior years (RREEEE) 1,574 (4,388)
72,980 45,077
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EERERTRER
differences (3,252) (354)
115,845 88,742
Notes: Bt -
(i)  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is calculated () Z=Z—OF 2 EFBEFS ?Rﬁé‘ﬁxsﬁzilﬂz
at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for 15 ::‘|‘J7E iR B s K J«A 16.5% (=— & —=
the year. 16.5%) < TEHE
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the BHABEIMIE 2 KB AR 2 HIBERIIL BB
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax BREEER  CRITERAREE
jurisdictions.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEHBAIN - ABBE)

- . |:| = N2 / o

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HEBRMKRZMER @
income statement (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income () FEBRMRZIBIEBAT & (&)
statement represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) e« (48)

(i) In accordance with the relevant People’s Republic of (i) RIEMHEEPEARLME ([HE]) DEFT
China (“PRC") corporate income tax laws, regulations and BRUARE  EZRNEHRIESIEE  @ARNAK
implementation guidance notes, the statutory income tax rate RRLZIFRIN GBI BT B A B 2 ARSI E
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen and #25% - U LB BARIE =TT \F
Foshan is 25%. For the subsidiary located in Shanghai, the —H— EIEZLFHF&IF_F)? 2 B 25% -
applicable statutory income tax rate is 25% from 1st January, mEzMEARIE ST N\F—HA— ALK
2008 and that subsidiary starts its two years’ tax holiday from HMFRBLHBEE TR _T—TF—
1st January, 2008 and thereafter enjoys a tax relief of 50% A—BR=ZFRM=F250%FFEHER
reduction in the income tax rate for a period of three years BER °
commencing 1st January, 2010.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the rate BESN - BRIEEIEAR L - EE'J$$@/AE‘¢$
of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits SEFREIINECEUR BT LF+ A
generated after 31st December, 2007 from the Group’s foreign- = t—HREEZHEMNEL ZDIEZ10%
invested enterprises in the PRC. As more than 25% of the WERGNTET - ARAEBFFEREINE
capital of all the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC BEFFm25% EARE —FARBEBTMK
is owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate of 5% V2 MBARES - MEtELENBAAER
is applicable in the calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred ZHER5% o A% @EFJ&&HEWEEP BIHNE
tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on the EERAIERLRRBAUR =TT LF+=
expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested RA=1T—BHRELA 2HEMNDIEZREFIRE
enterprises in the PRC in the foreseeable future in respect of the ERRIBEAE -

profits generated after 31st December, 2007.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) MIEXZ HEE “a'hﬁﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FTE 2 HER
2014 2013
—E2-IF —T=%F
$'000 Tt $'000 7t
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before taxation R ¢ AR A 456,601 423,058
Notional tax on profit before taxation, REANRBEREEERER
calculated at the rates applicable to SR E A ERB AR 2
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned BETIE 91,309 86,606
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D?DZQ;EHZTM‘%%’E 10,782 6,235
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue SERBIUMAZ R & (2,062) (1,904)
Withholding tax of PRC subsidiary HREIME AR 2B 4,911 3,138
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIEIER IR 2
recognised for deferred tax purposes RERHBEE R E 14,812 4,221
Under/(over)-provision in respect of NAFEZEBENR
prior years (EBEERE) 1,557 (4,527)
Others HAh (5.464) (5,027)
Actual tax expense BRBIAX B 115,845 88,742
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7 Remuneration of Directors and Chief 7 EZEZER{THEAERES
Executive

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration disclosed REFEB CRREH) (F622F) HE 11
pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong 2878 {§ » W& SRIES (R al&EH) (5 32
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section =) F161ELRETMRAUNZHEEREZES
161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance  RITBUREET ¢

(Cap.32) and the requirements of the Listing Rules, are as

follows:
2014
=
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
#e 2 Mis Bk NRGA
Ezne  REUWEN  BHeRA M N BBRZAR @3t
§000Fx 000 Fm  $000Frx  $000Fm  §000Fm 000 Fm 000 i
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERERE 204 4,491 3,006 276 1,977 2,711 10,688
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER REERE 34 4,653 - 97 4,784 - 4,784
(retired on 31st July, 2013) (R=B—=F
tA=T-REM)
Non-executive Directors *HTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO ERgat 116 - - - 116 - 116
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRAT 116 - - - 116 - 116
Independent Non-executive BUKHTES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-poll ~ ZEEEL 364 - - - 364 - 364
Mr. lain F. BRUCE hRLEE 381 - - - 381 - 381
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REELE 357 - - - 357 - 357
Mr. Jan PS. ERLUND Jan PS. ERLUND % £ 354 - - - 354 - 354
1,926 9,144 3,006 33 14,449 2,111 17,160
Chief Executive e E:
Mr. Roberto Guidett BERLE
(appointed on (W=Z-=F
15t August, 2013) NA—REZf) - 5,573 2,953 198 8,724 2,532 11,256

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH 'I 3 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

7 Remuneration of Directors and Chief 7 EZER{THEZME @
Executive (Continued)

2013
“E-=f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
¢ 2 Big BRIk L]
ESfe  REWEN  BHeRL HEI Nt RBEZAR o
$'000 F7x $'000 T7x $'000 Tt $'000 Tt $'000 Tt §'000 Tt §'000 Tt
Executive Directors gz
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BRERE 194 3,909 2,607 237 6,947 1,89 8,843
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER PEERE 97 4,627 3,107 285 8,116 1,161 9,77
(retired on 31st July, 2013) (R=F-=F
tA=T—HR{)
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRERT 120 - - - 120 =
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRkut 120 - - - 120 -
Independent Non-executive BUEHITES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI FHERT 349 - - - 349 - 349
Mr. lain F. BRUCE hEtks 355 - - - 355 = 355
M. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG RRELE 336 - - - 336 - 336
Mr. Jan PS. ERLUND Jan PS. ERLUND %= 336 - - - 336 - 336

1,907 8,536 5714 522 16,679 3,057 19,736

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share AR BER 2 M FIERIEARN QR 2 BAAAE
options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share FFEIRTFTES 2 BEBREZFHEE - WERE
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured %4 2 & & JHiRIE T & 1(p)(iv) BT AN 5 B 5t
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based AR BN RER 2R HKA Z @ EEM
payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(iv). ETE e

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal WEEWEMNZF1E (BREFE L ZBRE

terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note < FZERKEEE ) RHIFE24 HHEE -
24.
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2013:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2013: three) individuals are as follows:

8 EmeamEAL

EREEZBReMEALTF ME(ZZE—=
F ML) BEST FEZ2HMeRME7H
BB HEB=F2(ZFE—=F:=8) &5
e ALtz e@sEmT -

2014 2013

—ZE-{mF —T—=
$'000 Tt $'000 F7T
Salaries and other emoluments e hEMmE 12,436 8,206
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEI R 531 295
Discretionary bonuses BB EE R 2 1E4L 5,563 3,034
Share-based payments DA B EHE 2 ST 5R 4,309 1,520
22,839 13,055

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the individuals under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(iv). The principal
terms of the share option scheme are disclosed in note 24.

The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

VARR 0 A 57 2 SRENR B AN A 7] 2 B A

AR TERA LT 2B Z AT EE - It

TR R 2 (BETHRIBE M EE 1(p)(iv) T8I AR &=

Bt AR (0 AN TREE 2 X B IR Z G5t I

fgﬁ% o BEIRAER 8 2 = ZIRFNMIFE 24
-

=2 (ZB—=F: =%) BaMe AL
BN T TER :

$3,500,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000
$11,000,001 to $11,500,000

2014 2013

—Z-0NF —T—=
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
A AEL
3,500,001 7t £ 4,000,000 7T - 1
4,000,001 yt 2 4,500,000 7T - 1
5,000,001 7t £ 5,500,000 7T 1 1
6,000,001 Jt£ 6,500,000 7T 1 -
11,000,001 yt £ 11,500,000 7T 1 -
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(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

9 Profit attributable to equity 9 ARRTREFEEAEGZR
shareholders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders AR RIRERFE ARMLGZEE R BEESA
of the Company includes a profit of $224,815,000 (2013 AR & IEREAF 2 5 5224,815,0007T (=
(restated): $148,705,000) which has been dealt with in the Z—=4 (&%) : 148,705,000 7C) °
financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit il &8 B R B ANF & a7l 2 $8R
for the year:

2014 2013
—E-IF —ZT—=%
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt
(Restated)
(&%)
Amount of consolidated profit attributable BEAAARRRMERERZ
to equity shareholders dealt with in the IHEFEE AFE(GS
Company’s financial statements e mAeEE 224,815 148,705
Dividends from subsidiaries attributable RKEHBEAR E—E
to the profits of the previous financial BB Es A - R
year, approved and paid during the year REFHAERI N KRS 39,238 130,461
Company’s profit for the year (note 26(a)) RRF 2 RNEE T (M 26(a)) 264,053 279,166

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of B MR FIRER B AR M ER 2 IREZ

the Company are set out in note 26(b). FHIBE M EE 26(b) ©
10 Other comprehensive income 10 Hft2ER &=
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) BEAHMEZEWE R EBHD 2B
other comprehensive income: = 3
2014 2013
—B-RF —T=F
Before- Tax- Net-of- Before- Tax- Net-of-
tax benefit/ tax tax benefit/ tax
amount  (expense) amount amount (expense) amount
BEAE/ BEFE/

BREAIEEE (BR) NIR%ESE KBiHassE (BR) MkHESE
$'000Fx $000F7x $000Fx $'000F; $'000F;T  $'000FIT
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)

(E7)) (27) (&5)

Net movement in the ERFEFED

exchange reserve (31,159) - (31,159) 8,772 = 8,772
Cash flow hedge: RenELn -

net movement in HREEEF

hedging reserve 2% (1,916) 316 (1,600) (23) 4 (19)
Remeasurement of EERK

employee retirement BHEE

benefit liabilities ZEHHE

(restated) (F7)) 4,289 (816) 3,473 9,675 (1,597) 8,078

(28,786) (500) (29,286) 18,424 (1,593) 16,831
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10 Other comprehensive income (continued) 10 HAttZE W= (@)

(b) Components of other comprehensive (b) EbZmEW R 257 » BIEEH
income, including reclassification palE ks
adjustments
2014 2013
—E2-IF —ZT—=
$'000 Tt $'000 FJT
Exchange differences on translation of B AL B A F]
financial statements of subsidiaries WS mRREFREE 2
outside Hong Kong fENER (31,159) 8,527
Reclassification adjustments for amounts BRSO HARERE
transferred to profit or loss: Bm 2888
— exchange differences realised upon — REHENBARIKER
deregistration of subsidiaries ZIERER - 245
Net movement in the exchange reserve during FAREAM2HE
the year recognised in other W TR 2
comprehensive income BE 3 (31,159) 8,772
Cash flow hedges: WEmEL I -
Effective portion of changes in fair value of FANERZEHRTE
hedging instruments recognised during AREES 2 BEUE N
the year (2,857) 10
Amounts transferred to initial carrying R YR B &1
amount of hedged items RHEECSRE 941 (45)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts BROEABRERE
transferred to profit or loss Bams o - 12
Net deferred tax credited to other FFAEMEEREZ
comprehensive income AR IE)F 58 316 4
Net movement in the hedging reserve FAREMEAKRERERZ
during the year recognised in other T
comprehensive income (1,600) (19)
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(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

11 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $306,693,000 (2013 (restated): $301,104,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,030,210,000 ordinary shares

T

11 BERER
(a) BREAREF

tﬂxﬁ$”ﬂ7ﬂﬁﬁﬁzﬁ AR EEE A Bl
' £1)306,693,0007T (ZF —=4F (&%) :

301 104,0007T) R FEALD BT E B Z 0

$%s*$iﬁﬂx§5(1,o3o,z1o,oooﬂx (ZT—=%:

(2013: 1,023,812,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,  1,023,812,000f% L& %) 51 & - HFF & 0
calculated as follows: N
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERZMEFHIRE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=%
Number of Number of
shares shares
B EE ighr 24|
‘000 F A% '000 FA%
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April RUA—B B #&TERAR 1,026,984 1,021,748
Effect of share options exercised BT ERE B 3,226 2,064
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2N /& I im@A% 2 HNAE 5 A% #X
for the year (note 11(b)) (P EE 11(b)) 1,030,210 1,023,812

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $306,693,000 (2013 (restated): $301,104,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,043,414,000 ordinary shares
(2013: 1,033,438,000 ordinary shares) after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) FREERF

EREZAFNDIBEARARRRESEAR
16 % #/306,693,000c (2 —=F (&
F) 1 301,104,0007T) MG B B E # 8
EER BN EEg Y @Muﬁw
¥ B% £01,043,414,0000% ( — & — = & :
033438000H§ W) ;HE - EFtE®D

_|

BEREREFRE (8F)

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F

Number of Number of

shares shares

RSB D& B

‘000 F A% ‘000 Fh%
Weighted average number of ordinary REFEBAR 2 T HRE

shares for the year (note 11(a)) (fHzE11()) 1,030,210 1,023,812

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares BREABRBRRARZ

under the Company's share option BT SIARE T BT

scheme for nil consideration LR E 13,204 9,626
Weighted average number of ordinary REF LR 2 DT HARE

shares (diluted) for the year (#:8) 1,043,414 1,033,438
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b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

12 Fixed assets

12 EEERE

(@) The Group (a) A&EHE
sronerty pantand ecgomert Interests in
foperty, plant and equipmen el
% BERER and held
landand  Factory  Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery  furniture under Total
held for and  and office Motor  Construction Investment  operating fixed
ownuse equipment equipment  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases assets
RELE
A k5 HERAlE
BRz IBKE  GAR )it 3
1HEET  RRE BAEHRA g RRIE Nt REWE DR ARG
§000FL $000F $000Fx $'000FL $000F7m $000FT $'000FT §000Fm  $000FT
Cost: B
At 1st April, 2012 RZE-—FWA-B 767,29 1672229 207492 92,082 347757 308685 22,698 40801 3,150,355
Exchange adjustments L 4,578 12,503 399 367 (1,521) 16,326 - 584 16910
Additions hE 2,297 55,489 12,897 7459 56,118 134,260 - - 134260
Transfer L 34207 326515 2595 516 (363,833) - - - -
Disposals e (125 (257400 (5879  (414) - (37.1%) - - (37,158)
At 31st March, 2013 RZF-Z5=A=1-A 808253 2,04099 217504 95010 38521 3200284 22,698 41385 3,264,367
Accumulated amortisation, RitE% FER
depreciation and HEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1t April, 2012 RZE-—EMA-H 306,888 1047216 139274 68,958 - 1562336 15452 5,557 1,583,345
Exchange adjustments 5% 1,656 6,182 275 262 - 8,375 = 90 8,465
Charge for the year KEERERTE 2886 117956 17470 7,85 - MM 527 860 173527
Reversal of impairment losses AEFRRE - (72) - - = (72) = = (72)
Written back on disposals HERED (68)  (4033)  (5273)  (4640) - (34014 = - (3,014
At 31st March, 2013 RZE-Z#=A=+-H 337338 1,147,249 151,746 72,432 - 1,708,765 15979 6,507 1,731,251
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31st March, 2013 RZZ-=£=f=1-A 470915 893747 65758 22578 38521 1,491,519 6719 34878 1533116
HUPEREEERAR —T—=/—NFEFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

. [ 12 o
12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 BIEEE &)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &N&EH (&)
Proverty. olant and equioment Interests in
foperty, plant and equipmen el
% BERER land held
landand  Factory  Fixtures, for own use
buildings machinery  furniture under Total
held for and and office Motor Construction Investment ~ operating fixed
ownuse equipment equipment  vehicles in progress  Sub-total properties leases assets
RiBge
Baf £E- BEREE
BRz IEEE  BAR HRAZEE i

thERT  REE WOZRRE hE HRIE Mt ORENE  tHER  EEAT
§000F $000Fxm $000Fxm $000Fm §000Fm $000Fm §$000Fm $000Fm  $000F

Cost: A

At 1st April, 2013 RZZ-=FMA-H 808,253 2,040,996 217504 95010 38521 3200284 22698 41385 3,264,367
Exchange adjustments ER AR (17207)  (44531)  (1,078) (369) (556)  (63,741) - (105 (63,846)
Additions HE 64906 78405 16997 16673 81413 258,394 - - 25839
Transfer a5 - 70815 13,881 1669 (86,365) - - - -
Disposals & - (57888)  (5588)  (5423) - (68,899) - - (68,899)
At 31st March, 2014 R-B-MEZA=+-R 855952 2,087,797 241,716 107560 33,013 3326038 2698 41,280 3,390,016
Accumulated amortisation, iR TER

depreciation and WEFSE:

impairment losses:

At 1st April, 2013 RZF-=£0A-A 337338 114749 151746 72432 - 1708765 15979 6507 1,731,251
Exchange adjustments ERBE (3759)  (23.840) (879) (180) - (28659) - (31 (28,689)
Charge for the year REERERINE 2690 129960 16,328 8,859 - 182,089 521 882 183,498
Reversal of impairment losses REFERE - (24) - - - (24) - - (24)
Written back on disposals HERED - (52,0290 (5410)  (5.269) - (62,708) - - (62,708)
At 31st March, 2014 R-B-ME=A=+-F 360521 1200316 161785 75842 - 1799464 16506 7358 1,823,328
Net book value: REFE:

At 315t March, 2014 R-B-MEZA=+-RH 495431 886481 79931 31718 33013 1526574 6192 33922 1,566,688
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BT ERR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

12 Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) The Company

Property, plant and equipment

12 EEERE (&)
(b) &7

Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings ~ machinery ~ furniture Total
held for and  and office Motor  Construction Investment fixed
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties assets
KafE KB
B IABE  GAR Ef
TiHREF E I NG nE fRIE Nt REWE  BESH
$000Fr $000Ffm $000FrT $000Fm  $000FrL  $000FT  $000FET  §'000FTT
Cost: A
At 1st April, 2012 RZE-—5MA-H 141,766 520,835 119,173 62,022 164,823 1,008,619 22,698 1,031,317
Additions AE - 16,856 5,337 3719 28,167 54,079 - 54,079
Transfer 4 - 159,132 2,129 516 (161,777) - - -
Disposals e - (16,073) (1,810) (2,616) - (20,499) - (20,499)
At 31st March, 2013 RZF-=%=f=1-H 141,766 630,750 124,829 63,641 31,213 1,042,199 22,698 1,064,897
Accumulated depreciation: 7% :
At 1st April, 2012 NZE--FMA-H 76,533 362,439 67,184 49,651 - 555,807 15,452 571,259
Charge for the year rEENE 4215 43714 10,290 4,464 = 62,683 527 63,210
Written back on disposals ~ HEREL - (15,618) (1,762) (1,980) - (19,360) - (19,360)
At 31st March, 2013 RZB-Z5=A=1-H 80,748 390,535 75,712 52,135 - 599,130 15979 615,109
Net book value: REFE:
At 31st March, 2013 RZE-=5=A=+-H 61,018 290,215 49,117 11,506 31,213 443,069 6,719 449,788
HEMMBEREEERAT —B—=/—NFFHR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 BIEEE &)
(b) The Company (Continued) (b) &"ATF] (&)
Property, plant and equipment
0% BERRE
Land and Factory  Fixtures,
buildings  machinery  furniture Total
held for and  and office Motor Construction Investment fixed
ownuse equipment equipment  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total properties assets
K5t HE-
B  IH#E BRR B

1HRET LE I nE ERIE M OREME EEAR
§000F  $000Fxm $000F:m $'000Fk $000FT §'000FT  §'000FT  §'000F 7

Cost: RA

At 1st April, 2013 R=E-=#mA-A 141,766 680,750 124,829 63,641 31213 1,042,199 22,698 1,064,807
Additions AE 22,539 7,136 10,301 27,621 67,597 - 67,597
Transfer B - 43,034 10,526 1,452 (55,012) - - -
Disposals e - (16,035) (2,6711) (3,676) - (238 - (2382
At 31st March, 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-H 141766 730,288 139,820 7,718 3822 1,087,414 2,69 1,110,112

Accumulated depreciation: ZH7% :

At 1st April, 2013 RZZ-=FMA-A 80,748 390,535 75,712 52,135 - 599,130 15979 615,109
Charge for the year TEEHE 4212 50,012 11,812 5,305 - 71,341 527 71,868
Written back on disposals ~ (H&E & - (15481) (2,638) (3,675) - (21,79 - (21,794)
At 315t March, 2014 R-Z-NE=A=1-H 84,960 425,066 84,886 53,765 - 648,677 16,506 665,183
Net book value: RERE

At 315t March, 2014 RZE-mE=A=1-H 56,806 305,222 54,934 17,953 3822 438,737 6,192 444,929
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(BEAHAN OEEHE)

12 Fixed assets (Continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

12 EEERE (&)
() MEZKREFEZONMUT :

The Group The Company
AEE ¥ /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MFE —ZT—=F ZZ-0OF —ZT—=F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7t $'000 Fit $'000 FiT
In Hong Kong B
— medium-term leases - R ERFRAY 149,132 158,043 62,998 67,737
Outside Hong Kong BB AN =
— freehold — KA 120,569 138,308 - =
— long-term leases - REAFRLY 9,469 9,822 - =
— medijum-term leases - R HEBFE &Y 256,167 206,058 - =
— short-term leases - A ERFE &Y 208 281 - =
535,545 512,512 62,998 67,737
Representing: (A
Land and buildings held HAEEERZ
for own use TH REF 495,431 470,915 56,806 61,018
Investment properties "B 6,192 6,719 6,192 6,719
Interests in leasehold land held for RIE&KEHEFFE
own use under operating leases ERZHEE T iR 33,922 34,878 - =
535,545 512,512 62,998 67,737

(d) Fixed assets held under finance leases

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held under
finance leases, the Group and the Company hold factory
machinery and equipment under finance leases expiring from
one to seven years. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

There was no addition to the factory machinery and equipment
of the Group and the Company financed by finance leases
during the year (2013: $Nil).

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of the factory
machinery and equipment held under finance leases of the
Group amounted to $5,488,000 (2013: $11,156,000). The
Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the
lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

(d) MEREFEZBEEE

BRIMEARERERE ZME LN AE
BEARBEBN —ELFAIBRzHER
5 BAIREENERE ZSHETES
ERAEE -

=0 AEERAARNLREBRERE
—E=FEN) FEIBEBRER -

REER  AEBUAREEERE 2 T
R EB 2 REFEAS488,000T (= F
— =% :11,156,0007T) - AREBEREFE
?’*ﬂ%‘fzgﬁ%ﬁuMEAZ%EE%S%#EEVE%
% o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

12 Fixed assets (Continued)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating
leases

The Group and the Company lease out an investment property
under an operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of
three years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. The lease does not
include contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

12 EEERE (&)

() REBELEHEHE ZEEERE

AREBRARAR A —BRKLHERE —BR
5%% ZEMENT RH=F  XHEARE
EBERGEIHBERED  ERAAKRKEIE
MEE - 2 BAHEYEEIAES

NEBRBE R RG2S LHEEBBER
ZEBEBENRERENT

The Group and the Company

—5R

Within one year

(f) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March, 2014 is
$54,800,000 (2013: $53,800,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions
in comparable properties (2013: estimated at their open
market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties). The valuation was carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, who have among their staff members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of the properties being valued.

The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3
valuations under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available; and

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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AEBERAQT
2014 2013
—E-0F —F—=
$'000 T $'000 FiT
833 579
(f) REVMHEZ2LARE
KEMERZ mE=A=+—Hx
Qﬁfﬁ?%548000007|:(:$—5¢1
53,800,0007C) @ It JhE 2 ERIEYE i

HMERSEEAAMSEEETHT (=
T——F L2EREMEZERTER S
éﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
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AnBEATBIEMBEeres8 E%ﬁ

BEYERZ R MR A BRI &R -
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RARBEHEMREZZMAALERES
BE=ZREHE- %Qﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁmﬁ

KREWMNEEFEAFTRAESIE 2 B8R MR
TMEEET

- F—RMGE: EERE -REABE
(%KﬁiﬁﬂﬁéF&%ﬁ SET: ]
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AEEIE-—RoABREHARE) B
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(BEAHAN OEEHE)

12 Fixed assets (Continued)

(f) The fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
direct comparison approach with reference to the market
price of comparable properties and adjusted for building
quality and timing of the reference transaction. The significant
unobservable input in the fair value measurement is the
property-specific adjusting rate, which ranged from 0.91 to
1.07.

(g) Fixed assets pledged against bank loans

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
pledged to secure certain bank loans or bank facilities granted
to the Group (note 21).

12 EEERE (&)
f) REVEZAAE (B)

BREMEZ RABH2EALEMEZTE
FERERLBEEE  UR2ERF 22
FEENMKRELHE - AREFEZEKR
PG ABBEDENYERAEE - NF
091%&1.07°

(9) MRTEFEHFZEEERE

ATHE - BFERREEE D TIEF - UE
1(%51?;%5%?%&2%?@&??%%&&@%?%%
T3E21) e

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EF-NF —F-=F
$'000 Tt $'000 FJT
Net book value of pledged assets: EIFEECRASE
Factory machinery and equipment TRt as K2 100,553 127,239

(h) Deposits for the acquisition of fixed assets

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group and the Company
made deposits totalling $21,412,000 (2013: $1,784,000)
and $390,000 (2013: $852,000) respectively to acquire
property, plant and equipment. The remaining amount of the
consideration is included in capital commitments (note 28(a)).

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

(h) BEREEEZF &

R-ZZE—WFE=ZA=+—H8 AEEKEAR
AAEEYE BMEAXKEMIAZHFiTE
43£21,412,0007T (ZF—=4 : 1,784,000
7t) % 390,0007T ( — & — = 4 : 852,000
L) o)ﬁ%Zﬁ%Tﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁ)\ﬁz&%% (B 5
28(a)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

13 Intangible assets

13 BEE

The Group REEH
Brand Customer
name list To*;al
o e T XPRE @t
$'000 FJT $'000 FJT $'000 FJT
Cost: R
At 1st April, 2012 N-ZE——FMPA—H 8,100 11,997 20,097
Exchange adjustments b H T 102 151 253
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 8,202 12,148 20,350
Accumulated amortisation: T EH
At 1st April, 2012 N-_E——FmA—H 1,620 6,855 8,475
Exchange adjustments b H TR 21 88 109
Charge for the year IR EHE S 410 1,734 2,144
At 31st March, 2013 R-—ZE—=F=HA=+—H 2,051 8,677 10,728
Net book value: BREFE
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=%=A=+—H 6,151 3,471 9,622
Brand Customer
name list Total
mhE BB EFRE et
$'000 T $'000 Tt $'000 Tt
Cost: A
At 1st April, 2013 R-E—=#mA—A 8,202 12,148 20,350
Exchange adjustments PE AR 2E (129) (191) (320)
At 31st March, 2014 R-E—NE=A=+—H 8,073 11,957 20,030
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1st April, 2013 RZZTE—=FMA—H 2,051 8,677 10,728
Exchange adjustments PE 5%, 82 (32) (135) (167)
Charge for the year NEEHH 403 1,707 2,110
At 31st March, 2014 RZE—HFE=A=+—H 2,422 10,249 12,671
Net book value: RRENEE -
At 31st March, 2014 RZZE—mFE=A=+—H 5,651 1,708 7,359

AEEREEBEkEFR2E 2 BHERE
AGEBREHmE [HEEER A -

The amortisation charges for brand name and customer list
for the year are included in “other operating expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

14 Goodwill 14 iH&
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
$'000 Tt $'000 F7T
Cost: A
At 1st April RIUA—H 39,700 39,206
Exchange adjustments bE H TR (624) 494
At 31st March R=A=+—H 39,076 39,700

Impairment tests for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital
in Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited (“Unicurd”). Therefore it
is allocated to Singapore segment according to the country of
operation of Unicurd for impairment testing purposes.

The recoverable amount of the Unicurd operations is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-

BemBzREeELE BN ZIRERH

BERNESE—RE (WA) BR2AA (14
— 1) Z2EBRAMEL - Fit - BEIRRLG
—REMEBRR DR EF KD B AEITIR
BRI -

¥z alkoesEmREFEREENE
BT ZtEERAREEEM A ZFH
BBEESHZREESREEN - ZFHUEZ
REeER2AFERA3%(ZTE—=F:3%) Z

year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are FIEERHRF o ZIBR I TBBH —KBHA
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2013: 3%). &&XEKZ KREATFIPEREK -
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the Unicurd operations
operate.
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation: AEERABEREAZEERENT
2014 2013
—ZE-{F —E—=%F
— Gross margin - Ef=xE 42.3% 42.9%
— Annual sales growth rate for -R=FHHZ
the three-year period FIHELRE 10.6% 11.3%
— Pre-tax discount rate - BRI = 14.0% 14.0%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation
for market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

EEERBBERANEYMSHER A
Al MEBBEMNERFERRE - FAER
ZITER R RS AR AR D B0 E LR 2 BR AR
AT -

EEERS  BEEANESRMKECTR

BROBEFMSIEAEES ST SEHR
EERBEE R E S5 -
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(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

15 Interest in subsidiaries

15 ISR alERE

The Company

¥ /N

2014 2013

—E-NE —F—=
$'000 T $'000 FJT
Unlisted investments, at cost EETRE  EBRAE 326,560 165,422
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN ENGIE /S 537,986 630,301
864,546 795,723
Less: Impairment losses B OREE R (234,608) (234,608)
629,938 561,115

At 31st March, 2014 and 2013, amounts due from subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The entire balance is expected to be recovered
after more than one year.

Impairment losses on interest in subsidiaries represent the
write down of the carrying values of the investment cost
and receivables from certain subsidiaries to their recoverable
amounts.

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note

1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.
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R-F-—WER-F-=#=A=+—A
K BAREBRER 8 RER
TR - FT A BB RN BIE — R 1
2 o

P /B8 2 ) 4 2 2 BB S 1R 5 S 2R B 35 T BT /B
NAZ A PR e PR WK 2 B EE OB E E
A e 5 EE

TREBAAEEMBRB 2B - RRAE
RSN - REERE 2 B RIS A8 @A -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

15 MIB AR (&)

Place of Particulars of

incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities

BEERGLR
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
Eid Vo ATH3 BETR VN HEAR
NRERH EE3E BRRAFE 22 22 TEXK
% %

Vitasoy USA Inc. United States Common stock: 100 - Manufacture
of America US$32,841,000 and sale of
EHE2ERE LR soy related
32,841,000% 7T products
EERHEE
Convertible DHER

series A

preferred stock:

US$38,400,000

AARAR

B :

38,400,000 % 7T
Shenzhen Vitasoy The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture
(Guang Ming) H AR and sale of
Foods and Beverage 80,000,000t beverages
Company Limited (note (i)) EER
A4 () Rkt HER R

ARAF (BT ()

Vitasoy (China) Investments Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Investment
Company Limited BE 2 ez fn holding
g (hEl) REBRAA REER
Vitasoy (Shanghai) The PRC $219,461,176 - 100 Manufacture
Company Limited (note (ii)) s 219,461,176 7T and sale of
wt g () ARAE beverages
(P&E i) EER
HERm
Vita International Hong Kong 2 shares 100 = Investment
Holdings Limited e ) holding
#iEREEFR AR REEK

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 15 B AR (@)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities
BEEERLLE
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
Ei Y ATH3 EETR b YN HEAR
DRER BRI BRRAFE BR 22 TEXK
% %

Vitasoy Australia Products Australia V class shares: - 51 Manufacture
Pty. Ltd. ("VAP") BN A$8,925,000 and sale of
(TVAP]) VR - beverages

8,925,000 7T KEREE
i
N class shares:
A$8,575,000
NEERR :
8,575,000 %7T

Vitasoy Australia Food Products Australia A$175 — 100 Dormant
Pty. Ltd. (note (iii)) M 17587 UmEY
(Y& (iii))

Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution

#efhin ORF) BRAR EPY JRPI% 100,000 7T of beverages

7 I m

Produtos De Soja Hong Kong Macau MOP10,000 = 100 Dormant
(Macau) Limitada P JEPI#5 10,000 7T Emax

EEEm (RF) ARAF

Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of

R REER AR BE 300,000 B A% 13 tuck shops

and concessions
REBR
NRE R NREA

Hong Kong Gourmet Hong Kong 2 shares = 100 Provision of
Limited BB 2 iz tn catering

BBERERAA services

REERRE

The Hong Kong Soya Bean Hong Kong 2 shares 100 = Property
Products Company, Limited BB 2 iz tn investment

BEREmARAT NERE
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

15 MIB AR (&)

Place of Particulars of

incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest activities

BEERGLR
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
Eid Vo ATH3 BETR VN HEAR
NRERH EE3E BRRAFE 22 22 TEXK
% %

Vitasoy Distributors Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 0K 2,500,000 % 7T FmEE
Vitasoy Investment Hong Kong 1 share 100 - Investment
Holdings Limited ) 1 Bz fn holding
B IREZERBRAA REER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100 Exploitation
Sl A$2,999 of intellectual
L - rights of
2,999 87T property
ERMBERE

Deferred shares:

A$1

B -

TR
Vitasoy International Hong Kong 1 share 100 = Investment
Investment Limited B 1 BBt holding
B MBERKREBR AR REER
Vitasoy Investment Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. I 10,000 3% 7T holding
REER
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Singapore $$1,800,000 - 100 Manufacture
Limited N 1,800,000 % 7T and sale of soy
Z—RM (FLA) BRAR related products
EERHE
SHER
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Hong Kong 1 share 100 - Investment
Limited ) 1Bz 1n holding
wah (hE) ERERAA REZER
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company The PRC RMB200,000,000 - 85 Manufacture
Limited (note (iv)) s AR and sale of
#efan (Bil) BRAR 200,000,000 7T beverages
(P () EERHERR

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2049.

(i)  Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2045.

(i)  The Group effectively owns a 51% equity interest in Vitasoy
Australia Food Products Pty. Ltd.

(iv)  Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (”Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be
operated up to 2049.

The following table lists out the information relating to
Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoy Foshan and VAP, the subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Shenzhen Vitasoy
RYN At 10
2014 2013
—Z-MmF —T=F
$'000 T T $'000 F7T

15 B RER (@)
B EE

() RYIME (KB RRMBBRAT (R
BAB]) BRABIRS 2 RIAE LR
% GEEME_TOAFL -

(i #my (£8) BRARARPERIZE
SNEMBAT  KEME_TMORFL -

(i) 7~ % @B & & 5 A Vitasoy Australia Food
Products Pty. Ltd. 51% & BXASHERS ©

(iv) #mg (FRL) BRAF ([HILA&EME])
RINPBIKI 2 RINEEEERE  KEH
EZONFLL -

T%ﬁﬂ%ﬁi?@ﬁ HxTE\ ([ IEFRRiE
g ) 2 NEEBARRI MY - F5L

ﬁﬂﬁ}ﬁ&VAPEEﬁZﬁﬂ TXE2HNZHHE

S EEEL R AR RMER 2 88 -

Vitasoy Foshan

AN 2 R VAP
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=f —E-IE —E—=fF

$'000 T 7T $'000 F7t $'000 T 7T $'000 F7t

NCI percentage RS 15% 15%
Current assets MEEE 210,361 299,110
Non-current assets FRBEE 141,950 109,675
Current liabilities nBBE (83,883) (183,341)
Non-current liabilities FrRBaE - =
Net assets FEE 268,428 225,444
Carrying amount of NCl RS
fREE 40,264 33,817
Revenue LN 672,165 601,042
Profit for the year REERF 44,234 61,536
Total comprehensive income  ZHE Wz 425 44,234 61,536
Profit allocated to NCI DEREFERER
- 6,635 9,230

Dividend paid to NCI mFEE R SRR S - 24,411
Cash flows generated weEemE/ (FA)

from/(used in) Reme

operating activities 71,365 (26,688)
Cash flows used in BAES A

investing activities AEmE (47,617) (4,386)
Cash flows used in BMEEEMA

financing activities Beng (25,325) (3,221)

15% 15% 49% 49%
176,987 161,175 173,363 210,635
403,353 415,824 231,057 282,226
(242,699) (319,811) (102,212) (142,386)

- = (63,962) (100,321)
337,641 257,188 238,246 250,154
50,646 38,578 116,741 122,575
1,284,696 947,287 492,869 516,077
82,374 39,030 30,758 36,993
82,374 39,030 30,758 36,993
12,356 5,855 15,072 18,127
- = 8,073 8,239
33,772 129,094 68,730 33,276
(19,002) (19,449) (4,613) (23,601)
(32,520) (128,783) (76,165) (5,270)
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16 Inventories

(a) Inventories in the balance sheets comprise:

16 78

() EEEBERDPZEFERRE

The Group The Company
REE QT

2014 2013 2014 2013

—EF-mF —T-=F —T-NF T =F
$°000 ¥t $'000 Fyr $°000 ¥t $°000 FiT

Raw materials R AL
Finished goods K o

304,996 248,515 116,718 99,827
228,332 187,977 65,833 51,808

533,328 436,492 182,551 151,635

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

(b) ERERABIB/FXZFES
BOMWMT :

The Group
REHE
2014 2013
— ik —F—=
$'000 T $'000 F7T
Carrying amounts of inventories sold BEFECRAEE 2,374,535 2,171,720
Write down of inventories WRFE 2,878 3,642
2,377,413 2,175,362
. =+, =+,
17 Trade and other receivables 17 FEWERFR R H A FEUT TR
The Group The Company
KEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—T-mE —T—= —E-NUFE —ZT—=F

$'000 ¥t $'000 F& $000 Fi& $'000 Fit

Trade debtors and bills receivable JE U BR TR e U = A
Less: Allowance for doubtful B REREHE
debts (note 17(b)) (Fft5E 17(b))
Other debtors, deposits and Hip el - B&
prepayments RIBRFRIE

584,769 601,125 330,187 336,451
(1,107) (1,409) (564) (568)

583,662 599,716 329,623 335,883

142,139 83,681 57,212 26,178

725,801 683,397 386,835 362,061

HUPEREEERAR —T—=/—NFEFH
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s other debtors,
deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or charged
as expense after more than one year is $26,429,000 (2013:
$14,150,000) and $10,475,000 (2013: $7,764,000) respectively.
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis

As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful
debts), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

17 AR B ()

AEBREARGEHNRBR —FEKE K
kAR ZEMERRK: e KTER
FIE DR A26,429,000T (ZF — =4
14,150,000 7T) &% 10,475,000 (—E—=
& :7,764,0007T) - FTBEM KRR R E
L EUGRTE IR — F R Bl S R AR -

(a) HRERZDAT

REER - BRERNERRE (EHERR
RBE) BRI DT (IREZEH) T

The Group The Company
AEE b /N

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mE —FT—= —E-mFE —FT—=
$'000 ¥t $'000 F;r $000 F7;t $'000 Fit
Within three months =@AR 577,537 575,654 328,983 332,233
Three to six months =Z=XEA 6,046 22,971 640 3,650
Over six months JNE A A E 79 1,091 - =
583,662 599,716 329,623 335,883

Trade receivables are due within one to three months from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are
set out in note 27 (a).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(j)(i)).
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EUWERFNZERRT—E=EARZNH -
BRASBEEEBR 2 E— P BHNME
27(a) °

(b) BUIRF KR EWRE ZRE

BRIEASE B E AWM Z IR 2 AT g e R
T BRIBUERSR R BB R &2 B ERRE
BEEIRACE - FHAIRE 2 ATREMEME - B
38 Bk (5 /5 18 B 138 10 P AR A e B W R 4
8 (RMEEG3) °
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable (Continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

17 FEWERM KR H AR (a)
(b) BUWIRFREWEE 2RE (4

REEBENFAZZHWT -
The Group The Company
S AR
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-OFE —T-—=F ZZE-OF —T—=F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $°000 Fs;t $'000 FrT

At 1st April REA—H

Exchange adjustments HE 5, B

Impairment losses RIEEE
recognised/(reversed) HeR, (BE)

Uncollectible amounts written off AU B £ B 2 5

At 31st March R=A=+—H

1,409 1,533 568 488
(1) 6 - =

20 (68) 23 128
(321) (62) (27) (48)
1,107 1,409 564 568

At 31st March, 2014, the Group’s and the Company's
trade debtors and bills receivable of $1,107,000 (2013:
$1,409,000) and $564,000 (2013: $568,000) respectively
were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are
not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable

that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

RZE—WF=ZA=+—H8 xEEEAR
Al EWERR &ﬁ’ﬂlﬁzm%ﬁ > Al & 1,107,000
7T (ZZF—=4% :1,409,0007T) &% 564,000
7T ( ZZF—=4% :568,0007T) JH{ERIEFE
ABERE - ZZEERIREZ ERGREA B
BREEZEFPARM - AEBWER I SEH
BB IR -

(o) WEREEBUIRAKREWREE

3 8 {8 ) X 5= BE AR AR VR R (B2 1R UK AR 5 I B
WERERZ RIS :

The Group The Company
) AR
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-OF —T-=F ZE-NOF —T—=F
$'000 Fst $'000 Fjr $'000 F7t $'000 FiT

Neither past due nor impaired 4 260 AR TR (B
Less than one month past due mE LR — @A
One to three months past due B —Z= = A
More than three months but less ﬁﬂ;ﬁtiﬂ_flﬂ
than twelve months past due BLR+=EAR

More than twelve months past due  #@HIfBE+ —1AA

Amounts past due BHRS R

464,226 479,465 246,766 248,521

109,305 105,958 79,725 81,850
9,373 12,476 3,132 5,512
693 1,718 - =

65 99 - =
119,436 120,251 82,857 87,362

583,662 599,716 329,623 335,883

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are
not impaired (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

18 Bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

(a) Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents

17 AR B ()
(o) WEREZEWIRMKREWREE

(&)

78 B TR OB 2 FE YR - 19 R B AT
BMRERLCEZBEZEFAR -

BHEYERECERERESZBIEPE
B REEPRASER EELER -
RIBEELR AREEEYEERES) -
B EREHAMZSERIELRMERE -
RIS AR A i L A SR R A 2 2 O] - R E
I AL F A RS A T

18 RITFRERERREEE
HH

(a) RITERHERERIRSEHEHIER

comprise: BE
The Group The Company
AEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F —E-OF —ZE-—=F
$'000 Fst $'000 Tt $°000 F7t $'000 FiT
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFEREFRS 250,792 169,671 88,177 50,151
Bank deposits maturing within FRER=EARZ
three months when placed SRITER 69,633 52,931 69,458 52,757
Cash and cash equivalents in BEBBERACRS
the balance sheet KIR&ZEEIAE 320,425 222,602 157,635 102,908
Bank deposits maturing after TrarERkE R =& A 1B
three months but within one R—F AN RITFER
year when placed 518 446 - -
320,943 223,048 157,635 102,908

At 31st March, 2014, the Group and the Company had
designated certain bank balances that were denominated in
Australian Dollar and Renminbi which totalling $62,027,000
(2013:$Nil) to hedge foreign currency risk on future purchases
of raw materials and finished goods. The gain on re-translation
of these bank balances at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date was included in other comprehensive
income.
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R-ZT—NE=ZA=+—8 ' AEBKEARQ
BAIEBRTEARBABEZETRITEFEHE
62,027,000 ;L (ZZ=— =4 : &) 5 F Ak
HHABRBERME REK G ZINERE -
REBEHZEXRSNRERTETZREE
FFAHMEEUKE -
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18 Bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
cash generated from operations:

18 RITERHEHEBENIBEEE
IBH @)

(b) F??’F)‘%'LEU"‘ B EKTEIRE
ZEER

2014 2013
—E-mF =%
Note i &E $'000 T $'000 F7t
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before taxation BR A5 BiDg A 456,601 423,058
Adjustments for: R
— Depreciation of property, plant - BER
and equipment B E 5(c) 182,089 172,140
— Depreciation of investment properties — & MEZITE 5(c) 527 527
— Amortisation of interests in leasehold - BRI 2 EHFHE1E
land held for own use under BRZHEELTH
operating leases M 2 B H 5(c) 882 860
— Amortisation of intangible assets -EBILEE C#H 5(c) 2,110 2,144
— Reversal of impairment losses on o/ E RN E T
property, plant and equipment /DZTEFEﬂE%?E 5(c) (24) (72)
— Interest on bank loans - RTEFFE 5(a) 12,545 20,294
— Finance charges on obligations under — RMAREERY
finance leases BB 5(a) 523 808
— Interest income — FB YA 4 (2,508) (1,965)
— Net loss on disposal of property, plant — H&E¥% -« BiE M & E
and equipment Z 8RR 5(c) 4,693 747
— Equity-settled share-based payment — — SARRD AT FUERE ~
expenses ZH 5(b) 8,309 4,766
— Foreign exchange loss - [EH B8 648 200
Changes in working capital: EEESEY
— Increase in inventories - FEEN (107,392) (10,524)
— Increase in trade and other receivables — [ U BR 5% & L ftb U 5012 N (54,264) (12,771)
— Increase in trade and other payables — — [~ B 3 & L4t i A5F 5038 N 285,182 2,100
— Increase in net employee retirement - {& 8RR FI & & FEEE N
benefit liabilities 3,818 3,570
Cash generated from operations REZEEMEBIRE 793,739 605,882

19 Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The balances are
expected to be recovered/(settled) within one year.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

19 B (FBfY) B2 RRIA
U (FEA) BB A MRS A R

2E Hﬂ%lmﬁf‘{kﬁﬁ % FRERRTERIN —
FAYE, (B2
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20 Trade and other payables

20 FEABRFA R EAREASRR

The Group The Company
E3 ARH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-NF —T-=F ZB-0OFf —T-—=F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $000 ¥t $'000 F7T
Trade creditors and bills payable RS RENEE 406,001 346,911 274,640 224,830
Accrued expenses and FEETERA KR
other payables EoAth FET 5K 656,405 394,426 123,033 108,856
Dividend payable on FERT IR 2 AR B
non-controlling interests - 24,717 - -
1,062,406 766,054 397,673 333,686

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except for customer deposits amounting
to $15,816,000 (2013: $14,141,000) for the Group and
$14,421,000 (2013: $13,885,000) for the Company respectively
which are expected to be settled after more than one year.

B BNERREENEER

Hl) ZRRERIAT ¢

ANEBTEIFT A B BR R R H b B S
R—FREE EAEERARAD A
15,816,0007T (ZF—=4 : 14,141,0007T)
} 14,421,000 (ZFE—=4 :
L) ZBRPIRSABHNBAE—FREE -

Sty

As at balance sheet date, the ageing of trade creditors and bills R #&H
payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

13,885,000

(H%ER

The Group The Company
REH N

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MFE —ZT—=F ZZ-0OF —ET—=F
$'000 Fs;t $'000 F7r $000 F7t $'000F7T
Within three months =EAR 395,018 342,904 264,910 220,921
Three to six months =ZE=NEA 9,594 2,565 9,109 2,501
Over six months ~EA A E 1,389 1,442 621 1,408
406,001 346,911 274,640 224,830

The Group’s general payment terms

from the invoice date.

21 Bank loans

are one to two months

EMEA -
21 RITER

AEE 2 —RNFRHRSEEHE A HEFT—

At 31st March, 2014, the bank loans were repayable as RZE—MNF=A=+—H  RITERER
follows: THIERRER
The Group
TEH
2014 2013
—E-F —F—=
$'000 Tt $'000 F7T
Within one year or on demand —FRIREK 51,790 150,046
After one year but within two years —FRERMFENRN 34,392 26,815
After two years but within five years WMEZBRBRAFNA 33,676 66,308
68,068 93,123
119,858 243,169
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21 Bank loans (Continued)

At 31st March, 2014, bank loans totalling $82,522,000 (2013:
$117,416,000) are secured by charges over property, plant and
equipment with net book value totalling $100,553,000 (2013:
$127,239,000) (note 12(g)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note 27(b).
As at 31st March, 2014 and 2013, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

22 Obligations under finance leases

At 31st March, 2014, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

21 SRITER (@)

RZZE—MF=A=+—H &5%82,522,000
75<—Tf F :117,416,0007T) ZR1TE
5 LABRE VR E & ££ 100,553,000 (=&
—=%:127,239,0007C) 2 ¥  BENK
BIERER (F1FE12(9)) °

AEBSE Fﬁﬁhhmﬁmﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁl2
BEAGBLEXRBH cRE  EllKilkE
FIVEER ?ﬁ%Z%iﬁm H%ﬁ%gé
REBRF  AIAEREREEREERIZEE
o AEBTFTHERNBRETZERS -
FRAEEERRDECRR 2 E—THB
HAWE270) c RZZE—MER-_ZT—=4F
“A=1+t—H BEERTANEHRIEE
G o

22 MEHEZER

R-ZE-—ME=A=+—H0 AEERERR
BEHERERZEHNOT

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E—=F
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

BRIEHEE BRIEHEE =EHEE =EHEE

FRZBEE NREE ARzBEE DB

$'000 ¥t $'000 ¥t $'000F;t $'000 FiT

Within one year —FR 1,176 1,615 1,557 2,157
After one year but within —FRER

two years R 4F A 1,268 1,615 1,328 1,822
After two years but within M RER

five years AEA 3,935 4,353 5,871 6,734

5,203 5,968 7,199 8,556

6,379 7,583 8,756 10,713

Less: Total future interest T ARRFE
expenses &R (1,204) (1,957)
Present value of lease obligations HEBEKZRE 6,379 8,756

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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23 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and
outside Hong Kong.

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)

(iii)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
plan, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff
Provident Fund, which is available for all eligible staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong and Macau before
1st August, 2000. The plan is funded by contributions
from employees and the Group, both of which contribute
sums representing 5% - 7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited
contributions are credited to members’ accounts in
accordance with the rules of the plan. The plan is
administered by trustees with the assets held separately
from those of the Group. The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s contributions after ten
completed membership years, or at an increasing scale
of between 50% to 90% after completion of five to nine
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group's mandatory provident fund plan under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
an independent corporate trustee. Under the plan, the
Group and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to June 2012).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the central pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of employees’ remuneration to the central
pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
for the Group with respect to the central pension
scheme is the associated required contribution under the
central pension scheme. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by
the Group to a registered superannuation fund for its
employees, at 9% of the employees’ salaries. The assets
of the scheme are held separately by an independent
administered fund. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.
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23 EERNKER

AEBEEBREBUNIMRERT K2 %
TR 5 E AR M SUE 1R AR RS

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

REMEFRIARGTE

NEBAMAR-_ZEETFNA—HBZ
RERBRBMREAREE ZEER
BTRY—HERTEHEHIENRE (4
NEREBEERARBERES) - %
EICESKRBRENRAER ZHR -
EHEREEAEEEHF Z5%E7.5% °
SRR R IR FT 8 2 28 BB A G 8K
BZIRF - ZiT8IXAETAERE T
BEENEALEEEESTHBRE - &
2HEAERTFE  BEEUZE2IE
FHER - MBEHEERENFAZE
ZEEHFEDLLAIAS0% X FEE
90% o

ZENASE MU EL IR ER/FTEERK
FEIZEBEET  HAREERS (G&F
MRATEESFTENRN) 2 INAERE 258 H
MRELFE - BREIMEAEESFE A —
HATEHFURRETE - BB EBERT
ANER - BIEZ:TE - A5ERHES
EREEBHAKBKA (BERAZER L
fRA&25000 Tt (ZE—Z—F/NARA
20,0007T) ) Z5% A st & 5K o M
S A5 2 RN A R o

RRPEZHBARZEEH2NHF
BIBFR 2 T REAREFTE] - ANEE
ALEEME 2K — BN AP REK
Tt SR - AEBEBR P RBRAEF S
FR7ARETT Z ME— B R AH RER S
SR o [AETEIST 2 FRENR AL

BMNEE T E > AREARREEH S
9% A — I8 S E B B MR 2 ik iR K&
SR FEEERBULEEZESD
FAREH o [RIAT 8IS 2 KRB A 2K -
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 23

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans (a)
(Continued)

(iv) The Group also operates defined contribution retirement  (iv)
plan for its employees in the United States of America
("the USA"). The Group is required to make contributions
to the plan at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice
and regulations. Where there are employees who leave
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the forfeited
employer’s contributions shall be used to reduce the
future contributions of the employer. During the year,
forfeited contributions of $145,000 (2013: $95,000)
were utilised. At the balance sheet date, the total amount
of forfeited contributions which are available to reduce
the contributions payable in the future years was $6,000
(2013: $86,000).

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans (b)

At 31st March, 2014, the Group and the Company recognised HRZ=

EERKER &)

REMEFBRARETE (5D

AEBMAERERZEER AT H
FORRETE - AEEBREE B &
Pl Ae 2 SBEBEALL XM
ZEH R - MEBERZE AR 2 P4
SRATEERE - AR W2 B EHREAR
MRABZEEZEHR - T AEEH)
PR W 3% 145,000 (ZE— =4 :
95,0007T) - M&E B+ £56,0007T
—ZT— =4 :86,0007T) 22U
AR B R

AERBARNRGTE
T—NF=A=+—H AEERARQ

employee retirement benefit liabilities in respect of the Rt N7{EEBRKEFNEREERKEFNE

following employee retirement benefits: & :
The Group The Company
rEE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mE —T—= —EBR-OE —T—=
$'000 F7t $'000 F7r $'000 F7t $'000F7T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Employee retirement EERKEBNEE
benefit liabilities
— retirement gratuities - ERe
(note 23(c)(i)) (MF3E 23(0)(i)) 6,835 8,156 5,544 6,777
— long service payments - REIRB S
(note 23(d)) (BT 23(d)) 3,001 2,151 966 851
9,836 10,307 6,510 7,628

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined
the Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement
gratuities upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the
last month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the Plan”),
was established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan is
administered by an independent corporate trustee, with
assets held separately from those of the Group. The Plan is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with an
independent actuary’s recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March,
2014 and was prepared by qualified staff of HSBC Life
(International) Limited, who are members of the Society of
Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected
unit credit method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s
obligation under this defined benefit retirement plan is 92%
(2013: 90%) covered by the plan assets held by the trustee.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as

23 EERNEFN @)
() EBHK=E

AEBERBMRMACEEBERGFEED
—BRIEE < &EHIR RN EE B 82 A1
AREE HERERERKFREBIGRR
T eRRTREMBAFLREFEM
E o

AEBERRARE KL —IHE R ERBARIK
itE - i EREEBR A R FERAMET
2] (T&aT 8] ) - ZaT 8l BIOAEEFEA
B HEERASE  BESHRA ° &%
AR AEEIRIRB Y RER < R IEH#

=+
R e

ZETE 2 R BEREIR T —NFE=A
=+—HHEZEASRKRE (BEEK) BRA A
ZEERBE (AXBEBEMEgre8)
KERESMEERET BEREBERTA
SERBZATENENRGEFMABITZE
FEFR%(ZE—=F:90%) XA
BHEZFEEERRE -

(i) MREERBRBERZSRBAOT :

follows:
The Group The Company
e AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-pmFE —ZF—= —E-mFE —FT—=
$'000 5t $'000 F;r $000 F7x $'000 F7T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Present value of wholly funded FEEMETZ
obligations HE 83,911 85,271 80,247 81,475
Fair value of plan assets FEEECARE (77,076) (77,115) (74,703) (74,698)
Employee retirement benefit liabilities & 2R KEF| B E 6,835 8,156 5,544 6,777

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve
months, as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members
and future contributions to the plan will also depend on staff
turnover and future changes in actuarial assumptions.
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(ii)

Plan assets consist of the following:

(0 BRIKE (#)
(i) FHEIBEBLE

23 EERNKEFN @)

The Group The Company
rEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EBE-mE —T—= —E-mFE ZT—=
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $'000 F7 $'000 F7T
Plan asset with quoted price in RIERWISHREN
active market SrEIEE
Equities &ZE
— Financial — B 17,610 19,117 17,068 18,518
— Consumer discretionary — EMEHER 10,066 6,276 9,756 6,079
— Industrials - 1% 6,602 2,475 6,399 2,397
— Consumer staples — KEBEm 6,347 11,301 6,152 10,947
— Other — Hfb 13,475 14,633 13,060 14,174
54,100 53,802 52,435 52,115
Bonds BE%
— A+ corporate bonds — A+ REIEH 8,139 13,706 7,888 13,276
— Government-related bonds — BB ES 3,983 4,160 3,860 4,030
— Treasury bonds — Bf&E 4,911 5,037 4,760 4,879
17,033 22,903 16,508 22,185
Money instruments BE¥TA 5,332 390 5,168 379
Total quoted plan assets EHRESEERE 76,465 77,095 74,111 74,679
Non-quoted plan asset FMETFEEE
Equities &S
— Other — Efh 611 20 592 19
77,076 77,115 74,703 74,698

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(i) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations are as follows:

23 EERNEFN @)
() EBIRE (&)
(i) REEANEEDESHNT :

The Group The Company
REH FINN|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE ZET—=F —ZT-@OF =—ZT—=
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $'000 Tt $°000 FiT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
At 1st April RIMA—H 85,271 91,828 81,475 87,725
Remeasurement: EHETE
— Actuarial gains arising from — AAR R E T
changes in demographic BREE KA
assumptions - (7,512) - (7,137)
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising — TSR TR
from changes in financial MEE (Was)
assumptions 518 (1,664) 1,166 (1,653) 1,356
(1,664) (6,346) (1,653) (5,781)
Benefits paid by the Plan ZaT BB E R (4,727) (5,607) (4,361) (5,562)
Current service cost BB RIBHAR 4,195 4,520 3,986 4,258
Interest cost B A 836 876 800 835
At 31st March A=H=+—H 83,911 85,271 80,247 81,475
(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows: (iv) FrEIEEZAREBEZESHHT
The Group The Company
REH ¥ /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-0OF —ZFT—= —E-mEFE —ZT—=
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $'000 Tt $°000 FiT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
At 1st April RIMA—H 77,115 76,847 74,698 74,746
Contributions to the Plan Mz EVEL 2 R 970 989 764 771
Benefits paid by the Plan ZETEIE R A (4,727) (5,607) (4,361) (5,562)
Return on plan assets, excluding FTEIEZERIR -
amounts included in TNEFEFTAFE
interest income Nz 2,958 4,154 2,866 4,033
Interest income MBI A 760 732 736 710
At 31st March R=A=+—H 77,076 77,115 74,703 74,698

The Group expects to pay $993,000 contribution to the Plan
during the year ending 31st March, 2015 (2013: $1,017,000).
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) ()

(v) Net expenses recognised in the consolidated income (v) REr&1E
statement are as follows:

23 EER

REF ()

E&iﬁ%ﬁﬁ u/uz Eﬂi %EZZD—F :

2014 2013

—ZE-0F —E—=F

$'000 Tt $'000 F7T

(Restated)

(&%)

Current service cost R BRIFA A 4,195 4,520

Net interest on net defined benefit liability RERMEBEHFERNE 76 144

Total amounted recognised in RiEm R BRI BT

income statement 4,271 4,664

Actuarial gains BE W (1,664) (6,346)
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts FTEIEERIR -

included in interest income TEFEFTAFEWRARN S EE (2,958) (4,154)
Total amounted recognised in REAM 2 E W

other comprehensive income HRREEE (4,622) (10,500)

Total defined benefit costs AT BEKA (351) (5,836)

The net expenses are recognised in the following line items in X R RERE BalRKk PR TS EER
the consolidated income statement:

2014 2013
—EB-F —E—=%F
$'000 ¥t $'000 FJT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of sales HE KA 856 962
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses /& « $§E LD #HE B 1,181 1,358
Administrative expenses THRER 1,594 1,699
Other operating expenses Hithg& & & 640 645
4,271 4,664

The actual return on plan assets of the Group (taking into

AEEFENEECEREDR (5 RFAHEE

account all changes in the fair value of the plan assets ARBEZMBELD - EFBFEH LB BRH
excluding contributions paid and received) was net gain of ) & W& @%EZ 958,0007T (= E — =4
$2,958,000 (2013 (restated): net gain of $4,154,000). (E%)) : Yz F%84,154,0007T) °

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

23 EERKERN @)
() EKE (8

(vi) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st (vij R-ZE—WMF=A=+—HAKAZE
March, 2014 are as follows: EFE{E““ZZDT
The Group and the Company
EEERERADT

2014 2013

—Z-NF —T=F

Discount rate IR & 1.60% 1.00%

Future salary increases RIRF IR 5% per annum 5% per annum

5% ZF 5% FF
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations A FTABRR T —HE=A=+—HZ
as at 31st March, 2014 would have increased/(decreased) as a  F+JE 1@ ﬂfﬁclijﬁigﬁj R0.5% & FHm

result of 0.5% change in the significant actuarial assumptions: ~ E#+/ (FE) :

Increase in 0.5% Decrease in 0.5%

£EH0.5% T#0.5%
Discount rate IR E (3.517) 3,759
Future salary increases RIS LR 3,616 (3,422)

(d) Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also
carried out at 31st March, 2014, by qualified staff of HSBC
Life (International) Limited, who are members of the Society of
Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected
unit credit method.
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(d) Long service payments (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as follows:

23 EERNKEFN @)
(d) EEIFRES (@)
NAEABRERL SBMT :

The Group The Company
rEE PN

2014 2013 2014 2013

—B-MF —F-=F —B-MF —FT-=
$'000 Tt $'000 F;r $000 F7x $'000 F7T
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)

Present value of unfunded mEPHET

obligations ZHE 3,001 2,151 966 851

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However it is not practical to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve
months, as the retirement benefit payable will also depend on
staff turnover and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

24 Equity settled share-based
transactions

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th
September, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”)
whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28th August, 2012,
ordinary resolutions were passed for the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) and
the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Subject
to their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still be valid
and exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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24 LR ANRER 2K S

RRAR=FZ _EHH OB &M — IR

BtEstE ([ —FF _Eﬁﬁﬂx%ﬂriﬂj ) B
ﬁt ZAN/N TZi%Z@“%E’JI mAEEZ
(== (@%$‘§IB’ETEH TZé%) &
MEBEARBARREER - R=2F—=
FNAZ+NBET Z$@ETH§%%@¢K@
EoEATABRAFERESS ([ZF

——FREBRERE]) RRIE—TE_FF
BT 8l 2 BRREER - REBEESBTEE
R FARE_ZFT _Eﬁﬁﬂx%ﬂriﬂ&.ﬂz
AITEBEER —TF — FHERESIHR
JE & RAD R B R Al FATHE
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Z&EmE () BRORELBEH (ERAMAS
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24 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised, but the Directors of the
Company are empowered to impose at their discretion any
such minimum period at the date of offer. The options are
exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years from the date
of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and
unexercised share options at balance sheet date are

24 DR ANRER 2R S

(&)

BREHALTREES —BREEKREL AT
£ EARRCEZERENRBOBEHNIG
fEINER &G B HIR - BEREZITERS
SHEERHAMES 2 +F  BHEBREZ
FBADBERE —BRARRRD -

(a) REERZAREMMARITERBIE 2 &
AR - BT A B AR 2

as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical EMRWEE
delivery of shares:
2014 2013
—B-IE —F-=F
Contractual Remaining Remaining
life of Exercise contractual Numberof  contractual ~ Number of
Date of grant Exercise period options price life options life options
BREZ I BRE fed A BREZ
RimAH T BRREH  TEE CEER B BHFH %A
$ T ‘000 &% '000 T
1/412004 1/4/2005 to & 31/3/2014 10 years & 1.904 - - 1 years 1,778
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 to £ 31/5/2015 10 years & 2.375 1 years F 1,566 2 years & 1,566
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to £ 4/6/2016 10 years 2900  2vyears F 1,090 3 years F 1,132
18/7/2007 18/7/2008 to & 17/7/2017 10 years F 3.600 3years & 1,016 4 years F 1,364
21/7/12008 21/7/2009 to & 20/7/2018 10 years F 3.820 4dyears F 1,332 5 years F 1,604
21/7/2009 21/7/12010 to & 20/7/2019 10 years F 4.580 5 years 1,744 6 years F 3,014
9/6/2010 9/6/2011 to £ 8/6/2020 10 years F 6.022 6 years 1,712 7 years 4,084
7/9/2010 7/9/2011 to £ 6/9/2020 10 years 5942  6years F 2,120 7 years & 2,120
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 to & 14/6/2021 10 years F 6.424 7 years 1,932 8 years F 4,600
8/9/2011 8/9/2012 to & 7/9/2021 10 years F 6.358  7years 2,320 8 years F 2,320
22/6/2012 22/6/2013 to & 21/6/2022 10 years F 6.274  8years F 3,670 9 years F 3,768
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to & 30/8/2022 10 years F 6.400 8 years 2,822 9 years F 2,822
2/4/2013 2/4/2015 to £ 1/4/2023 10 years & 9.090  9years F 2,100 - -
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 to & 27/6/2023 10 years 9370  9years F 4,752 - -
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to = 8/9/2023 10 years 9370  9years F 1,704 - -
29,880 30,172
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24 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

All the options are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percentage of the options which may be exercised is

determined in stages as follows:

24 UM ANRER RS
(%)
(a) (&)

PRBE A TITE 2 BAERIR ThR ZHE 00 - M
BRERAITEBREZA DL LRI

iy

Percentage of
options granted

IEERERES
Ao
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant FH BB st — R B & 25%

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

i A HE R MR F S E R
R A ERE =R F s H R
BB R B F AR

another 55 25%
another 55 25%
another 55 25%

During the year, 6,992,000 options (2013: 5,236,000 options)
were exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

£ X 6,992,000 BEkE (=
5,236,000 1D EER% 4 ) AR IE

AR T -

(b) BB LNEFAITEBLT

=%

T FERE

2014 2013
—E—mF ==
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
InfEEY BREz G BAE
THEE A 1TE(E =
$ T ‘000 Fh% $ 7T ‘000 Tx
Outstanding at 1st April U A —B M ARITEE 5.251 30,172 4618 30,042
Exercised during the year RERTTE 4.571 (6,992) 2.922 (5,236)
Granted during the year REARH 9.301 8,556 6.328 6,590
Forfeited on termination of He&K2HR
employment of eligible EREBMNFEA
participants or lapsed R U Bk KRR
during the year 6.301 (1,856) 5.480 (1,224)
Outstanding at 31st March RZA=Z+—BEERTE 6.504 29,880 5.251 30,172
Exercisable at 31st March R=R=+—RHAa7E 13,213 13,490

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was $10.056 (2013:

$7.401).

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

EATEZBIRENF AN 21T B HIZ k¥
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24 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial lattice model.

Fair values of share options and assumptions:

24 DR ANRER 2R S

(&)

(0 BREZAAERRR

AEBURDBEERESZIREZAA
B N2ECRUBREZAAEFE B
BB 2 Gt AR BER B MER
ATE - BREZSHNFHMEZEREN A
WMAZH - ARRFTEIAHDITATE
AHEEAZA -

B 2 AR ERER

Date of grant
REAH
1/4/2004  1/6/2005  5/6/2006 18/7/2007 21/7/2008 21/7/2009  9/6/2010  7/9/2010 15/6/2011 ~ 8/9/2011 22/6/2012 31/8/2012  2/4/2013 28/6/2013  9/9/2013
Fair value at WA
measurement date PANN 04057 $05227 90555  $05797m  $0.5077 90627 $0.9%6  $0.957  $08957m  $0.6057 $0953m  S1.037m  §1.440m  $18m  S2.244TT
Share price e $18807  $23757  $2900m 3600 $38207  $45807  95.9507T 96.0807 $6.1607 $5.490T $6.1707  $66207 $9.090T 993707  $9.9507
Brercise price k8 S190470  $23757  $2.9007  $36007 $38207 $4580T $60NT SSOMT  $6.4247  $63%8T $6.2747 $6.4007 $9.0907  $93707  $9.3707%
Expected volatiity BBk 35% 35% 30% 26% 3% 26% 26% 26% 25% 5% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26%
Expected option life BHEREL
EhE 10years® 10yeas® 10years® 10years® 10yearsF 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years® 10years 10years® 10years® 10years® 10yearsF
Expected dividends RERE 75% 75% 7.5% 75% 7.0% 7.0% 5.6% 5.6% 5.5% 5.5% 5.0% 5.0% 4.9% 40% 4.0%
Risk-free interest rate ERRAE 3340%  3520%  4690%  4690%  3600% - 2190%  2.120%  1900%  2.040%  1750%  0810%  0620%  1.092%  1720%  2.400%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There was no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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25 Income tax in the balance sheet

(@) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the
balance sheets represents:

25 EERERZAESR
(a) EEEGERZEW  (FBN) R

BMIET -
The Group The Company
REE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-OFE —T-—=F ZZE-OF —T—=F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $°000 Fs;t $'000 FrT

Provision for Hong Kong KEEBRB
Profits Tax for the year FIST R E (46,134) (44,158) (42,361) (40,838)
Provisional Profits Tax paid B 2 TBENET 46,177 24,621 42,832 21,720
43 (19,537) 471 (19,118)
Taxation outside Hong Kong B AN IR TR IR (21,546) (21,647) - (3,407)
(21,503) (41,184) 471 (22,525)
Summary BE
The Group The Company
AEHE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-NE —FT—= —E-mNE —T—=
$'000 Fst $'000 F7r $'000 F7t $'000F7T
Current tax recoverable FE W3R ER R IR 654 1,974 471 =
Current tax payable FEIR BT IR (22,157) (43,158) - (22,525)
(21,503) (41,184) 471 (22,525)

HUPEREEERAR —T—=/—NFEFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ER AR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 EESBERZEH @)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) EERIELHIEELEE (AF)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in = REEBEXRERZELERBEEE,  (AE&)

the balance sheets and the movements during the year are as NFERZEEFHIT :
follows:
The Group REE
Depreciation Fair value
allowances adjustment on
in excess Future  Employee Withholding ~ tangible and Cash
oftherelated  benefitof  retirement taxon intangible flow
depreciation  tax losses benefits ~ Provisions ~~ dividends assets hedges Others Total
EER
BLEERE  HEEEL €& EWEEL bk

JAEGHE  RRHE RN BE REBON OAEEE REMH Aft &3t
$000F g0 Fm g0 Fm  s000Fm  s000Fm  s000Fm  §000Fm  $000FT  §000 T

(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (E31)
Deferred tax arising from: RENUTEEZELHE :
At 1t April, 2012 RZE-—%NA-A (74,801) 17,924 155 20,735 (3,644) (3,061) @ 1,569 (@,127)
Impact of change in accounting policy B3 HREG 2 F/2 = = 2,340 = = = = = 2340
Restated balance at R=F-—4mA-A
st April, 2012 B (74,801) 17,924 2,495 20,735 (3,644) (3,061) (@ 1,569 (38,787)
Exchange adjustments ERBE 14 1 - 19 - (39 - - 182
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (1) 4882 (10,646) 413 4,989 269 47 - = 354
(Charged)/credited to reserves R (IR /3T = = (1,597) = = = 4 = (1,593)
At 315t March, 2013 (restated) RZF-=F=FA=FT-A(Ej) (69905 7,289 131 25,920 (3,375) (2,653) - 1,569 (39,844)
Depreciation Fair value
allowances adjustment on
in excess Future  Employee Withholding tangible and Cash
of the related  benefitof  retirement taxon  intangible flow
depreciation  taxlosses  henefits  Provisions  dividends assets hedges Others Total
BER
BLEBNE HEEEZ 8 BV EEY 5é

JAERRE  ARAE  RHEN BfF REROH AAEER REMR At &3t
§000Fx S000Fm $'000Fm  $000F7T  S000F7T S000Fm  $000Fm 000 T - $000 T

Deferred tax arising from; REATBBZELHE

At 1t April, 2013 (restated) RZF-=%¥MA-A (&) (69,905) 7,289 131 25,920 (3,375) (2,653) - 1,569 (39,844)
Exchange adjustments EH8% 114 (6) - 31 - Iy} - - (@)
(Charged)credited to profit or loss 782 (418) /3FA (807) 1,428 984 7,687 (4911) 440 - (1,569) 3,252
(Charged)/credited to reserves Wt (R) /3TA - - (816) - - - 316 - (500)
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-ME=A=1+-H (70,598) 8,711 1479 33,236 (8,286) 217) 316 - (37,313)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 EESBERZAEH @)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CERELEKEBEE (B1)

(Continued) (%)
The Company ¥ /N
Depreciation
allowances
in excess  Employee
of the related  retirement Cash flow
depreciation benefits  Provisions hedges Total
BEERE =] ReheE
ZHERBE  RHIKER B H st
$'000 F7£  $'000 Tt $'000 F; $000 Fr  $000 T
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (&31)
Deferred tax arising from: REUTEEZBEEHE
At 1st April, 2012 RZE——FWA—H (55,392) 146 3,396 4) (51,854)
Impact of change in accounting policy &:tBEREFHzFE - 1,961 - - 1,961
Restated balance at Tst April, 2012~ R-Z——FMA—H
R 5E R (55,392) 2,107 3,396 4) (49,893)
Credited to profit or loss RE&RETA 1,010 438 401 = 1,849
(Charged)/credited to reserves PR (308) /A = (1,497) = 4 (1,493)
At 31st March, 2013 RZE-—=f=ZA=+—H
(restated) (&31) (54,382) 1,048 3,797 - (49,537)
At 1st April, 2013 (restated) RZZ—-=4WA—A (F3) (54,382) 1,048 3,797 - (49,537)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss R ( ?Dfﬁ? /A (809) 811 (87) - (85)
(Charged)/credited to reserves PR (08) /5TA - (784) - 316 (468)
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-WE=A=+—H (55,191) 1,075 3,710 316 (50,090)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

25 Income tax in the balance sheet
(Continued)

25 EEEBRZAEHR @

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) ERBELEHREEE  (BE)
(Continued) (&)
Reconciliation to the balance sheets EEAGBRYE
The Group The Company
EE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mOF —T—=F ZET-0OF _—ZT—=F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7r $000 F7;t $'000 F7T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Net deferred tax assets recognised REEBGERER
in the balance sheets EEFIR & 58 26,457 16,452 - =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised REEBBEXRERZ
in the balance sheets RIETRIEE EFE (63,770) (56,296) (50,090) (49,537)
(37,313) (39,844) (50,090) (49,537)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () RERZELEFHIEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of $512,022,000 (2013: $460,023,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions
and entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$122,487,000 (2013: $64,327,000) and $378,217,000
(2013: $384,198,000) which can be carried forward up to five
years and twenty years respectively from the year in which
the loss originated. The remaining balance of $11,318,000
(2013:$11,498,000) does not expire under current tax
legislation.
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BRI FE () FTE 2 E5TEER - ANEBW &
R ﬁF%#%ﬂ%Eﬂasu,ozz,OOOﬁ:<:5§
—E¢ : 460,023,0007T) ZELEFRIBEE -
REREREBHBERZEER BRI AR
BEEE A R PR FE AR Bl FI AR S5 5 R /B 18 -

AR B EEPE122,487,0007C (=&
— =4 : 64,327,0007%) 378,217,000 7T
(ZZ—=% :384,198,0007T) A D RIH
EEELARBAESRZAFTFR _+F - &
11,318,0007T (== —=4 : 11,498,0007T)
BB TS RE R TREE -
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BT ERR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BB E)

(BRABEHAN

26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set

26 %

ZN

EEGAERE
%Z;Tﬁﬁﬁﬁé‘w

e

g7 kiR
(a) MEFARIBLH 22

A

man

I "J W‘B'fﬁzqz%ﬂgﬁiﬁj{/m

BEEHE - A2 7

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details  z= 1 Bl 48 A 2819 7 F #) ] FF R 2
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T :
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company AT
Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital General compensation Hedging Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
g4 R ER
ke RORE  BERE  EARE  -REE  BERE  WEE  REEA EREE
Note it §'000F7z  $000Fx  $000Fx  §000Fx  §000FxT  $000FxT  §000FT  §000FT  §000 F
Balance at 1st April, 2012 R-5--FMA-RLH 255437 344,266 1,101 63,307 2,261 12,701 19 567,802 1,246,894
Impact of change in accounting policy SRR Y2 - - - - - - - (9,.924) (9.924)
Restated balance as 1st April, 2012 R=F-—FMA-RESILH 255437 344,266 1,101 63,307 2,261 12,701 19 557,878 1,236,970
Changes in equity for the year: FEEZRESY:
Transfer from capital reserve to retained profits ~ HEARBEEAZRAEF 26(d)(i) = = = (4,087) = = = 4,087 =
Shares issued on exercise of share options ROEERENSTRA 26(c)i) 1,309 13,990 = = = = = = 15,299
Transfer from share-based compensation RRERERERA
reserve to share premium on exercise ERRRREEEZ
of share options ey 26(c)i) - 2315 - - - (2319 - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions NRABRFERZX S = = = = = 4766 = = 4766
Final dividend approved in respect of HEBNE-FEZ
the previous year FERE 26(b)(i) = = = = = = - (154416)  (154.416)
Interim dividend declared in respect of BRAER 2P HRE
the current year 26(b)(i) - - - - - - - (32,797) (32,797)
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENREE
(testated) (E31) 9 - - - - = = (19 219166 219,147
Restated balance at 31t March, 2013 R-B-ZEZR=t-REfIEH 36746 360,571 1,101 59,220 2,261 15,152 - 653918 1348969
Restated balance at 1st April, 2013 R-§-=5MA-RESILs 256,746 360,571 1,101 59,220 2,261 15,152 - 653,918 1,348,969
Changes in equity for the year: FEEREAE
Transfer from capital reserve to retained profits ~ HERREEAZRARA 26(d)(i) - - - (4,087) - - - 4,087 -
Shares issued on exercise of share options ATEBREMRIRG 26(c)(i) 5714 26,244 - - - - - - 31,958
Transfer from share-based compensation RZ5-ME=A=RH
reserve to share premium on exercise AERRENRHER
of share options before 3rd March, 2014 BEREERERNEE 26(c)i) - 4,052 - - - (4,052) - - -
Transfer from share-based compensation \ZT-TE=A=Rfk
reserve to share capital on exercise RTRERER 8RR
of share options after 3rd March, 2014 ERREREERZRE 26(c)i) 87 - - - - (871) - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions WRHBRFERZ RS - - - - - 8,309 - - 8,309
Transition to no-par value regime HZF-BE=A=A
on 3rd March, 2014 BYZEARENE 26(0)i) 391968 (390,867) (1,101) - - - - - -
Final dividend approved in respect of HEBRE-FEL
the previous year FHRE 26(b)(i) - - - - - - - (171188)  (171,188)
Interim dividend declared in respect of ERAER 2P HRE
the current year 26(b)() - - - - - - - (33,009) (33,009)
Total comprehensive income for the year TERRENEEE 9 - - - - - - (1600) 264053 262453
Balance at 315t March, 2014 R-B-ME=A=1-RLH 655,299 - - 55,133 2,261 18,538 (1600 717861 1,447,492

HNEREERRAR

=/ -NEFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(Continued)
(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

26 :%Z'K 1“%1%&H£/u\ (Zﬁ:
(b) BRE
(i) BENTARRFREREAZANFERSR

2014 2013
—Z-0NF —E-=F
$'000 F T $'000 F7T
Interim dividend declared and paid of EEIRREE X ERE
3.2 cents per ordinary share BRI ER3.210
(2013: 3.2 cents per ordinary share) —E—=F: giREEk3.21) 33,009 32,797
Final dividend proposed after the REEE BEEIRAR RS
balance sheet date of 17.0 cents per SR E B 17.014
ordinary share (2013: 16.6 cents —E—=F: 5K
per ordinary share) A% 16.611) 175,787 170,597
208,796 203,394

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date is
based on 1,034,043,500 ordinary shares (2013: 1,027,691,500
ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the
date of approval of the financial statements.

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as liabilities at the balance sheet date.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

AT ﬁa%ﬁﬁZ%%kﬁﬁﬁm&W%ﬁ
REHBEITIRMDE801,034,043,500 f& &

BR(ZE—=F: 1,027,691,500ijt m
B%) 5T&
SNSRI

BER 2 R AR B4

(i) BRE-MEFE INFRAMERS
MNP ARBBREFTEAZRE

2014 2013
—E-F —E—=
$'000 Tt $'000 F7t
Final dividend in respect of the previous BRE—MEFE  URFERN
financial year, approved and paid during BRI 2 REAAR B
the year, of 16.6 cents per ordinary share BRREEAR 16611
(2013: 15.1 cents per ordinary share) —E—=F: 8k
@Ak 15.110) 171,188 154,416
The final dividend approved and paid during the year is based ﬂim&t,@&;ﬁﬁzaﬁﬁggﬁ ]}}gﬂxﬁﬂi

on the total number of issued shares at the date of Annual
General Meeting.
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BT ERR ML

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(Continued)

26

BX - #EkRE @

(c) Share capital () B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEERSRITRAE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B% 2 &5 A% 2 ot
‘000 T8¢ $'000 Tt ‘000 FR%  $'000 +7T
Authorised: (note (1)) SEERA - (EE())
Ordinary shares of SRMEEO.25 TZ
$0.25 each (note (1)) Ak (BHEEx) - - 3,200,000 800,000
Ordinary shares, issued BE#7TR
and fully paid: E#E B -
At 1st April R A—AH 1,026,984 256,746 1,021,748 255,437
Shares issued on exercise AT IS AR A
of share options mETAR 6,992 5,714 5,236 1,309
Transfer from share-based RZE—NFE=H=H1%
compensation reserve to AT R A
share capital on exercise of i B Az D E i
share options after E R REE
3rd March, 2014 ZRA - 871 - -
Transition to no-par value RZE—NFE=H=H
regime on 3rd March, 2014 EREREEGE
(note (Ill)) GiE(D) - 391,968 - -
At 31st March =A=+—H 1,033,976 655,299 1,026,984 256,746
Notes: B3 -
() Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), () RER-Z—NOF=A=-HRAKERZIFE
which commenced operation on 3rd March, 2014, the concept BCATUER) (F622F) » AERAZ

(1

of authorised share capital no longer exists.

In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the company’s shares no
longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3rd March,
2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this
transition.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) on 3rd March, 2014 any amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account and the capital redemption
reserve has become part of the Company’s share capital.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

(1

STHBEFE -

RiFEECRBED) (£622F) 5135
ik ARRBMHBE —FT-—HF=A=HET
BREHEE ZREEMEZECRITERN
218 IR 2 HERA R -

BIEFES (RARMED) (F622F) MR 11
FITEREZBEMIEX R E—F
—A=ZH ARG HEEERSEREAE
EEEEREBERRIRAZ —3 M5 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
6,992,000 (2013: 5,236,000) ordinary shares in the Company.
The net consideration was $31,958,000 (2013: $15,299,000)
of which $5,714,000 (2013: $1,309,000) was credited
to share capital and the balance of $26,244,000 (2013:
$13,990,000) was credited to the share premium account in
accordance with section 48B of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32.). Amount of $4,052,000 (2013:
$2,315,000) upon exercise of share options before 3rd March,
2014 and $871,000 (2013:$Nil) upon exercise of share options
after 3rd March, 2014 have been transferred from the share-
based compensation reserve to the share premium account and
share capital, respectively, in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(p)(iv).

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Prior to 3rd March, 2014, the application of the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve was governed
by sections 48B and 49H respectively of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In accordance with the
transitional provisions set out in section 37 of the Schedule 11
to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on
3rd March, 2014, any amount standing to the credit to the
share premium account and the capital redemption reserve
has become part of the company’s share capital (see note
26(c)). The use of the share capital as from 3rd March, 2014
is governed by the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622).

(ii) Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another
property. A total gain, representing the difference between the
historical carrying value of the property disposed of and the
fair value of the consideration received, resulted.
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26 B ~ @ERKRE @)

() BRA ()
() HEERREBIRA (4)

BB HEATEBRIEE R RS - I
ARARFZARE LRERBRNEE —F&R
Sk RARRZRBEEMS  IAERE
BEBRFHEM -

(i) REBRETEBITZRG

FR AIRBARQ G EER6992,000 0K

—F— =4 :5,236,000%) 2 BEREET
o R {BF% 531,958,000 (—ZFE—=
£ :15,299,0007T) + EH5,714,0007T (=
T—=1:1,309,0007T) B BAMRK - 258
26,244,0007t (ZZ—=4 : 13,990,0007T)
BIRIERT BB (A REHI) (FF532%F) F48B
IEBAR D EEBE R_T—NE=A=H
AI{TIE B AR #E 18 2 518 4,052,000 (=&
—=% :2,315,0007t) ER T —HF=H
= BT ERER 2 3XIB871,0007T (=
T—=F:8) ERENRZE1QeVFEzE
FTEEREROERHEERED BIBARMD R
BERKARA -

(d) fEEZEERARER
() BOBREREXEEHE

R-ZE—ME=A=05 ROEBERE
KNERIFEZ BRI RS (R EHEH)
FA8B RAHIGEHE - REFHBEB (2 AIK
BINE622F) MK 11 F 37 IGTH 2 @BEM
G - RZZE—WME=A=1 ' EAR’RMH %
BERSKENEABEDRES K BARRQRRK
RNz —E0 (RH3E26(0) - BRAZ Bk B
—T-FE=Z A ZHEZHES (R REHF)D
(8622F) HE -

(i) BEXRHE

ERASER-—NANENF - AETZEEL
— &t - ARF W —HAIMBARLE—IA
ME - REUREE RS —EWESN o Bt
ELals HEMEELFEmESRD
WRELABZER -
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b e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAHAN OEEHE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve (Continued)

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and
the fair value of the property received (“the property”). The
unrealised gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised
on depreciation of the property. During the year, $4,087,000
(2013: $4,087,000) was transferred from capital reserve to
retained profits.

(iii) Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy,
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada and Vitasoy (Foshan) Company
Limited in accordance with regulations in the PRC and Macau
respectively.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of monetary
items that in substance form part of the net investment in
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

(v) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group or the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 1(p)(iv).

(vi) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(s).

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

26 B -~ @FEREKRE @)

(d) REZMEERAR (5)
(i) BEAMHE (B

ZEXGZWHFREWESEDE (Y
2 |) ARBEZLHD ED IR R AR
7o REWRIF BT AERNGE - WHRE
PIEFERZIR - BFR - 4,087,000 (
—E— =4 :4,087,000 7T) BENHEHE
BEEREBRF -

(iii) ZBeRf#EE

B ERREMY - ) CRFI) B
[RAF Ry (FhL) BRAQF D HIRE
B NORFYZEPIRSL

(iv) ERf#E

EN FEEHEESmERBINIMEZ B R R
ZHBBREEZMBENZBENGBERE
ASMIR 2 BN B EE BRI E 8
MZEBEBEL 2 ELEZR - ZREBRR
BIRE 1(u) Tl SRTBUREE -

(v) BROERBERESE

BOHEREEFEE SR TAREIARRQF]
BEZER G R ARTEEREZ A
18 - BRABBARTIRIBEMEE 1(p)(iv) PIEUBLIA
Betn BN 2 (R < S RT R T MR o

(vi) Hhf#E

P HEEERAERFERRIBEME () M
RSN E LR RA 2 S 5T BOR R G
AeRBZReRENRZHPTAZAR
BERFHFEE 2 ERIBD
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SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March, 2014, the amounts of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company are
$720,122,000 (2013 (restated): $656,179,000).

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a final
dividend of 17.0 cents per ordinary share (2013: 16.6 cents
per ordinary share), amounting to $175,787,000 (2013:
$170,597,000). This dividend has not been recognised as
liabilities at the balance sheet date.

(f) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of
bank loans and obligations under finance leases, and adjusted
capital as all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

The Group’s strategy was unchanged from 2012, which was
to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below 30%. In
order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.
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26 B ~ @ERKRE @)

(e) AIEDIKf# R

RZE—NFE=A=+—8 Atk TFK
NAREFRE A ZFEEEEA720,122,000
7T (ZZE—=%F (&%) : 656,179,000 JT) °

NEEH%  EEEZRRERBEREERE
BRI70ML(Z2—=F : BREEK16.6
fil]) - #8A175,787,000C (ZE— =4 :
170,597,0007T) - EEAKENEE A R iE
REEE -

(f) EXREE

AEEGEEREARZ EZARRRELRE
BRI E R - BB Em KRR
B8] IR B o AR 8 Y K 7 o i & IR AR S
ERE  HHEEERRREREBEAE
i F) 25 48 B A T ER A28

A BT E R T B A AR TR R
1B LU RS IR SR B R AL AR S
KT L1 BB A K 2 B AR S T
6 - AR AR 2 2 (AR
e

AREZANED  AEBENABEHERBER
HREREREEERRBEZEE - Bt A
B AEERKBEBERER/RTERLBEN
EEMHAE  KHBEARERZAAM
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

The debt-to-adjusted equity ratio at 31st March, 2014 and
2013 was as follows:

26 B~ #ERERE &)

R-ZF—MER_F-=F=A=+—RAZ
BEHKEHAEREARLRNT
The Group The Company
REH NN
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mF —T=F —T-NF T =F
$°000 ¥t $'000 Frr $°000 ¥t $°000 FiT

(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Current liabilities: REBE -
Bank loans (note 21) RITER (FsE21) 51,790 150,046 - =
Obligations under finance leases BEMRE &
(note 22) (FF5E22) 1,176 1,557 - =
52,966 151,603 - =
Non-current liabilities: EREBEE -
Bank loans (note 21) RITER (H5E21) 68,068 93,123 - =
Obligations under finance leases BEMRE &
(note 22) (FF5E22) 5,203 7,199 - =
73,271 100,322 - =
Total debt =Rt b o 126,237 251,925 - -
Total equity (restated) AR (B5) 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,447,492 1,348,969
Less: Proposed dividends o BRAR R
(note 26(b)(i)) (FtzE 26(b)(i)) (175,787)  (170,597)  (175,787)  (170,597)
Adjusted capital RABER 1,781,525 1,647,248 1,271,705 1,178,372

Debt-to-adjusted equity ratio EEHKHEERLE

7% 15% 0% 0%

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to
fulfilment of covenants which include maintaining the Group’s
debt-to-equity ratio below a certain amount and maintaining
the Group’s net worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for
the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

AEEETROEEANERE  BEEH
RAEE 2 BEERLRERN —EBENA
TREFEELREFN—EBENRL ° (&
PA_EFrash - AR E) R EAE A M B A R L
RESTINER BN 2 EARRRTE ©
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposures to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strength of the individual customer. In
order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with
customers, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically. Trade receivables are generally due within one to
three months from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the balance
sheet date, 16.7% (2013: 16.3%) and 42.8% (2013: 47.6%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Company as set out in note 29, the
Company does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Company to credit risk.

The Group's bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
placed with financial institutions with sound credit ratings, and
the management consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is
low.

The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for

managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March, 2013.
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27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management for daily operation, including
placing short term cash deposits and raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. Cash surplus over operating
needs are closely monitored and managed by the Group’s
central cash and treasury management system. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed

27 Eﬁlﬂrfﬁ
7\ A{E

SIENEMmI A

(b) RENVE =R

AEEEREEECEEEATERIES
EE - DEFREEESFRRE A
mERHRESHR - EMHEEBRBE TESL
B KT - ARERNRESEIE - 8
BEEMTCREBHALAEBFRES K

EWEAZEEE%IJF)&%)JEQ REE - REEZK
REEHEERDESFTEREBTERE

wZER  MERAEEHZR TR HE
NIET 2 & mgiE & hf%%Zﬁf%
NENEHERBAZABESTE - BEZE
—E-FZA=ZT—HBULFER XEH

lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its E¥ 2 REE S R Mt EEEBRELR 2K
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The Group’s SR E ) -

exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies for managing

such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st March,

2013.

The following table details the remaining contractual TRFVIAKERARARGEERAZS/HE

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay:

BZHTAMOMR - IREBEAKARITIREA
EmE (BREREONE - RINEFEIRE
BREBTZMEFEZFE) ARAREE R
ARRRIBEEBAFAIRKE BRED :

The Group rEER
2014
—T-mF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRTRASH
More than  More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FRR —F#% MEE
RER BEMER BEFR st fREE
$°000 Tt $000 F;xt $'000 Fjt $'000 Tt $°000 Tt
Trade and other payables JRE A~ AR R B LAt AT 3R
(excluding receipt in advance) (T RIEEYGRE) (927,297) - - (927,297)  (927,297)
Bank loans RITER (56,382) (37,039) (34,924) (128,345) (119,858)
Obligations under finance MERE2EH
leases (1,615) (1,615) (4,353) (7,583) (6,379)
(985,294) (38,654) (39,277) (1,063,225) (1,053,534)

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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27 Financial risk management and 27

fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The Group (Continued)

7J HERE
JL:{E. (%8)

SIENEMI A

(b) RENVE TR
F&EE ()

2013
—T-=F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRRFTEFR ST
More than More than
Within 1 yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—F R —Fig MFi&
RER BERFER BRER #st BREE
$'000 ¥t $'000 For  $'000 F7r  $'000 F7r  $'000 Fir
Trade and other payables JE A B R R EL At FE A5 5K
(excluding receipt in advance) (T RIEEYGRE) (736,803) = = (736,803)  (736,803)
Bank loans RITER (160,615) (31,801) (71,127) (263,543) (243,169)
Obligations under finance leases MEARE 2 EB (2,157) (1,822) (6,734) (10,713) (8,756)
(899,575) (33,623) (77,861) (1,011,059) (988,728)
The Company /N
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRTHRRAESR
2014 2013
—ET-F —E—=F
Within Within
1 year or Carrying 1 year or Carrying
on demand amount on demand amount
—FAH —F A
RER IREE RER REE
$000 ¥t $°000 ¥t $'000F;r $'000FT
Trade and other payables JE 1< B 50 I EL At 5 K (397,673)  (397,673)  (333,686)  (333,686)
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EPNGIE /S (47,482) (47,482) (39,426) (39,426)
(445,155) (445,155) (373,112) (373,112)
(c) Interest rate risk () F== P
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises AEERARABZFERRFEREWNEE
primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. The Group and & ° AKBEARFERAEEERZEEE

the Company monitor the level of its fixed rate and variable
rate borrowings. The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
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27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's and the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings at the
balance sheet date:

27 ﬁﬂlﬂffﬁ
7\ ATE

SIENEMmI A

() M=mEPz (&
(i) RN=REH

TR EH AR EERAD AN B E
ZRIEEH -

The Group
KEH
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —T—=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
BRA=E &5 BERFI=E k|
% $'000 Tt % $'000 FiT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEBER -
Obligations under finance leases MERE & 7.50 6,379 7.58 8,756
Bank loans RITER 5.68 86,914 5.84 153,986
93,293 162,742
Variable rate borrowings: EEER
Bank loans RITER 3.53 32,944 5.55 89,183
Total borrowings fEERE 126,237 251,925
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBMEDH
At 31st March, 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/ RZZE—HF=A=+—H ' fh5tF=

decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $228,000 (2013: $649,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’'s profit after taxation and retained
profits in respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date. The impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates.
Management assumed that certain interest-bearing borrowings
maturing during the next reporting period will be rolled over
upon the maturing for daily operation purposes.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

FH TR A AR Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ—f """"" @J
RAEFRFAEZIBERT - AEBRRB RGN

AR BB 3% F % A itk S8 > #8 hn#9 228,000 7T
—E =% :649,0007T) °

PR ESTBRRNERE B ASERAZ
/iifjfUTIE\-%@ﬁ(ﬁ% .ﬁﬁuuiﬁiumgﬁj

i P EE A AN S B BR T 10m A R B R A 2
WFME o NS BIBR 18 8 Al SR AR BB Ve I BT
o8- E&WT“EEﬂgiﬁZEFM
T EME - BEREERKBON T —EHRE
%ﬂ%z%%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%&ﬂm1uﬁa
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27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at
fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation.
The fixed rate instruments of the Group are insensitive to any
change in market interest rate. A change in interest rate at the
balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31st March, 2013.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which give rise to receivables,
payables, cash balances and obligations under finance leases
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars (“USD"), Australian dollars
("AUD"), New Zealand dollars (“NzZD"), Euros (“EUR"),
Singapore dollars (“SGD") and Renminbi (“RMB").

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), all sales and purchases are denominated in
either HKD or USD, except for certain transactions with group
entities and purchases that are denominated in AUD, EUR, SGD
and RMB. Given the HKD is pegged to the USD, management
do not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with such USD denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in AUD, EUR, SGD and RMB, since
the volume of such transactions is not significant, management
consider the exposure to currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency other
than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with group
entities and certain borrowings from group entities that are
denominated in HKD and NZD, most of the other transactions
are denominated in their functional currencies.
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27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group's policies for managing such risk were unchanged
from the year ended 31st March, 2013. During the year ended
31st March, 2014, the Group uses forward exchange contracts
and bank balances to hedge its currency risk arising from the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw materials
that are denominated in foreign currency and classifies these
as cash flow hedges. At 31st March, 2014, the Group and the
Company do not have outstanding forward exchange contracts
(2013: Nil).

@
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
significant exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the spot rates
at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
into the Group's presentation currency, the exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance
form part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank
balances that designated as a hedge of the Group’s and the
Company's foreign currency risk of highly probable forecast
transactions or committed future transactions are excluded.

Exposure to currency risk

j;]'&ﬂﬁﬁ
NRE

27 SIENEMmI A

BEE-_T-—=—F-_A=1t—HILEFEE"
AEEEBABAR 2 2 BRI E O -
HE-TNE=-A=t+—HILFE A&

EMAERINES K MIRITEAFEREES
AINEFHEZ M5 V%& & 18 LA 2 R A1 L
RAEAcEXKRRE  WHOBARERES
e M T — mi_ﬂ_+ B x&H
RARBIWEAEE 2 EHINESH (ZF
—=F &)

() EZzE¥RER

TRAVIAEBEARRARNEE B IFIAB
AERCNREEE S ENEEREE

SEEMEEZEREEER - B /R A
BB RFRNPERBE REBIE

2B - mEFBAIMEIR B AT 2 B
BHREARAEEZE2INEEMEL 25
REASERRZEE (BEBKNHER
Al REFE 2 —#0) 2B AREE
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬁTmLﬂz
RBBEFEETIAKR 5 2 SNERR Z
RITEFLINBIEER -

The Group KEE
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)
HERRAE (AE8TE)
2014 2013
“E-mE -3-=%
usp SGD HKD RMB NZD UsD SGD HKD RMB NZD
iR #r it ARE  HiEER eI BT %% ARE  HERT
§000FL  S000F7  S000F7T  S000F7T  S000F7T  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FT  $000Fm
Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬂfﬁi‘\&ﬁ%#ﬁ BB 8,512 a7 51,815 60,147 1327 8 325 13,405 5379
Amount due fromv(to) group companes fEk/ (FEft) £BREATRE 20,268 - 6,665 5718 25,684 - 1,206 64,236 -
Trade and other receivables MR &ﬁﬁ el (15) 4,610 10 - 8,455 10 = 9,853
Trade and other payables R RAMENT (32,474) - - (2,310) (16,103) = = (3,633) (6,186)
Net exposure FEREE (3,709) 5,037 58,490 63,555 10908 8463 4410 74,008 9,046
HMIPEREEERART —T—=/—NEFR

191



Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEARAIN LOEEHE)

27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

The Company

27 BREBEERSTMIAZ

NAE @)

(d) EHEEkE (&)
() HEZzE¥ERE (&)
RRF

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

HNERBRE (DUB%EHE)
2014 2013
—E-mF “T-=F
usb SGD RMB usb SGD RMB
EyH ¥ AR® EI T ARE
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt $'000 Tt $'000 F7r $'000 F7r $'000 FT
Bank deposits and cash ROEHRERE R
and cash equivalents ReZEER 7,641 427 60,147 830 8 13,405
Amount due from/(to) Bl (&)
subsidiaries B AFE 16,678 44,047 20,000 182,889 50,619 78,653
Trade and other receivables MR R E M REUTR (15) 4,610 - = 8,455 =
Trade and other payables R RZRE MR (30,532) - (2.310) (14,728) = (3,633)
Net exposure BERAE (6,228) 49,084 77,837 168,991 50,082 88,425

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have
significant exposure at the balance sheet date had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.
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27 Financial risk management and 27 BREREEREMIAZ
fair values of financial instruments N RE |
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥m=p (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) B (B)
The Group AEE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after taxation in foreign after taxation
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
BRELE A BR Tt 18 i A
fE R RAREE T i & FARER & F
tH i 4 A A
(T &) (T &) (&) (&)
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7T
usD ETT 5% (62) 5% (36)
(5)% 62 (5)% 36
NZD CEiicl v 5% - 5% 317
(5)% - (5)% (317)
SGD ¥IT 5% 210 5% 353
(5)% (210) (5)% (353)
HKD T 5% 2,240 5% 254
(5)% (2,240) (5)% (254)
RMB AR 5% 2,653 5% 3,652
(5)% (2,653) (5)% (3,652)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent EXRZMZDITERBETRAEESEEUE

et g

an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the BINBEE¥HAEZRTREN @ REERE
Group entities’ profit after taxation measured in the respective 172 [E R E BB AEE 2 B8 BN &7
functional currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate £ °

ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
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27 Financial risk management and
fair values of financial instruments
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances that
are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk
of highly probable forecast transactions or committed future
transactions. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

(e) Fair value measurement

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given these terms, it
is not meaningful to disclose fair values.

All other financial instruments of the Group and the Company

carried at costs or amortised costs are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31st March, 2014 and 2013.
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28 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2014
not provided for in the financial statements were as

28 FEIE

(a) R=ZZBE—WFE=A=+—8 KEMK
WERAEE AR NERAEFBOT

follows:
The Group The Company
REHE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mE —FT—= —E-mE —FT—=
$'000 ¥t $'000 F;t $°000 Fjt $'000 FiT
Contracted for SHED 45,557 24,531 6,867 14,109
Authorised but not contracted for BEHEBRETY 287,468 287,963 118,246 104,818
333,025 312,494 125,113 118,927

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group and the Company are
committed to certain contracts for the acquisition and

construction of plant and machinery and buildings.

(b) At 31st March, 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

RZZE-—ME=A=+—8 A&EBERAEALQ
ARTETHRERZERE  #ERETZ

BHY o

(b) R=F—ME=A=+—8 - BEFA
W 2 (R B A 2 RIE A

payable as follows: NRETEWT -
The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
and and
Properties equipment Properties  equipment
T RS TRRHezs
L/ES & S P&
$'000 ¥t $000 Tt $'000 F7 $'000 F7T
Within one year —FR" 57,173 1,719 50,610 1,024
After one year but within five years ~—F&EBRAFR 45,644 3,478 37,438 1,454
After five years hF# 173 - = =
102,990 5,197 88,048 2,478
The Company /N
2014 2013
—E2-F —E-=F
Properties Properties
ES 7JE 3
$'000 Tt $'000 +7T
Within one year —FR 23,232 14,852
After one year but within five years —FRERFAN 25,610 17,998
48,842 32,850

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH
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28 Commitments (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

The Group leases a number of properties and items of factory
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases
run for an initial period of one to six years, with an option to
renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Some of the leases of the Group include contingent rentals
determinable at certain fixed rates on the turnover of the
relevant concessions in periods in which the leases relate to.

29 Contingent liabilities

(a) As at 31st March, 2014, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries. The Directors do not consider
it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under
the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn down by the
subsidiaries of $79,422,000 (2013: $165,290,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income
in respect of the guarantees as its fair value cannot be
reliably measured and its transaction price was $Nil (2013:
$Nil).

(b) The Company has given undertakings to certain wholly-
owned subsidiaries to provide them with such financial
assistance as is necessary to maintain them as going
concerns.

30 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with related parties

(i) The products of the Group are distributed in Australia
by a related party (non-controlling interests of the
Company’s subsidiary) and a management fee is charged
for the provision of services. The management fee is
calculated based on a pre-determined percentage of the
gross sales of products distributed by the related party.
Total management fees charged by the related party for
the year amounted to $25,157,000 (2013: $27,122,000).
The amount due to the related party as at 31st, March
2014 totalled $6,176,000 (2013: $6,948,000).
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(b) ()
RAT ()

AEERBCEHERRLZEAMERZIEL
R es R o RFHEVZRB—FEN
F-UWEHARREREERZED  ENME
BRI EFEE o

AEE B EE IRE MIZAER ) R EMNHE
EMRCERBIE TREELXREE AR
HE o

29 SAREE

(a) RZZE—WF=A=+—80 &2
METERBA TZfEfﬂ;ffﬁﬁmeﬂ
ELER - EFRAREMERME AR
/Aﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%@-ﬁﬂ%@?ﬁ REEE
ARARBEBEHZER TR EETINEB
Nal & Z{EE79,422,000T (=&
—=%: 165,290,0007E)

Eﬁﬁéﬁ%kf%z/&ftfﬁﬂﬂiifﬂéiﬁ% =05
RE/ETL(ZF—=F:FTx) &K
AR BB E B RERE TR
Ao

(b) RARIEAZERETEEMBL TTET

NERHEUBREEEERLE
(3

30 EXRBEEALIRS

BV BRRESBEEE IR RERIN A%

BIEZIVATERBEEALRS -

(a) EHEABEA LT 2R 5

(y AEBEZERBA—RZ@EEAL (KA
BN a 2 FEERER) RBEMNS fﬁ
ZATHIRHRFURERER - B2

%%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%#ﬁz;ﬁa BALTDHEER
BIHERMZBDLE - TR ZHE
AiﬂﬁzHﬂZﬂ%%Fﬁ & $£25,157, ooo
T (ZZF—=%:27,122,0007T) °
_Q—P_Tlizﬂ E+—E|ﬁ§ﬁ%§2%§z$
AL ZRIBAETE 56,176,000 (= F
—=% :6,948,0007T) °
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30 Material related party transactions

(a)
(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

On 28th June, 2013, the Group entered into the
distribution agreement with a related party (non-
controlling interests of the Company’s subsidiaries) in
Australia pursuant to which the related party agreed
to supply to the Group the dairy and juice beverage
products for distribution in Hong Kong and Macau, and
to grant to the Group an exclusive right to distribute the
products in Hong Kong and Macau. The unit price of the
dairy and juice beverage products was pre-determined in
an agreement entered into between the Group and the
related party, and would be revised by reference to the
prevailing market price of same products sold by a related
party to other distributors. Total purchases from the
related party amounted to $8,607,000 (2013: $Nil). The
amount due to the related party as at 31st, March 2014
amounted to $3,279,000 (2013: $Nil).

On 29th July, 2013, the Group entered into the
distribution agreement with a related party (non-
controlling interests of the Company’s subsidiaries)
under which the products of the Group are distributed in
New Zealand by the related party. A management fee is
charged for the provision of services. The management
fee is calculated based on a pre-determined percentage
of the gross sales of products distributed by the related
party. Total management fee charged by the related party
for the year amounted to $4,643,000 (2013: $Nil). The
amount due to the related party as at 31st March, 2014
amounted to $554,000 (2013: $ Nil).

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii)
above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Connected Transaction” of the
Reports of the directors.

The related party transactions in respect of (iii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

HMMEREERRAR —B-—=/ —NFEFH

30 ERFEEALRS (&)

(a) EHEBEA LT ZR 5 (&)

(ii)

(iii)

RZTE—=F,AZ+/\B  "&EFH
—ZBAEALT (RARRINB AR ZIEE
REAERS) FOBINGT S 7 85 17 a% - Rkt
ZEAEATRERAEEHEEILE SRR
RARGBREB RS E  UERTFA
EEREBRBRPIDEER I BRE ©
IBERERRARBZEMEBEE DA
AREFBEZBEBEBA LTI Z WP iEL
BT IBelER—K@EEALTRAE
fth D S HERRER 2 E R M EED
AR -MzZBEEALTRBEZSERAEE
8,607,000 (=T —=F : TJjL) o K
—ET--NE=ZF=+—BHEMZBEEA
+ 2 FIEA3,279,0007C (ZZE—=4 :
=) e

R-ZT—=F+A=-+hB KN&EEFEH
—ZBAEALT (RARRINB AR ZFEE
IR#EzS) FIM D EHE - Bt A& E
ZEMABEALTRIAREDHE - 2@
BEATHRIREREKBEEER - &
BERARELEECZBEALTDHE
ERREEE BDLFTE - HER
FE ZBEEBEATWRZEREBAA
4,643,000 (ZFE—=F : TJjT) °
R-E—NE=A=+—BENTZE
AT ZFIEA554,000 T (ZF—=
F ) o

F BB R() 2BEATRSHEK
ETRBEBAAEFREZFERBER
5 FTRANEUAZEZHWERTHN
EEEWRE [BEXS] —f -

L BB CEEATRSEX LT
MAUAEBVAEMATCZHERERS -
RAMZERFHERPET EHREE
1AAE ZHETMTE ©
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30 Material related party transactions
(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

30 ERBEEALIRS (&)

(b) BREEBASZHME

AEBBREEAS 2ME (BREMET7 I
RERARBEEIN ZKBIAKRMES T
BEMETRSHES XN ZHIE) 0T

2014 2013

—EF-NF —=
$°000 Tt $'000 Tt
Short-term employee benefits HHEBRA 36,108 30,719
Post-employment benefits B2 R A 3,232 1,001
Equity compensation benefits A EREF 7,465 4,398
46,805 36,118

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

31 Non-adjusting post balance sheet
event

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 26(b).

32 Comparative figures

As a result of the application of Revised HKAS 19, Employee
benefits, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year’s presentation. Further details of these
developments are disclosed in note 1(c).
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33 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March, 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new standard
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st, March,
2014 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 32,
Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and financial
liabilities

1st January, 2014

Amendments to HKAS 39,
Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge
accounting

1st January, 2014

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments Not yet determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Account and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation from the company’s first financial year
commencing after 3rd March, 2014 (i.e. the company’s
financial year which began on 1st April, 2014) in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact of
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application of
Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.
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AFYERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABH#ETE)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-MmE 2% “E—F “E——F —T-TF
$'000 ¥t $'000 7T $'000 T7¢ $'000 Tt $'000 T7¢

(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (Z51)

Results ES

Turnover BEB 4,493,885 4,051,248 3,716,539 3,329,336 3,012,312

Profit from operations ISR 469,669 444,160 425,336 426,540 380,181

Finance costs BEMK (13,068) (21,102) (17,243) (7,279) (5,222)

Profit before taxation BB A& F 456,601 423,058 408,093 419,261 374,959

Income tax PSR (115,845) (88,742) (85,691) (87,882) (74,375)

Profit for the year REFERF 340,756 334,316 322,402 331,379 300,584

Attributable to: Efh

— Equity shareholders of the Company - A2 AIRH#ERE G A 306,693 301,104 281,003 284,314 260,459

- Non-controlling interests - Fe RS 34,063 33,212 41,399 47,065 40,125

Profit for the year RER A 340,756 334,316 322,402 331,379 300,584

Assets and liabilities BEREE

Fixed assets ETEE 1,566,688 1,533,116 1,567,010 1,255,743 821,075

Other non-current assets Higeng&eE 94,304 67,558 69,941 78,747 73,239

Net current assets EREEE 443,197 384,096 191,275 434,728 656,597

Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDAR 2,104,189 1,984,770 1,828,226 1,769,218 1,550,911

Non-current liabilities ERBaE (146,877) (166,925) (161,730) (179,497) (52,033)

NET ASSETS FEE 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496 1,589,721 1,498,878

Capital and reserves EAR G

Share capital R 655,299 256,746 255,437 254,963 254,422

Reserves e 1,094,362 1,366,129 1,227,074 1,160,881 1,104,075

Total equity attributable to equity KRARREREA

shareholders of the Company [EfL R e 1,749,661 1,622,875 1,482,511 415,844 1,358,497

Non-controlling interests Eaie 207,651 194,970 183,985 173,877 140,381

TOTAL EQUITY ERm 1,957,312 1,817,845 1,666,496 1,589,721 1,498,878

Earnings per share BRER

- Basic -HK 298 cents il 294 centsfll  275centsfll  279centsfll  25.6 cents

- Diluted -88 294 cents il 291 centsfll 273 centsfll  27.6centsfll  25.4 cents

Note: In order to comply with Revised Hong Kong Accounting

BIaE

Standard 19, Employee benefits, that is effective for accounting
period beginning on 1st January 2013, the Group adopted
new accounting policies for defined benefit plans. Figures for
the years FY2011/2012 and FY2012/2013 have been adjusted
and it is not practicable to restate earlier years for comparison

purposes.
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